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1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION FROM THE
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
2013/14 has been a year of great achievement, innovation and challenge; one in which we
have implemented some significant improvements to services and continued to set out our
vision to ensure the sustainability and success of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust (YDH) in the years to come. The challenges facing YDH, in common with the rest of
the NHS, are unprecedented and our response to demographic growth, with an increasing
older population and reducing or ‘flat’ finances, will be crucial to the future of YDH and our
ability to continue providing high quality care. Our Board has spent considerable time
examining the future reality defined by these pressures and the opportunities for developing
innovative approaches to managing and providing health and care for our population.
Accordingly, we have continued to progress the Symphony Project as the vehicle for
facilitating collaborative working in South Somerset, bringing primary, community and
secondary healthcare together with social care to create a joined-up care system capable of
understanding and responding to the whole needs of the patient. The evidence provided by
the project’s academic partner has helped to establish strong foundations and a highnational profile during 2013/14, and we look forward to seeing the application of the
integrated model within some defined cohorts of patients during the coming year.
Our partnerships with other NHS and private organisations have delivered mutual benefit,
enabling sharing of both skills and resources. The continuing development of our
ophthalmology service with Circle illustrates the advantages of taking a more expansive view
when securing business acumen, while our collaborative relationship with Dorset County
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has enabled the sharing of some key resources through
appointment of joint posts. Additionally, working with the Patients Association has helped
YDH become more patient focused and improve ways of gathering and learning from the
experiences and feedback of those who use our services.
We have also begun to articulate our plans for the future physical shape of our hospital, with
the development of our site masterplan. This seeks to consolidate our estates plans, guide
prudent investments in capital projects and ensure we develop a site capable of facilitating
high quality, accessible care for future decades. Our plan, due to be finalised this year,
includes proposals for a new car park and progresses the concept of a health and care
campus in which acute, primary, community and social care services could be co-located.
Within the hospital, we have already made some innovative changes in recognition of the
needs of our population, by opening our first dementia friendly ward. The space has been
designed specifically to reduce the confusion and anxiety which is associated with the
condition, and provide a calming and comfortable environment with innovative use of
colours, signage and technology which enables reminiscence.
Similarly, our new Frail
Older Persons Assessment Service (FOPAS) has delivered fundamental changes to the way
in which we manage and deliver care for older people with urgent health care needs. The
development of a dedicated unit, away from the sometimes busy emergency department,
means the experience and outcome for the individual can be dramatically improved, often
avoiding the need for admission to a ward.
Yeovil Hospital @YeovilHospital Mar 4
Our brand new re-furbished ward designed for patients with
dementia #bright #colourful #care
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Both these examples go some way to illustrating YDH’s appetite for taking pragmatic but
bold decisions when there is evidence that we can make things better for our patients.
Against this backdrop, we have maintained our performance in the key areas against which
we are benchmarked nationally and continued to focus on improving the quality, safety and
effectiveness of the care we provide to our patients. Our Hospital Standardised Mortality
Ratio (HSMR) remains significantly lower than the average, and 2013/14 saw us record a full
year without incidence of MRSA. We also saw a very low number of cases of clostridium
difficile, well below the limit set in national standards. Overall, our referral to treatment times
(RTT), the period between a GP referring a patient to the time of their first hospital treatment,
are within the national standard of 90% within 18 weeks and in many specialties we are
delivering consistently to 15 weeks. We also continued to perform excellently in the key
area of ambulance turnaround times, reporting the fastest handovers in the South West.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Jun 11
Really proud that ED team have made great improvement in our ambulance handovers- lowest
average h/o time in SW= better experience for pts

The role of technology within frontline healthcare is increasing and YDH has swiftly
responded to the opportunities for moving to paperless systems of managing patient care.
Towards the end of 2013/14, we secured more than £300,000 from NHS England’s Nursing
Technology Fund to implement state-of-the-art VitalPAC technology which allows nurses to
electronically record, manage and share patients’ vital signs data, such as pulse, blood
pressure and breathing rate, using a handheld device. The use of this technology is an
important first step in our longer term plans to introduce an electronic health records system,
which will ultimately digitise our patient records and make care planning and management
more effective than ever before.
Maintaining financial balance is key to providing us with the autonomy required to make the
changes of the kind highlighted above, and it is testament to the commitment and resilience
of our staff that we ended the last financial year with a small surplus. There is no doubt that
such an achievement will become increasingly difficult in coming years, and it is crucial that
YDH continues to seek, develop and implement new ways of working with energy and
purpose.
We know that the achievements set out within this report and our aspirations for the years to
come are realised through the hard work and dedication of our staff, governors and
volunteers and the commitment and support from the public, particularly our local community
and members. To that end, we recognise the value of two way dialogue and communication
and you will find further information about this later in this report. One of the key ways in
which YDH communicates with the public, staff and with one another is through the use of
Twitter. We have picked some key highlights and achievements that have been ‘tweeted’ by
the executive directors during the year to share with you and these are peppered throughout
this report.
Finally, and most importantly, we would like to thank our staff and volunteers for their hard
work and our governors and members for their support over the year. Such commitment will
be vital as we seek to create an exciting, sustainable future for YDH as part of our evolving
health and care economy.
Peter Wyman, Chairman

Paul Mears, Chief Executive
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2. ABOUT YEOVIL DISTRICT HOSPITAL NHS
FOUNDATION TRUST – OUR STRATEGIC REPORT
History of YDH
YDH opened in 1973 and was established as an NHS Foundation Trust on 1 June 2006
under the Health & Social Care (Community Health & Standards) Act 2003. It took over the
responsibilities, staff and facilities of the previous organisation, East Somerset NHS Trust.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Jul 4
65th anniversary of the founding of the NHS today and this year also 40th birthday of @YeovilHospital

What We Do
YDH has a turnover of £117.9million (in 2013/14) and delivers services to a population of
c220,000 primarily from the rural areas of South Somerset, North and West Dorset and
parts of Mendip.
The hospital has 310 inpatient beds, 20 maternity beds, 8 special care baby unit cots and a
private patients’ ward, the Kingston Wing, offering a further 14 en-suite rooms. YDH
provides outpatient and inpatient consultant services for a range of specialties, including:
general medicine, cardiology, gastroenterology, general surgery, urology, oral surgery,
orthopaedic surgery and trauma, obstetrics and gynaecology, ear, nose and throat (ENT),
specialist coronary care, stroke, paediatrics and care of the elderly. Clinics are held for
chest diseases, dermatology, family planning, rheumatology, ophthalmology, orthodontics,
oncology and staff occupational health.
Helen Ryan @helenydh 5 May 2013
Today is International Day of the Midwife - YDH has amazing Acute and Community Midwifery teams
who do an amazing job, #Yeomidwives!!

The emergency department (A&E) is supported by an intensive therapy unit and radiology
department, which includes CT scanning facilities and an MRI scanner. YDH also provides
physiotherapy, occupational therapy services, and a full pathology service, all of which have
open access for GPs. It also has a respiratory function laboratory, an echocardiology
service and a bone densitometry service.
During 2013/14, YDH developed a new Frail Older Persons Assessment Service (FOPAS)
where GP referred patients can be seen in a dedicated area led by a geriatrician who is
supported by a multi-disciplinary team. This model will be further developed during 2014/15
with the aim to deliver domiciliary (outreach) services to primary care.
YDH provides outpatient and diagnostic services in a number of hospitals in the surrounding
area, including the Yeatman Hospital in Sherborne and Wincanton, Crewkerne, Chard,
South Petherton and West Mendip community hospitals.
It is registered without conditions as a healthcare provider with the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) and has two licensed locations: Yeovil District Hospital and the Yeatman Hospital in
Sherborne, Dorset. YDH has no branches outside the United Kingdom.

Staff Employment Numbers as at March 2014
Gender
Male
Female
Total

Full-Time Equivalent
393.86
1249.34
1643.20

Headcount
416
1536
1952

Our Strategy and Strategic Objectives
YDH’s six strategic objectives are:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Patient Safety, Quality and Clinical Effectiveness
Patient Experience
Delivering Value (Best Use of Resources)
Our People and Culture (Engaging Staff)
Innovation and New Models of Care
Partnerships and External Relationships

These six objectives are supported by a number of key deliverables which form the basis of
the Trust’s Board Assurance Framework which is monitored by the Board and its subcommittees.
Our Values
Providing high quality clinical care and excellent patient experience are among the Trust’s
top priorities. We are proud of our iCARE principles, initially developed by our nursing staff,
and which now underpin all that we do within the hospital; whether it is providing a life-saving
treatment, how staff relate to one another or a warm welcome at reception.
i Treating our patients and staff as individuals
C Effective communication
A Positive attitude
R Respect for patients, carers and staff
E Environment conducive to care and recovery
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Mar 25
Really committed to ensuring that when things don't go well for pts we are open, honest, respectful,
improve and learn from their experiences.

Highlights of 2013/14 Captured in the Media; a Year of Progress
YDH Celebrates 40 Years
YDH celebrated its 40th anniversary in October
2013. The main hospital building was opened by the
Duchess of Kent on 15 October 1973. The tallest
building in Yeovil, it was designed to make an
architectural impact, as well as providing the very
latest NHS care.
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Being Dementia Friendly
YDH strengthened its commitment to provide
exceptional care for patients with dementia during
the year with the appointment of a new specialist
nurse, Janine Valentine, who has been leading the
work to help make the hospital environment
dementia friendly. The hospital has been using Pets
as Therapy (P.A.T) dogs to visit patients on the ward
and live musicians to perform to patients. These
activities are shown to enhance patient experience,
reduce anxiety and improve emotional wellbeing.
In March 2014, Michael Eavis officially opened YDH’s dementia friendly ward which was
funded from monies awarded from the Department of Health. YDH was one of just 42 NHS
projects to be selected out of a total of 157 NHS projects considered.
New Partnership gives Patients a Voice
An innovative partnership between YDH and independent charity The Patients Association
commenced in June 2013 to help local people get the very best out of their NHS. The
Patients Association is a health and social care charity advocating for better access to
information for patients, carers and the public, equal access to high quality health care, and
the right for patients to be involved in all aspects of decision making regarding their health
and social care.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears 23 Apr 2013
...looking fwd to working with @PatientsAssoc to redesign complaints process to ensure we always
put pt at centre with open honest response

Early Rehabilitation in Stroke Care
The Stroke Team at YDH are part of the A Very Early Rehabilitation Trial (AVERT) and since
joining at the end of 2011 have been recognised as one of the top recruiting sites in the
world. To be eligible, people need to reach a participating hospital within 24 hours of having
a stroke. Those who agree to take part in the trial are randomised to one of two different
rehabilitation programmes for the first few days after their stroke and then their progress is
monitored by researchers for a year.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Dec 24
Great to receive two letters from families about great care their relatives had received from our stroke
team on ward 9A

‘Garden of Life’ Opened
YDH celebrated the opening of its ‘Garden of Life’ in
July 2013. An outside area of the hospital has been
transformed to create a new memorial garden. The
Organ and Tissue Donation Committee at YDH
believes this will create a lasting legacy for those who
have donated their organs at the end of their life, and
provide a place for families and friends to reflect and
remember.
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Friends of YDH
The funds distributed by the Friends of YDH in 2013/14 benefited a wide variety of
departments and clinical areas across the hospital. They enabled the Trust to buy new
medical equipment and items to make patients more comfortable and hospital equipment
allowing staff to do their job in a more efficient way. They also supported the hospital in its
effort to become more dementia friendly, including buying iPads which are available for
patients with dementia so they can Face Time family members.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Oct 3
Very lucky to have such generous League of Friends @YeovilHospital meeting tonight agreed more
funds for benefit of pts thank you!

iCARE Awards
In October 2013 YDH held a staff awards ceremony
celebrating the hard work of staff and volunteers at the
hospital. Nominations were received from staff,
relatives and patients.

94% of Patients Would Recommend YDH to Friends and Family
The national Friends and Family Test was introduced in 2013 for all hospitals to make
available to patients in A&E, maternity and after their stay as an inpatient. The results over
the last year show YDH has consistently scored highly in the percentage of patients who are
‘extremely likely’ or ‘likely’ to recommend the hospital. Since April 2013 YDH has
continuously scored 94% or above every month of those who would recommend the hospital
to their friends and family.
Patient Survey
Nearly 450 people who were admitted into the hospital during 2013 responded to the patient
survey conducted by the national care regulator, the CQC. Results from the inpatient survey
are used by the hospital to inform decisions about care services, the hospital environment,
and the workforce. They also help the hospital gauge whether the patient experience is
improving year-on-year. When asked to rate their overall experience of the hospital from 110, with 1=very poor, and 10=very good, 75%of patients rated their experience 8-10.
YDH Awarded £200,000 to Improve Post-Natal and Ante-Natal Ward
Expectant mums and proud new parents at YDH will soon be able to enjoy brand new
facilities thanks to funding received from the Department of Health. The Trust successfully
submitted a bid which demonstrated how the money would be used to make a difference to
the care experiences of women, their partners and their babies. The money will be spent on
refurbishing four side rooms, making them en-suite, giving women privacy and dignity while
they bond with their baby on the post-natal ward. Two new side rooms will be created and all
side rooms will have a convertible sofa bed for their partners to sleep on. This gives women
an improved experience when they stay in hospital. The increased capacity in rooms means
that some of the parents whose babies are in the Special Care Baby Unit will be able to stay
close to their baby. The project is scheduled to be complete by April 2015.
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YDH Patients to Benefit from Cutting-Edge Technology
Patients at YDH are now benefitting from the latest in
handheld healthcare technology, following a funding
award from NHS England. The hospital received more
than £300,000 after submitting a successful bid to
NHS England’s Nurse Technology Fund to implement
state-of-the-art technology which allows nurses to
electronically record patients’ vital signs data.
The system automatically analyses the data, such as
pulse, blood pressure and breathing rate, immediately identifying any change in a patient’s
condition that may require extra attention. The new technology is expected to be in place
across all wards by September 2014.
Helen Ryan @helenydh Mar 27
Thanks to the nurse tech fund we went live this week @YeovilHospital with VitalPac. Role out to all
wards next month!

Fair Business Review, Financial and Accounting Statements
Challenges and Opportunities Facing YDH
The challenges facing YDH, in common with the rest of the NHS, are unprecedented. The
primary driver and challenge facing our organisation is the demographic growth within the
local area, particularly with an increasing older population, many of whom have multiple
complex conditions, coupled with the financial constraints within the NHS and reductions in
income. Working with the Somerset and Dorset clinical commissioning groups (CCGs),
neighbouring NHS trusts and other public and non-public bodies, we are exploring and
creating solutions to the issues of limited finances and increasing demand for services.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Jun 25
Good discussion this afternoon re challenges facing the hospital...but really encouraged by response
and commitment to make change happen

Good progress is being made on our exciting Symphony Project which aims to transform the
care we provide to patients with complex, long term conditions through an integration of care
across health and social care boundaries. This work is a core part of our strategy moving
forward and in the coming two years we will see the establishment of a new model of care
based on integrated health and social care teams (including hospital specialists and GPs) to
manage the care patients with the most complex conditions in our local community. The
Symphony Project also provides an opportunity to develop a new model of commissioning
and contracting for integrated care between commissioners (CCG and local authority) and
providers (including GPs).
The Board is fully aware of the challenges facing the organisation but believes that these
present a significant opportunity to develop a new role for the hospital as part of an
integrated care system, to innovate to deliver improved services in partnership with other
organisations both within and outside the NHS and to continue to deliver the highest quality
of care to our patients underpinned by the organisation’s iCARE values.

12

jonathan howes @HowesJonathan Jan 10
@YeovilHospital @normanlamb @profchrisham really positive views on #Symphony project aired on
BBC radio yesterday. Much appreciated.

YDH is working closely with colleagues in both Somerset and Dorset CCGs to understand
how the future financial sustainability of our organisation sits alongside that of the whole
health community, particularly in Somerset where we work closely with colleagues in
Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and Taunton and Somerset NHS Foundation
Trust. To enable us to continuously improve the quality and sustainability of services for our
local population, particularly in South Somerset and North and West Dorset, the Trust Board
agreed during 2013/14 to work more closely with Dorset County Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust to explore further areas where there may be opportunities to collaborate on clinical
services.
Overall, our emergency department (A&E) is seeing increases in demand, although growth
during the past year has levelled off following a significant increase in attendances during
2012/13. Service demand in this area remains an ongoing challenge.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Nov 7
Really busy night in ED on call mgr and I gave hand to move pts make tea fetch and carry etc a great
team effort from all to give best care

Essentially, there continues to be activity growth driven by demographic change i.e. an
expected larger proportion of frail older patients, and a continuation of the current trend of
increased demand for acute services.
Alongside the Symphony Project, which is focussed on the management of care for complex
and older patients, there is also continued focus on the delivery of good quality elective care
services. Overall, our waiting times for elective services are within the national standard of
90% within 18 weeks of referral to treatment and in many specialties we are delivering
consistently to a 15 week referral to treatment.
YDH continues to see growth in the elective services area, particularly trauma and
orthopaedics, and is running a pilot in seven day therapeutic services to understand the
impact it has on the patient journey and to reduce the impact the service has on bed demand
in the hospital. Also, as part of our surgical pathway redesign, we will be configuring a ward
as a dedicated orthopaedic space to ease the pressure on our pre-admission and day of
surgery admission services. Theatre and pathway efficiencies remain central to our plans,
particularly focussing on theatre utilisation and outpatient first to follow up ratios in a plan to
shorten the waiting time to first appointment and to increase surgical capacity with the same
resources.
Recognising the strategic importance of both elective care and integrated care for managing
long term conditions, YDH has two directors focussed on these strategic business
units. This recognises the importance of senior leadership to drive these strategic agendas
which will be critical to success in the future. These two directors are supported by
associate medical directors and associate nursing directors and together this team focusses
on the strategic development of their business unit as well as overseeing the quality,
performance and finances of their areas. This has led to greater clinical engagement in the
running of clinical services and a greater flexibility to respond to new service developments.

13

YDH has made considerable progress in establishing a robust approach to generating
income from sources outside the NHS. This includes existing commercial ventures that
have already begun, such as the joint venture in pathology services, the partnership with
Circle in ophthalmology services, our strategic estates partnership, increasing private patient
activity and new ventures on the horizon. The Board has undertaken a review of these
potential commercial opportunities and has a clear development plan which will improve and
enhance care for our patients as well as generating new income streams.
Summary Statement of Comprehensive Income 2013/14
YDH’s income during 2013/14 was £117.9million generated mainly from contracts for the
provision of healthcare with the Somerset and Dorset CCGs and NHS England (Specialised
Commissioning) who commission services on behalf of Somerset and Dorset patients.
The Trust reported an overall deficit of £0.4million in 2013/14 and prior to adjustments for
impairments and loss on disposal of assets reported a surplus of £0.1million which was in
line with the financial plan.
Income
Group
2013/14
Clinical income
A&E income
Elective income
Non-elective income
Other non-protected clinical income
Other NHS clinical income
Outpatient income
Private patient income
Clinical income from activities
Other operating income
Education and training
Non patient care services to other bodies
Received from NHS charities
Research and development
Reversal of impairments on property, plant and equipment
Staff costs accounted for on a gross basis
Other income
Total other operating income
Total operating income

Trust
2013/14

£'000
4,669
18,704
27,344
610
34,398
16,574
2,238
104,537

£'000
4,669
18,704
27,344
610
34,398
16,574
2,238
104,537

3,735
3,600
620

3,735
3,600
256

907
298
1,051
3,174
13,385

907
298
1,051
3,174
13,021

117,922

117,558

Included within ‘other income’ is income relating to car parking, catering, staff recharges,
estates recharges and additional other income.
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Expenditure
Group
2013/14

Clinical negligence insurance
Consultancy costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Drug costs
Establishment
Fees for audit
Increase in bad debt provision
Legal fees
Losses, ex gratia and special payments
Loss on disposal of property plant & equipment
NHS Charities expenditure
Premises
Property, plant and equipment impairments
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Rentals under operating leases
Services from NHS bodies
Staff costs
- Non-executive directors' costs
Supplies and services (excluding drug costs)
- Clinical
- General
Training
Transport
Other

Trust
2013/14

£'000
2,356
777
3,440
10,137
1,859
92
143
136
16
144
457
4,624
653
901
48
2,987
73,346
108

£'000
2,356
777
3,440
10,137
1,859
87
143
136
16
144

11,578
1,657
332
397
601

11,578
1,657
332
397
601

4,624
653
901
48
2,987
73,346
108

Our pay costs were £73.4million in 2013/14. The make-up of this expenditure is shown
below:
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Summary Statement of Financial Position 2013/14
Group
2013/14
£m
55.68
14.29
(9.82)
60.15
(1.81)
58.34
58.34

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total assets employed
Total taxpayers equity

Trust
2013/14
£m
55.68
13.51
(9.76)
59.43
(1.81)
57.62
57.62

Cost Improvement Plans 2013/14
Reflecting the financial challenges facing the NHS we continue to focus on initiatives to
remove waste and improve the efficiency of services. Cost improvement programmes
delivered £3million of savings in 2013/14. The majority were achieved by through tighter
budget management, control of drug costs and restricting the use of temporary staff.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Apr 1
Thank you to the finance team working hard to get all the statutory returns completed on time. Hard
work much appreciated.#teamydh

Capital Investment 2013/14
£6.1million was invested in capital developments in 2013/14, which included £1.0million
spent on medical equipment and upgrading radiology equipment and £2.9million spent on
enhancing the quality of the buildings and estate.
Summary Cashflow Statement 2013/14

Operating surplus
Non cash movements (depreciation, impairments, loss on
disposal)
Decrease in working capital
Increase in provisions
Charitable funds
Purchase of non-current assets
Loan repayment
PDC dividend paid
PDC capital received
Interest receivable
Decrease in cash in the year
Cash as at 1 April 2013
Cash as at 31 March 2014

Group
2013/14
£m
1.13
3.94

Trust
2013/14
£m
1.23
3.94

(1.30)
(0.11)
0.06
(4.74)
(0.13)
(1.46)
0.67
0.03
(1.91)
10.68
8.77

(1.30)
(0.11)
0.00
(4.74)
(0.13)
(1.46)
0.67
0.03
(1.87)
9.87
8.00

Liquidity 2013/14
The Trust’s liquidity position is strong with an £8.8million cash balance at the end of
2013/14.
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Thinking to the Future - Operational Plans 2014/15 - 2015/16
Paul Mears @Pauldmears 3 May 2013
Good regular meeting with CQC today talking through their approach to regulation this year post
Francis and with new CQC structure

Recognising the financial challenges ahead, YDH has submitted its 2 year operational plan
to Monitor which is forecasting a deficit in 2014/15 and 2015/16. The plans assume a steady
state scenario, in which the hospital continues to operate as a rural district general hospital.
During 2014/15 and 2015/16 underlying costs are expected to continue to rise, mainly driven
by pay inflation of approximately 1.5% – reflecting the impact of an average of 0.4% pay
award each year plus increments. In addition, non pay inflation of 2.0% has been assumed
for 2014/15 rising to 2.5% in 2015/16 with a further increase over and above this for the
clinical negligence scheme for trusts (CNST) of £279k and £127k respectively.
Depreciation costs are forecast at £3.4million in 2013/14; these will increase marginally over
the period due to increase in assets and the March 2014 revaluation increasing the building
values.
Our cost improvement plans (CIP) aim to cut costs and improve efficiency without
compromising the quality of service provision. In order for the Trust to deliver its financial
strategy, cash releasing cost improvement programmes of £3.4million in 2014/15 and
£4.0million in 2015/16 need to be achieved. While this will be a challenging task, there are
plans in place and being developed to support achievement of these targets, supported by a
dedicated project management office (PMO) Director.
Over the coming two years, YDH is planning to invest £9.1million into capital projects and to
continue to invest in IT systems (£0.8million 2014/15, £1million 2015/16). The majority of
the IT spend relates to the on-going implementation of Smartcare, an electronic health
records system. In addition, continued investment in radiology and medical equipment is
planned, which includes upgrading two x-ray rooms and the MRI scanner.
The planned cash balance at the end of 2014/15 is £2.3million and for 2015/16 £0.2million.
The reduction in cash is due to the forecast deficit income and expenditure position in both
financial years and part of the capital programme being funded through previous years’
surpluses.
Going Concern
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.
Accounting and Financial Statements and Disclosures
The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts
for each financial year. The Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, Monitor, with
the approval of the Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the
Foundation Trust’s gains and losses, cash flows and financial state at the end of the financial
year. The directors consider the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for patients, regulators
and stakeholders to assess YDH’s performance, business model and strategy.
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No market values of any fixed assets are significantly different from the values at which
these assets are held in the NHS Foundation Trust’s financial statements.
No political or charitable donations have been made by YDH.
There are no important events since the end of the financial year that have affected YDH.
YDH has no branches outside the United Kingdom.
YDH’s treasury management is carried out within the parameters defined in the Treasury
Management Policy, agreed by the Audit Committee. YDH’s treasury activity is routinely
reported and is subject to review by internal and external auditors.
YDH’s financial instruments comprise cash and liquid resources and various items such as
trade debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations. The Trust does not
undertake speculative treasury transactions.
Price Risk: YDH invests its surplus cash in Government Banking Services Accounts (GBS)
therefore it is not subject to market price risk.
Credit Risk: YDH is not exposed to high levels of credit risk as the majority of our income
comes from Government bodies or other NHS organisations under contractual
arrangements.
Other income is subject to credit control procedures which are regularly reviewed by
management. Outstanding debtors are referred to a debt collection agency once the Trust
has exhausted all other methods of collection.
Liquidity Risk: YDH’s net operating costs are incurred under contracts with NHS
commissioners, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. YDH is
not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
Cash Flow Risk: Cash is invested in accordance with approved procedures. Cash flows
are monitored and monthly forecasts are produced to ensure that commitments are met.
Better Payments Practice Data: The national Better Payment Practice Code requires YDH
to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the due date, or within 30 days of receipt of goods or
receipt of invoice, and YDH has complied with the code throughout the year.

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in
year
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid
within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices
paid within target

Total NHS trade invoices paid in year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within
target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid
within target

2013/14
Number

2013/14
£'000

2012/13
Number

2012/13
£'000

38,213

38,425

38,321

33,044

37,020

36,901

35,186

30,262

97%

96%

92%

92%

1,591

11,935

1,598

10,998

1,565

11,819

1,536

10,792

98%

99%

96%

98%
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Cost Allocation and Charging Arrangements: YDH has complied with the cost allocation
and charging guidance issued by HM Treasury.
Income Disclosure: The income received from the provision of goods and services for other
purposes other than providing healthcare is less than that received for providing healthcare.
The other income received enables us to invest in healthcare for the benefit of patients.
Sustainability and Environmental Impact Report
Notwithstanding increases in demand activity, and the financial and demographic
challenges, there is a need to continually improve the delivery of high quality health and care
services within available financial, environmental and social resources. Understanding these
challenges and developing plans to improve health and care services is the essence of
sustainable development. YDH’s strategic vision will, therefore, be deliverable only with
reference to ongoing sustainability plans and environmental impact. A reduction in carbon
emissions can result in not just financial savings from energy use but from the goods and
services we procure and our travel and waste costs. These savings can be redirected back
into patient care and health promotion.
The latest footprint report published in December 2013 (based on 2012 data) shows that
the NHS carbon footprint in England is 25 million tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents
(MtCO2e). The footprint (in a basic form) is composed of procurement (61%), building
energy (17%), travel (13%) and commissioning (9%), making the Climate Change Act
carbon targets of 26% reduction by 2020 and 80% reduction by 2050 a significant challenge
requiring co-ordinated action across health and care.
In January 2014, the Sustainable Development Unit (NHS England and Public Health
England) issued a new Sustainable Development Strategy for the NHS, public health and
social care which describes the vision for sustainable health and care by reducing carbon
emissions, protecting natural resources, preparing communities for extreme weather events
and promoting healthy lifestyles and environments. It outlines a key vision and three main
goals to achieve by 2020. The new Sustainable Development Strategy aligns with the
strategic direction of YDH in its aspirations to create a new model of care based on
integrated health and social care.
YDH’s Sustainability and Carbon Management Strategy was approved by the Board in
October 2009 and reviewed in June 2011. To support the achievement of its strategy, the
Trust is investing substantially in our energy infrastructure and by May 2014 will have
achieved the following:
•

entered into an energy performance contract with a private partner who will invest
£2.7million and aim to save £5.8million and 26000 tonnes of CO2 over the contract
term

•

replaced an inefficient steam raising boiler plant with four new high efficiency LTHW
(low temperature hot water) boilers in two locations which will improve system
resilience

•

CO2 reduction is >30% on current emissions

•

installation of a second combined heat and power unit (250kw) and supplementary
energy saving schemes, LED lighting, enhanced BMS, high efficiency pumps, new
high efficiency low voltage transformers
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YDH has also reviewed its waste management contract and incentivised its waste contractor
to actively reduce waste going to landfill and incineration and ensures that:
•

electronic and electrical equipment waste is sent for recovery, and all parts are
recycled where possible

•

organic waste from our grounds and gardens such as grass cuttings is sent for
composting and re-use

•

all of dry mixed recycling products, including paper, handtowels, paper cups,
cardboard, plastic bottles and metal cans is bulk compacted and sorted into its
constituent parts for recycling

•

clinical waste is sent for alternative treatment (not incineration) and is processed as a
refuse derived fuel (RDF) and used to power cement kilns

Description

Sustainability Key Performance Indicators
Non-financial Data

Financial Data (£)

Unit

200910

201011

201112

201213

201314

200910

201011

201112

201213

2013-14

Total
Waste

Tonnes

401.05

467.9

497.7

595

568.63

127,90
0

131,72
4

120,86
0

140,19
1

136,523.
34

Waste Sent
to Landfill

Tonnes

-

-

-

-

338.54

-

-

-

-

91,560.8
0

Incineration

Tonnes

-

-

-

-

52.28

-

-

-

-

33,019.5
4

Total
Recycled

%

6.0

26.85

26.02

46.38

51.9

8,600

6,923

9,661

12,245

11,943.0
0

Water

m3

54,204

68,840

82,950

50,172

53149

151,13
4

165,57
5*

254,95
9

161,19
1

181572

Electricity

GJ

21,565

21,216
*

16,683

12,337

11367

492,94
1

460,56
4*

451,18
4

346,79
2

400299

Gas

GJ

47,469

52,345

54,658

52,770

62511

278,96
3

284,04
1*

465,05
9

643,76
7

492216

Oil

GJ

135

3,013

179

255

432

16,528

18,024

4,134

6,832

5644

Tonnes

5,095

5,905

5,347

4,508

5282

-

-

-

-

-

CO 2
Emissions

Strategic Report Concluding Statement
Overall, 2013/14 has been a year of great achievement, success and innovation, one in
which we have implemented some significant improvements to services which are resulting
in better outcomes and experiences for patients, their families, carers and visitors.

Paul Mears, Chief Executive, 21 May 2014
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3. DIRECTORS REPORT, GOVERNANCE
ARRANGEMENTS, MEMBERSHIP, THE BOARD AND
THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS
Statement as to Disclosure to Auditors
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant information of which the Trust’s
auditors are unaware. The directors have taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a
director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant information.
How the Board and Council of Governors Operate
The Board
The Board exercises the functions of YDH as set out in its Constitution and the relevant
legislation and regulatory framework. The general duty of the Board and of each director
individually is to act with a view to promoting the success of the Trust so as to maximise the
benefits for its members as a whole and for the public.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Nov 26
if you want to know what our board discussed last week check out my video highlights from our board
meeting http://bit.ly/194LWqT

All powers which have not been retained by the Board or delegated to a committee of the
Board are exercised on its behalf by the Chief Executive. If the Chief Executive is absent,
powers delegated to him may be exercised by a nominated officer after taking appropriate
advice from the Chief Financial and Commercial Officer. The Board remains accountable for
all of its functions, including those which have been delegated.
Subject to directions as may be given by Monitor, YDH may appoint committees of the
Board, consisting wholly or partly of directors, or wholly or partly of persons who are not
directors. The committees of the Board are: Audit Committee, Non-Clinical Risk Assurance
Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee, Trustees (Charitable Funds)
Committee, Board Remuneration Committee, and Commercial Committee.
Readers should refer to the Annual Governance Statement for more information regarding
YDH’s governance structure.
During 2013/14, the Board continued to develop YDH’s strategic framework and directed its
operational affairs. The directors, having regard to the views of the Council of Governors
via the Strategy Working Group, prepared a forward two year operational plan which has
been submitted to Monitor. Members of the Board, including the non-executive directors
regularly attend the Council of Governors and their working groups and the Chairman and
Chief Executive meet face to face with the governors. Governors are also encouraged to
attend and observe the Board and its assurance committees as part of their role.
The Council of Governors
YDH has a Council of Governors, which comprises elected and appointed g overnors and
is chaired by the T r u s t Chairman. The Council of Governors may not delegate any of its
powers to a committee or sub-committee, but it may appoint committees consisting of its
members, directors, and other persons to assist it in carrying out its functions.
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The committees and working groups of the Council of Governors are: Council of Governors
Nominations Committee and Council of Governors Remuneration Committee (which latterly
merged and was constituted as the Appointments Committee), the Strategy Working Group,
Marking and Communications Working Group, Sustainable Food Sourcing Working Group
and Patient Experience Development Group.
The National Health Service Act 2006 gave the Council of Governors various statutory roles
and responsibilities and the amendment to it, contained within the 2012 Act, expanded,
clarified and added to them.
Under the 2006 Act, the Council of Governors is responsible for appointing and, if
appropriate, removing the Chairman, for appointing and, if appropriate, removing the nonexecutive directors, for appointing the external auditors and for appointing (or not) the Chief
Executive. It is also responsible for deciding the remuneration and allowances and other
terms and conditions of office of the Chairman and other non-executive directors and for
receiving the annual accounts, any report of the auditor on them, and the annual report at a
general meeting of the Council of Governors.
Under the 2012 Act, the Council of Governors is responsible for holding the non-executive
directors individually and collectively to account for the performance of the Board,
representing the interests of the members of YDH as a whole and the interest of the public,
approving significant transactions, approving any application by the Trust to enter into a
merger, acquisition or dissolution, deciding whether its non-NHS work would significantly
interfere with its NHS work and approving amendments to the organisation’s Constitution.
During 2013/14, the Council of Governors discharged its statutory duties. The Council of
Governors via the Strategy Working Group contributed to the development of YDH’s two
year forward plan and reviewed key aspects of finance, performance and quality through its
various activities. It received the annual accounts and the annual report at the annual
general meeting, and approved constitutional changes, proposals relating to non-executive
director remuneration, and the appointment of the Chairman for a second term of three
years. To comply with its role to hold the non-executive directors to account, the Council of
Governors regularly met with and requested updates from the non-executive directors
relating to specific programmes for which they have non-executive oversight and members
attended the Board and assurance committees.
Disputes between the Council of Governors and the Board
In the event of dispute between the Council of Governors and the Board, in the first instance
the Chairman on advice of the Secretary and such other advice as the Chairman may see fit
to obtain, shall seek to resolve it. If the Chairman is unable to resolve the dispute he shall
appoint a special committee comprising equal numbers of directors and governors to
consider the circumstances and to make recommendations to the Council of Governors and
the Board. If the recommendations (if any) of the special joint committee are unsuccessful,
the Chairman may refer the dispute back to an external mediator appointed by an
organisation selected by him. There were no disputes between the Council of Governors
and the Board during 2013/14.
The Council of Governors
Helen Ryan @helenydh Aug 16
Good meetings with our Governors today who have made significant contributions to the patient
experience and feedback work @YeovilHospital
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The Council of Governors meets quarterly, and comprises 13 elected public governors, five
elected staff governors and six appointed partner organisation governors. The 13 public
governors are elected by YDH’s members who live in the constituencies. Elected governors
are appointed for three year terms. Appointed members do not have a time limit. The lead
governor during 2013/14 was Gloria Clark.
YDH has six ‘constituencies’ in Greater Yeovil, South Somerset (North and East), South
Somerset (South and West), Mendip, Dorset and the Rest of Somerset and England.
Governor Interests
A Register of Interests for Governors is kept by YDH and is reviewed at least annually by the
Council of Governors. This Register of Interests is available, on request, from the Company
Secretary.
Fit and Proper Persons
Governors on the Council of Governors meet the “fit and proper” persons test described in
the provider licence.
Nominations Committee and Appointments Committee
Since achieving foundation status seven years ago the Council of Governors has constituted
a Nominations Committee and a Remuneration Committee, both statutory committees
chaired by the YDH Chairman. The former committee usually only meets when
appointments or reappointments have to be made, whilst the latter committee rarely meets
more than once a year. Each committee has its own terms of reference, separate
membership and reports and makes recommendations to the Council of Governors
separately.
In December 2013, the Council of Governors approved a recommendation to simplify this
arrangement and replace the two committees with just one, named the Appointments
Committee. The advantage is that it is easier to align the appointments process with the
terms and conditions of those appointments. Feedback from non-executive director and
Chairman appraisals will be reported to one body and all aspects of governors’
responsibilities can be examined in detail by a single committee.
Membership
Anyone aged 14 and over that lives in England may become a member of YDH, subject to a
small number of exclusions. YDH’s public constituency is divided into six areas, five of
which cover core wards and districts served by YDH across Dorset and Somerset. The sixth
constituency allows members from a wider area to become involved. At the end of 2013/14
membership of the public constituency stood at 8,318, a small increase over last year. Public
membership equates to approximately 5% of the Trust’s catchment area. The public
membership for each of the six public constituencies is provided below:
At year end, YDH’s staff constituency remained at approximately 44% of all members of
staff. Staff are recruited on an opt-out basis meaning that they automatically become
members if they are employed by YDH full or part-time, substantively or on a temporary
contract of at least 12 months. A system of checking for those who have left YDH has been
established and those who leave but move into public constituencies are converted into to
public members.
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Public Membership
Constituency Greater
Yeovil

At 31 March
2014

2601

South
Somerset
(S&W)

South
Somerset
(N&E)

1870

2061

Dorset Mendip

1007

Rest of
Somerset
&
England

Totals

170

8318

609

Staff Membership
Staff Membership

2013/14

At 31 March 2014

959

Elected Governors – Public Constituency
Name

Constituency

Date Elected

Term of Office

Geoff Stroud
Martin Ormston
Ann Beable
Jane Gifford

Greater Yeovil
Greater Yeovil
Greater Yeovil
South Somerset
(South and
West)
South Somerset
(South and
West)
South Somerset
(South and
West)
South Somerset
(North and East)
South Somerset
(North and East)
South Somerset
(North and East)
Dorset
Dorset
Mendip
Rest of
Somerset and
England

1/6/2012
1/6/2011
1/6/2011
1/6/2013

3
3
3
3

Attendance at
Council of
Governor
Meetings
2/4
3/4
4/4
4/4

1/6/2012

2

4/4

1/6/2011

3

4/4

1/6/2012

3

4/4

1/6/2011

3

4/4

1/6/2011

3

4/4

1/6/2012
1/6/2013
1/6/2011
N/A

3
3
3
N/A

3/4
2/4
4/4
N/A

Bill Brown

Margaret
Robathan
Anne Bennett
Gloria Clark
Sue McInnes
John Park
Ian Fawcett
Hugh Campbell
Vacancy
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Elected Governors - Staff Constituency
Name

Constituency

Date Elected

Term of Office

Jane Johnston
Derrick Howells
Paul Porter
Steve Wills
Michael
Fernando

Staff
Staff
Staff
Staff
Staff

1/6/2011
1/6/2011
1/6/2013
1/6/2011
1/6/2012

3
3
3
3
3

Attendance at
Council of
Governor
Meetings
4/4
3/4
4/4
2/4
3/4

Appointed Governors
Name

Stakeholder Organisation

Lou Evans
Rob Childs
Lesley Boucher
Jane Lock

Somerset CCG
Dorset CCG
South Somerset District Council
Somerset County Council

Attendance at Council
of Governor Meetings
1/3
1/4
3/4
3/3

Membership Strategy
YDH recognises the importance of having a strong and representative membership. With
over 8,000 public members, the Trust has access to an extensive community of users and
supporters. The aim during the coming year is to maintain those numbers, to continue our
focus engaging with them and recruiting members from local BME communities.
YDH has a Membership and Communications Working Group of the Council of Governors,
supported by the Board, which was established to evaluate membership, recruitment
opportunities and activities. Among other items, the Working Group reviews growing
membership numbers to ensure appropriate representation and focuses on communicating
with them. The Working Group comprises public, staff and appointed governors and reports
to the Council of Governors’.
To ensure representative membership, YDH regularly holds member-only events, open
constituency meetings and produces marketing and publicity material. Governors also
undertake opportunistic recruitment and ensure communication within their communities.
YDH has a Membership Co-ordinator employed full-time who works with the
Communications Team to disseminate marketing and publicity material.
YDH has continued its programme of members’ evenings on clinical topics and held local
constituency evenings in venues central to each constituency. The Trust is in contact with
local schools and Yeovil College to increase engagement with young people. Schools are
provided with promotional material about YDH and membership.
Contact Information for Members
All member households receive the hospital newsletter ‘News from YDH’ on a quarterly
basis. This publishes contact details of the Membership Co-ordinator should members wish
to contact YDH directly.
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Any member wishing to raise any issue with a director or governor can do so through writing,
emailing or telephoning the individual at Yeovil Hospital, by contacting the Membership Coordinator or by speaking with the governor within their constituency. Full contact details for
directors, governors and the Membership Co-ordinator are available on YDH’s website.
The Board
The membership, skills and expertise of the Board during 2013/14, together with member
attendance at meetings, was as follows:
Key
* Indicates member of the Audit Committee
+Indicates member of the Board Remuneration Committee
Peter Wyman+

Chairman

Appointed June 2011

Peter Wyman joined YDH as Chairman in June 2011.
Previously he was President of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and a senior partner at
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) LLP where he advised both
SMEs and multi-national companies and engaged with
governments and regulatory bodies around the world. He was
awarded a CBE for services to the accountancy profession in
2006. In addition to holding a number of private and public
sector appointments, he is Chairman of Somerset Community
Foundation and is the Treasurer and a member of the Council
of the University of Bath. The Chairman does not have any
significant commitments that could detract from the
performance of the role. Peter was Chairman of the Board
Remuneration Committee until March 2014, at which point the
Vice-Chairman, Paul von der Heyde, assumed the role
following agreement of the Board.
Board Meeting Attendance: 11/11
Board Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance: 6/6
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Paul von der Heyde+*

Non-Executive Director,
Vice-Chairman and
Chairman of the Audit
Committee

Appointed June 2012

Paul von der Heyde is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, Chairman of the British Furniture Confederation
and was Chairman of the Swedish Chamber of Commerce in
the UK until 2013 and he remains a Council Member. He is
also Deputy Chairman of Easipetcare.
Paul was in practice in London for almost 30 years specialising
in business development for a variety of clients. Paul joined
Trust Board in June 2012 and assumed the role of Chairman of
the Audit Committee from June 2013 and of the Board
Remuneration Committee from March 2014.
Board Meeting Attendance: 11/11
Audit Committee Attendance: 4/4
Board Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance: 6/6
Gill Waldron+*

Non-Executive Director,
Vice-Chairman and Senior
Independent Director

Until May 2013

Gill Waldron served for eight years on the former Somerset
Community Health Council (three years as Vice-Chairman). Gill
has held various non-executive director duties and chaired the
Clinical Governance Assurance Committee. She was
appointed as Vice-Chairman from 1 July 2011. Gill is Company
Director of Business Transfers Limited. Gill was also the Senior
Independent Director.
Board Meeting Attendance: 2/2
Audit Committee Attendance: 1/1
Board Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance:2/2
John Buckley+*

Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit
Committee

Until May 2013

John Buckley is a Chartered Accountant and for over 25 years
operated as Finance Director of quoted companies engaged
primarily in the manufacture and marketing of consumer
goods. He is a director of Buckley Young Associates, a
business consultancy, and a trustee of St Margaret's Somerset
Hospice. He was appointed on 1 January 2007 until 31 May
2013 and was Chairman of the Trust's Audit Committee.
Board Meeting Attendance: 2/2
Audit Committee Attendance: 1/1
Board Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance: 2/2
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Maurice Dunster+

Non-Executive Director,
Chairman of the Patient
Experience Committee

Appointed June 2012

After a first career as a science teacher Maurice Dunster moved
to the John Lewis Partnership. There he held a number of posts
including HR Director for the John Lewis Department Store
division, and finally Corporate Director of Organisational
Development. Maurice is a director and trustee of the John
Lewis Partnership Pension Fund. He joined the Trust Board in
June 2012 and is Chairman of the Patient Experience
Committee.
Board Meeting Attendance: 11/11
Board Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance: 6/6
Julian Grazebrook+*

Non-Executive Director,
Chairman of the Non-Clinical
Risk Assurance Committee
and Senior Independent
Director

Appointed September 2010

Julian Grazebrook is a chartered accountant and joined the
Trust Board in September 2010. After some years in the City,
Julian has spent the last 25 years working with smaller
entrepreneurial and owner managed businesses. He has broad
commercial and financial experience in a wide variety of
industries. Currently he is Group Chief Financial Officer of a
European manufacturing group in the automotive sector. Julian
is Chairman of the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee and
is also the Senior Independent Director.
Board Meeting Attendance: 11/11
Audit Committee Attendance: 4/4
Board Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance: 6/6
Jane Henderson+

Non-Executive Director,
Chairman of the Clinical
Governance Assurance
Committee

Appointed June 2013

Currently Chairman of Bath Spa University, Jane Henderson
has held a number of high-profile regional and national
leadership roles, including Chief Executive of the South West
Regional Development Agency, Regional Director of the
Government Office for the South West and Director of Finance
and Funding for the Higher Education Funding Council for
England. Jane joined the Trust Board in June 2013 and is
Chairman of the Clinical Governance Assurance Committee.
Board Meeting Attendance: 8/8
Board Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance: 4/4
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Mark Saxton+

Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Commercial
Committee

Appointed June 2012

Mark Saxton is a UK chartered director and is Chairman of the
Commercial Committee. He was appointed to the Trust Board
in 2012, having held senior management positions in HR and
general management in FTSE and NYSE listed companies both
internationally and in the UK. He runs an executive coaching
practice and is active in both charity and commercial
enterprises.
Board Meeting Attendance: 10/11
Board Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance: 5/6

Paul Mears

Chief Executive

Appointed May 2012

Paul Mears joined YDH in May 2012 from his role of Chief
Operating Officer at South Devon Healthcare NHS Foundation
Trust where he had been since 2009. Previously he was
Director of Operations at Torbay Care Trust where he was
responsible for integrating community health and social care
services in one of the leading examples of integrated care in the
UK. Paul joined the NHS through the Gateway Leadership
Programme having previously worked in commercial
management for British Airways and Eurostar.
Board Meeting Attendance: 11/11
Jon Howes

Medical Director,
Deputy Chief Executive

Medical Director –
September 2010- March
2014
Deputy Chief Executive Appointed September 2012

Jon Howes took on the role of Medical Director in 2010 after six
years’ service with the Trust as a Consultant in Anaesthesia
and Intensive Care and as Lead Consultant in Intensive Care.
He was subsequently appointed Clinical Director for Critical
Care 2007 and Deputy Medical Director in 2009 before
becoming Medical Director. Jon was appointed as Deputy
Chief Executive in September 2012. In March 2014, Jon
stepped down as Medical Director so he could dedicate more
time on the strategic role of Deputy Chief Executive.
Board Meeting Attendance: 11/11
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Medical Director

Appointed March 2014

Tim Scull
Tim Scull graduated from Dundee University in 1984. Following
training in primary care medicine he joined an anaesthesia
programme and was granted Fellowship of The Royal College
of Anaesthesia in 1995. The majority of his pre and post
fellowship practice was carried out within the Oxford region but
he was fortunate to spend a year as a fellow at McGill
University in Montreal, Canada. In the year 2000, Tim became
a Consultant Anaesthetist at YDH, his main areas of clinical
interest being paediatric and obstetric anaesthesia. Tim has
had an interest in medical management for several years,
having spent periods as Clinical Director, Divisional Director
and Associate Medical Director. In March 2014 he became the
Medical Director at YDH.
Board Meeting Attendance: 1/1
Helen Ryan

Director of Nursing and
Clinical Governance

Interim Director - August
2012-December 2013,
Appointed as Director January 2014
Helen Ryan joined YDH as Sister in charge of the intensive
care unit in 1993. She became Nurse Consultant in Intensive
Care in 2001 and was a staff representative on the Board of
Governors for six years. Helen trained at Southmead Hospital
in Bristol and worked at St Thomas' Hospital in London before
spending eight years in the Royal Air Force. Helen was
appointed as Interim Director in August 2012 to cover for Sue
Jones’, then Director of Nursing, secondment. She was
appointed as Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance in
January 2014.
Board Meeting Attendance: 10/11

Mr Timothy Newman

Chief Finance & Commercial
Officer

Appointed February 2013

Tim Newman joined YDH in February 2013 from Fitness First, a
leading international operator of health and fitness clubs. Tim
was UK Finance Director and a member of the executive team
with responsibility for finance, audit, IT and member services.
He has also had experience of leading the procurement and
property functions at this organisation.
Tim has also been Chief Financial Officer of NOP World, and
Group Treasurer at Hammerson plc. Tim qualified as a
Chartered Accountant at PwC after obtaining a law degree at
the London School of Economics.
Board Meeting Attendance: 9/11
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Non-voting directors who attended meetings of the Board during the year were:
Jonathan Higman

Director of Urgent Care and
Long Term Conditions

Appointed April 2012

Jonathan Higman took on the role of Director of Urgent Care
and Long Term Conditions in April 2012 having spent three
years as the Director of Operations. In this new role Jonathan
provides leadership for the delivery of urgent care services
which include the emergency department (A&E), diagnostic
services, acute and specialty medicine, cancer services,
pharmacy and paediatrics. Jonathan graduated from the
University of Reading in 1993 and has 16 years experience
working in a variety of roles in both hospitals and service
planning across the NHS in the South West and South East of
England.
Board Meeting Attendance: 11/11
Susan Davies

Director of Elective Care

Appointed July 2013

Susan Davies joined YDH as Director of Elective Care in July
2013. Prior to this she was Deputy Director for Secondary Care
Commissioning at Somerset Primary Care NHS Trust. Susan
started her career in the NHS as a Registered General Nurse,
trained as a Midwife and Health Visitor and has an MBA.
Susan has had a number of senior management and clinical
roles within primary care commissioning, urgent and emergency
care, human resource development and acute care.
Board Meeting Attendance: 9/11

Mark Power

Director of Workforce and
Human Resources

November 2012
– January 2014

Mark Power joined YDH as Director of Workforce and Human
Resources in November 2012 and undertook this role for both
Dorset County Hospital and YDH. Before that, he was Deputy
Director and Head of Workforce Performance and Information
at Portsmouth Hospitals Trust. He holds a Masters Degree in
Human Resource Management, is a Chartered Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development, Member of
the Chartered Management Institute, qualified Executive
Coach, and an External Examiner for the University of
Portsmouth Business School.
Board Meeting Attendance: 8/9
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Senior Independent Director Contact Details
The Senior Independent Director is available to governors and members should they have
concerns which they have not been able to resolve through the normal channels of
communication via the Chairman and Chief Executive or for which such contact is
inappropriate.
To contact the Senior Independent Director, all correspondence, marked private and
confidential, should be sent to the Company Secretary at Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust, Higher Kingston, Yeovil BA21 4AT.
Board Interests
A Register of Interests for Board is kept by the Trust and is reviewed at least annually. This
Register of Interests is available, on request, from the Company Secretary.
Fit and Proper Persons
Directors of the Board meet the “fit and proper” persons test described in the provider
licence.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is an assurance committee of the Board. It has responsibility for:
providing assurance to the Board concerning the system of internal control and risk
management, overseeing the effective operation of internal audit and ensuring that it is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the organisation, reviewing the
performance of the external auditor and agreeing the external audit plan and for certain
financial reporting to the Board. It considers financial matters and the effectiveness of
reports from the external and internal auditors.
As well as the Audit Committee, and other assurance committees if required, KPMG as
external auditors regularly attend meetings with members of the executive team to broaden
their knowledge of YDH and to provide information on sector developments and examples of
best practice. They have built a strong and effective working relationship with BDO, the
internal auditors, to maximise assurance to the Audit Committee, avoid duplication and
provide joint value for money.
Following a competitive tender exercise during 2013, the Council of Governors reappointed
KPMG as the Trust’s external auditors for a three year term, with the option for a further two
years. The value of the contract is £52,000 for the statutory audit, £10,000 for audit related
assurance services, and £5,000 for charitable funds.
Board Effectiveness
On the basis of the expertise and experience described above, YDH is confident that it has
the necessary skills and capabilities within the Board and that its balance is complete and
appropriate to the requirements of the Trust.
Non-executive directors are subject to regular appraisals by the Chairman and the
performance of the directors is subjected to similar levels of scrutiny by the Chief Executive,
whose performance is overseen by the Chairman. Information regarding the ongoing review
and monitoring of the effectiveness of the Board and its committees is contained within the
Annual Governance Statement.
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Quality Governance
The Quality Report and the Annual Governance Statement provide an overview of the
arrangements in place to govern service quality, including descriptions of how the Trust is
continuing to improve patient care and enhance the patient experience.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Nov 14
Enjoyed hearing from senior nurses results from safety thermometer today also checking cannula &
foot care for diabetic pts great team!

Research and Development
Further details of YDH’s activities in research and development are set out in the Quality
Report
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4. REMUNERATION REPORT
Remuneration and Pensions
Salaries of Senior Managers
2013/14
Name and title

P Wyman CBE
G Waldron
J Buckley
J Grazebrook
M Dunster
M Saxton
P Von der Heyde

Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

J Henderson
P Mears
T Newman
H Ryan
Dr L J Howes
Dr T Scull
J Higman
M Power
S Davies

Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive
Chief Finance and Commercial Officer
Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance
Medical Director / Deputy Chief Executive
Medical Director
Director of Urgent Care
Director of Human Resources
Director of Elective Care

Salary

Performance
related
bonuses

Other
remuneration

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

2012/13

Golden hello /
compensation
for loss of
office
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Benefits in kind

Pension
related
benefits

TOTAL

TOTAL

(rounded to the
nearest £100)
£

(bands of
£2,500)
£000

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

40 - 45
0-5
0-5
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

10 - 15
155 - 160
145 - 150
80 - 85
95 - 100
5 - 10
85 - 90
35 - 40
95 - 100

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
75 - 80
0-5
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
200
1700
0
0
0
300
0
0

40.0 - 42.5
32.5 - 35.0
90.0 - 92.5
25.0 - 27.5
2.5 – 5.0
2.5 - 5.0
27.5 - 30.0
7.5 - 10.0

40 - 45
0 -5
0 -5
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15

35 - 40
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10

10 - 15
195 - 200
180 - 185
170 - 175
200 - 205
10 - 15
90 - 95
70 - 75
105 - 110

0
230 - 235
30 - 35
120 - 125
205 - 210
0
80 - 85
30 - 35
0

Notes
H Ryan was Interim Director of Nursing from 1 April 2013 until being appointed Director on 1 January 2014.
Dr L J Howes spent half his time as Deputy CEO / Medical Director, the remaining half is for his clinical work, this is reported under the other remuneration column.
M Power left the Trust in January 2014. He was employed by Dorset County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and YDH was recharged for 0.5 WTE of his costs.
Dr T Scull was appointed Medical Director on 1 March 2014, he spent half his time as Medical Director, and the remaining half is for his clinical work, this is reported under the
other remuneration column.

Off-Payroll Engagements
None of the persons detailed in the Remuneration Report were engaged off-payroll.

P Mears
Dr L J Howes
Dr T Scull
J Higman
T Newman
H Ryan
M Power
S Davies

Chief Executive
Medical Director / Deputy Chief Executive
Medical Director
Director of Urgent Care
Chief Finance and Commercial Officer
Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance
Director of Human Resources
Director of Elective Care

Real increase / (decrease)
in pension related lump
sum at age 60 (bands
£2,500) for time in office

Total accrued pension at
age 60 at 31 March 2014
(bands of £5,000)

Total accrued pension
related lump sum at age 60
at 31 March 2014 (bands of
£5,000)

Cash equivalent transfer
value at 31 March 2013

Cash equivalent transfer
value at 31 March 2014

Real Increase / (decrease) in
cash equivalent transfer
value for time in office

Name and title

Real increase / (decrease)
in pension at age 60 (bands
£2,500) for time in office

Pension Benefits of Senior Managers

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

2.5 - 5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
5 - 7.5
2.5 - 5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5

7.5 - 10
5 - 7.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
12.5 - 15
2.5 - 5
2.5 - 5
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20 - 25
45 - 50
40 - 45
15 - 20
5 - 7.5
25 - 30
10 - 15
25 -30

60 - 65
140 - 145
125 - 130
55 - 60
0-5
85 - 90
40 - 45
75 - 80

253
737
708
255
5
491
220
490

306
813
806
278
89
608
252
535

48
60
5
18
115
106
28
35

Notes
As non-executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for non-executive members.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accumulated by a member at a particular point in time.
The benefits valued are the member's accumulated benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension
scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits
accumulated in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accumulated as a consequence of their total membership of the
pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures, and the other pension details, include the value of any pension
benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accumulated to
the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework
prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real increase / (decrease) in CETV - This takes account of the increase in accumulated pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any
benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
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Median Pay
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the
highest -paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s
workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director at YDH in the financial year 2013/14
was £170,000 to £175,000 (2012/13 -£170,000 to £175,000). This was 6.27 times (2012/13
- 6.27 times) the median remuneration of the workforce which was £27,809 (2011/12 £27,630).
In 2013/14, three employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid director
(2012/13 - three). Remuneration ranged from £175,000 to £178,000 (2012/13 - £176,000 to
£183,000). All employees receiving remuneration in excess of the highest paid director are
medical consultants.
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance related pay, benefits in
kind as well as severance payment. It does not include employer pension contributions and
the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.
During 2013/14 there has been a public sector inflationary pay award of 1%. Where
employees were not at the top of their payscale, contractual incremental pay increases were
also applied which accounts for the small increase in the median remuneration between
2012/13 and 2013/14.
Expenses of the Governors and Directors
The Trust has a policy on the payment of expenses which governs all staff, including
directors, governors and volunteers. During 2013/14 the expenses paid to members of the
Board and directors attending the Board totalled £25,936.65. During the same period the
expenses paid to the members of the Council of Governors totalled £2,409.40. The
combined sum for expenses was £28,346.05, which compares to £20,753.09 for 2012/13.
Board Remuneration Committee
The Board Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and agreeing the salary
and allowances payable to and the performance of executive directors and senior managers
of YDH. The Committee was chaired by the Chairman of the Trust until March 2014, at
which point the Vice-Chairman, Paul von der Heyde, assumed the role following agreement
of the Board.
The Chief Executive, Company Secretary, Medical Director and the Director, or Interim
Director, of Human Resources attended the Committee’s meetings during 2013/14 to give
advice as required.
The Chief Executive and all executive directors are employed on substantive contracts. With
the exception of the Chief Executive, directors and doctors, all staff including senior
managers are remunerated in accordance with the NHS National Pay Structure, Agenda for
Change. For the Chief Executive and executive directors, the Remuneration Committee
considers the inflationary uplift recommended for other NHS staff and any change in
responsibilities, together with relevant bench-marking information for any other NHS/public
sector organisations in order to set appropriate remuneration.

There is currently no performance-related pay scheme in operation. Objectives are set for
all directors through the annual business planning process and performance is assessed
through a formal appraisal process.
Pension arrangements for the Chief Executive, executive directors and senior managers are
in accordance with the NHS Pension Scheme. The accounting policies for pensions and
other relevant benefits are set out in the accounts.
During 2013/14 no inflationary uplift was awarded to the executive directors of the Trust by
the Remuneration Committee.
Paul Mears

Chief Executive, 21 May 2014
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5. OUR PEOPLE AND CULTURE
Commentary
YDH is proud of its dedicated and caring staff and employs 1,643.20 full-time equivalents,
which in terms of headcount, equates to 1,952 members of staff.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Aug 22
More of these given out today -encouraged staff to display and use as
opp to talk to teams about raising concerns

Being an Employer of Choice
YDH is determined to become an employer of choice, providing worthwhile careers for all
our staff within a growing culture of knowledge, ambition and innovation. We work to ensure
our staff are appropriately skilled and supported in their working environment, so they are
able to deliver the highest standards of care. Therefore, investment in the attraction,
recruitment, education, training, support and well-being of our staff is an important
consideration for us.
Communication and Consultation with Employees
We recognise that effective and transparent communication requires sustained effort at
every level of the organisation. Therefore, we have regular and open communication to
share information in a timely way and promote an increased awareness and understanding
of YDH’s activities and the key issues impacting on our performance and service delivery.
We understand the value of two-way dialogue and we continue to promote and act through
existing groups and networks to overcome barriers to effective communication, and ensure
all staff are provided with the opportunity to ‘be heard’. Over the course of the year the
following initiatives have been delivered:
•
•
•

•
•
•

a strengthened Chief Executive’s briefing, with attendance from directors and senior
staff, called ‘CONECTstaff’ which provides a forum to update on YDH performance,
service developments and changes within the organisation
a series of meetings on wards and in departments with the Chief Executive giving staff
the opportunity to ask questions directly, raise issues and feedback ideas
a weekly e-newsletter, ‘CONECTweekly’, is circulated to all staff, which includes a
briefing from the Chief Executive, news about key national developments, YDH activity,
and regular features on departments he has visited, information about forthcoming
changes and events and regular ‘thank you’ messages to staff
visits by executive and non-executive directors on wards and in departments to find out
more about the work of staff and discuss any concerns they may have relating to the
service delivered to patients, enabling staff to discuss day-to-day operational issues
a monthly YouTube video in which the Chief Executive provides an update to staff about
discussions at the last Board meeting
the use of social media by the Chief Executive and other members of staff, such as blogs
and Twitter, as a mechanism of interaction
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Paul Mears @Pauldmears Mar 29
Think it's important to always remind staff @YeovilHospital what a great job they do in often difficult
situations- #iCARE values in action

YDH also encourages staff to stand for election as a staff governor. Our staff governors are
representative of a variety of posts within the Trust, both clinical and non-clinical. The role of
staff governor allows our employees to strengthen the link between their workplace,
communities and the broader decision-making process.
Partnership working is important and we have an established the Joint Consultation and
Negotiation Committee (JCNC), for non-medical staff, and the Joint Local Negotiating
Committee (JLNC) for medical staff. These are the organisation’s recognised collective
bargaining forums.
Clear, direct and honest communication is a core component of our iCARE philosophy and
we expect all our staff to demonstrate these values in their daily work.
Helen Ryan @helenydh Mar 27
Met a bereaved family today who gave generous support for @YeovilHospital staff but important
learning to improve communication. #listen

We believe a range of two-way methods of communication are needed to share information
with and from our employees, and our staff engagement programme, to be launched this
year, will be key to demonstrating our ongoing commitment to this core component of our
iCARE philosophy. Managers are also encouraged to put good communication and
consultation at the heart of any organisational change and we remain committed to
improving our consultation with employees year on year with the support of staff side
representatives.
YDH will continue to strengthen its partnership working arrangements and involve all staff in
the activities of the organisation. This will help ensure that YDH continues to provide high
quality care to our patients, provide rewarding and successful careers for staff, and to
become an employer of choice.
Summary of Performance – NHS Staff Survey
The annual NHS staff survey was undertaken between September and December 2013 and
a full census was undertaken. 899 staff returned a completed questionnaire, which equated
to an overall response rate of 49.6%, compared to a national average of 51%.
With a score of 1 indicating poorly engaged and 5 indicating highly engaged, overall staff
engagement at YDH was rated at 3.70 compared to a national average of 3.74. Our top five
ranking scores in the 2013 survey, with comparison to the national average for all acute
foundation trusts, were as follows:
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Element
2013 % or Rating Score
YDH

National
Average

% of staff saying hand washing materials are always
available

67%

60%

% of staff experiencing physical violence from staff in
last 12 months

2%

2%

% of staff experiencing harassment, bullying or
abuse from patients, relatives or the public in last 12
months
% of staff feeling pressure in the last 3 months to
attend work when feeling unwell
% of staff experiencing harassment, bullying or
abuse from staff in last 12 months

26%

29%

26%

28%

22%

24%

Our lowest five ranking scores, again with comparison to the national average for acute
foundation trusts, were as follows:
Element
2013 % or Rating Score
YDHFT

National
Average

% of staff able to contribute towards improvements
at work

61%

68%

% of staff believing the Trust provides equal
opportunities for career progression or promotion

81%

88%

% of staff who believe there is effective team
working

73%

74%

% of staff working extra hours

72%

70%

% of staff having equality and diversity training in last
12 months

47%

60%

The annual NHS staff survey is an important measure of staff morale and satisfaction, both
nationally across the NHS and locally within YDH. A comparison of this year’s survey results
against last year’s shows an improvement in a number of areas, including:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

health and safety training (e.g. fire training, manual handling)
equality and diversity training
infection control
how to handle confidential information
how to deliver a good patient/service user experience
I am able to meet all the conflicting demands on my time at work
I would feel safe raising my concerns
I would feel confident that the Trust would address my concerns

Feedback from the survey is widely communicated to our staff through all available
channels, including the JCNC, team briefings, strategic business unit meetings, open staff
sessions, and the Chief Executive’s CONECTstaff meetings. Concurrently, further and more
detailed analysis of the survey results is being undertaken to inform the development and
implementation of a response plan that prioritises key areas in which progress needs to be
made to improve both the working lives of our staff and the standard of patient services.
Future Priorities and Targets
We believe that engagement with our staff is essential to helping YDH meet the challenges
we face now and in the future. To this end we are developing and implementing a staff
engagement programme. The success of this programme will be measured by way of
qualitative feedback from employee engagement representatives and quantitatively through
a staff survey. We will also be participating as a pilot site for the staff friends and family test,
enabling us to regularly capture the views and feedback from staff to help us make
improvements.
Helen Ryan @helenydh May 12
Happy Nurses Day to all nurses working @YeovilHospital today. Be proud you do an amazing job.

Other Information: Training, Education and Development
We are committed to supporting our workforce and helping staff reach their full potential.
We provide an excellent learning environment, enabling them to develop and be
appropriately equipped to provide safe, high quality care. Most training and development is
delivered face to face, but electronic learning (or e-learning) and remote access training for
some programmes is being actively developed. This will assist staff in accessing education
and training interventions with minimum disruption to their working schedules.
We also offer a range of education, learning and development opportunities for other
healthcare organisations, including Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, GP
practices and care homes. The provision of these services enables us to generate income,
which is reinvested for the development of our own staff.
The training department (Academy) is an accredited City and Guilds centre which means it is
able to deliver Qualification Credit Framework (QCF) training and development for a range of
staff. This is particularly useful in assisting staff who work in bands one to four to develop
and advance their careers. For example, apprentices are able to progress to become health
care assistants (QCF level 2) and then on to become senior health care assistants (level 3)
and assistant practitioners (level 4). Academy staff are involved in writing CQF level 5 units
(equivalent to a foundation degree) for the development of non-registered staff. This will
ensure YDH is able to influence the quality and flexibility of our future workforce.
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Supporting the learning and development of professionally qualified staff is a significant role
of the Academy. Medical students and trainee doctors are all supported through the
Academy, benefitting by, for example, access to a range of on-line learning and simulation
training.
Other Information: Staff Awards
Helen Ryan @helenydh Oct 22
@YeovilHospital many very well deserved winners at the icare awards
well done!!

During 2013 we held our iCARE Awards ceremony, which was a colourful and exciting event
of great celebration. Around 250 people attended, most of them staff and volunteers who
had been nominated in one of the following nine award categories:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Leadership Award
Innovation Award
Apprentice of the Year Award
Patient Safety Award
Volunteer of the Year Award
Team of the Year Award
Patient Experience Award
Chairman’s Award
Lifetime Achievement Award

Every nomination was judged by an independent panel, which included members of our
Council of Governors, the local media, and NHS commissioners. The people who won an
award were presented with a certificate and a crystal trophy.
Helen Ryan @helenydh Dec 2
Excellent meeting with the SW AHSN @YeovilHospital, a chance to celebrate some of our innovation
and pt safety work plus iCARE of course!

Occupational Health
Our Occupational Health Department plays a key role in supporting the health and wellbeing
of staff and providing advice on health, work and wellbeing factors affecting attendance. This
includes physical and psychological health, investigations and treatments in place or
planned, and advice in timescales and adjustments over supporting a return to work.
Additionally, the team also advises whether there is an underlying medical condition that
could be improved through medical intervention, and the disability section of the Equality Act
(2010) should be considered applicable.
To support employees with musculoskeletal problems, a fast-track physiotherapy service is
available to all staff and provides a telephone triage service, which is normally available on
the first day of sickness absence, to advise on early injury management. Fast track
physiotherapy assessment and treatment is also available where required and a recurrent
injury management clinic is also accessible. The aim of the service is to ensure timely
intervention to address musculoskeletal problems at the earliest opportunity and, ultimately,
facilitate a timely and more effective employee return to work.
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Employees also have access to annual flu jabs, stop smoking clinics and may see the YDH
counsellor to discuss in confidence matters affecting them in their home or work life.
Sickness Absence Data
The sickness absence rate was 3.5%, against a locally established target of 3%. Although
higher than we would like, YDH compares favourably with national and regional NHS
sickness absence rates, with the national average at 4.3% and the South West average at
4.4%. The Trust is working hard to reduce sickness absence to 3% and we have developed
a health and wellbeing programme to support staff in the workplace and to help ensure
improved levels of attendance are achieved and maintained. Note: This is based on
December 2013 sickness absence data, which is the most recent available
Equality, Diversity and Human Rights
As a public sector organisation, YDH is statutorily required to ensure that equality, diversity
and human rights are embedded into all our functions and activities as per the Equality Act
2010, the Human Rights Act 1998 and the NHS Constitution. In all aspects of our business
we aim to:
•
•
•

eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Equality Act 2010
advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not
foster good relations between people who share protected characteristics and those
who do not

The nine protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

age
disability
gender reassignment
marriage and civil partnership
pregnancy and maternity
race
religion and belief
sex
sexual orientation

YDH is committed to shaping its service based on the varied needs, expectations and
experiences of the local population, and to provide services that are relevant, appropriate
and responsive to individuals.
The Equality and Diversity Policy sets out the aims and objectives of the Trust, and also the
responsibilities of various parties in maintaining and promoting equality and diversity. YDH
aims to develop, promote, deliver and evaluate its services, information and employment
opportunities without discrimination and to regularly monitor and review the impact of
services and procedures with the involvement of different communities to make changes to
help meet this aim.
Equal Opportunities and Applicants and Employees with a Disability
YDH is a Disability Symbol User and as such has made five pledges in relation to disabled
applicants and employees:
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•
•
•
•
•

we guarantee to interview all applicants with a disability who meet the essential criteria
for a job vacancy and to consider them on their abilities
we will discuss with employees who have disabilities what we and they can do to make
sure they can develop and use their abilities
if employees develop a disability, we will make every effort to ensure that they stay in
employment
we will take action to ensure that all employees develop the appropriate level of
disability awareness needed to make our commitment work
we will review the five commitments every year to see what has been achieved, plan
ways to improve and let employees know about progress and future plans

We remain committed to these five pledges and will continue to seek ways, with the input of
employees, in which we can improve the delivery and implementation of these pledges.
Equality Delivery System
We believe that anyone who is an employee of the Trust, or who uses NHS services as a
patient, has a right to be protected from discrimination and to be treated fairly. To this end,
and in common with other NHS trusts across the country, YDH has made use of the Equality
Delivery System (EDS) which is a tool that supports us ensure that, year on year,
improvements are made both to the way in which patients and members of the public access
our services, and to the working lives of staff.
In November 2013 a refreshed and streamlined EDS2 was launched by NHS England,
underpinned by evidence of the original EDS implementation and the results achieved.
EDS2 continues to prompt the partnership working that has been developed with patients,
the public and staff so equality performance can be continually reviewed and future priorities
and actions identified. The four goals of EDS2 are to achieve better health outcomes,
improved patient access and experience, a representative and supported workforce, and
inclusive leadership.
Equality and diversity is embedded within all of the services provided at YDH and equality
impact assessments are routinely conducted when new policies are created.
Evidence / Data Gathering
A review of evidence gathering systems will be arranged to ensure sufficient measurement
of performance against EDS2 principles. YDH collects data relating to inpatients and
outpatients regarding all nine protected characteristics set out under the Equality Act.
Equality and Diversity Activities
A revision of YDH’s mandatory training and induction programmes is underway and a
distinct equality and diversity training session will be included for all staff.
Consistent with other health providers and key stakeholders in Somerset, we participated in
a Somerset CCG led equality delivery event which showcased various initiatives within the
hospital such as cultural diversity, dementia care ward developments and the new ‘front of
house’ team project, further information about which can be found in the Quality Report.
A joint training event for managers is being arranged for autumn 2014. The content will
include recruitment, supporting staff, patients and visitors and equality impact assessment
when setting up services.
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A new (and ongoing) campaign of training for hospital volunteers has been introduced. This
campaign titled “#facetoaname” helps staff clearly identify dementia patients coming into
hospital so they can better relate to their needs. Following the training, volunteers will sit
with patients and carers and build some identity documents with them, incorporating
photographs and narrative.
We are in discussions with the various disability, cultural and community support groups to
gain insight into their opinions of access to the various departments in the hospital and the
facilities. In addition, the YDH equality and diversity team will be implementing two new
initiatives in order to encourage staff and service users involvement in equality and diversity
throughout the organisation. These are equality and diversity focus groups and equality and
diversity inclusion drop in sessions, which will provide staff with a forum to discuss issues
relevant to them and their day to work day environment.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Jan 13
Email from ward sister telling me abt housekeeper who learnt enough sign language to offer
food/drink to deaf/mute pt. Great work #iCARE

Health and Safety
YDH has continued to make health and safety improvements. A replacement fire alarm
system commenced in August 2012 and will be ongoing for several years. Staff training is a
high priority and there continues to be an increase in the number fire wardens, first aiders
and COSHH monitors in every department, with evacuation training being rolled out to all
clinical staff working above ground level in the hospital. Evacuation chairs have been
installed in key areas and we have purchased a second evacuation hover mattress. The
Health and Safety Committee met regularly during 2013/14 and reviewed risks and
prioritised expenditure of its budget to ensure they were addressed.
Health and safety is the responsibility of all staff, and each year departments submit a selfassessment audit to advise on any improvements and reduce risks. These audits have led
to a number of improvements and have made the hospital a safer place for patients, visitors,
members of the public, and staff.
All staff receive a Display Screen Equipment (DSE) assessment to ensure they are using
equipment safely, and any special equipment required is made available with the assistance
of Occupational Health. Free eye tests are available on site for all DSE users.
Policies to Counter Fraud and Corruption
The Trust’s counter fraud arrangements comply with the Secretary of State’s directions on
countering fraud. All anti-fraud and corruption work is overseen by the Chief Finance and
Commercial Officer who is regularly updated on the progress of anti-fraud work within YDH
through liaison with, and reports produced by, the Trust’s Local Counter Fraud Specialist
(LCFS) who is employed through Secure. The LCFS provides regular progress reports and
concluding investigation reports to the Audit Committee. The Trust’s policies and procedures
are set out in the Local Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy.
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6. PERFORMANCE AND REGULATORY RATINGS
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 established changes to the way healthcare is
regulated. It provided Monitor, as the sector regulator in England, with new duties and
powers. These changes included the introduction of a licence which sets out specific
conditions that providers of NHS services must meet in order to operate. This new licensing
regime replaced the Terms of Authorisation for Foundation Trusts.
On 27 August 2013, Monitor issued the Risk Assessment Framework, which replaced the
Compliance Framework. It sets out their approach to overseeing the compliance of
foundation trusts and providers of commissioner requested services (CRS) under the new
licensing rules to demonstrate when there is:
•
•

a significant risk to the financial sustainability of a provider of key NHS services
(CRS) which endangers the continuity of those services
poor governance at an NHS foundation trust

These aspects are assessed separately using new risk categories and result in foundation
trusts being assigned two ratings. The purpose of these ratings is to highlight where there is
potential cause for concern but do not necessarily represent a breach to the terms of licence
or trigger regulatory action.
Continuity of Services Risk Rating
This new continuity of services risk rating is not calculated and used in the same way as the
financial risk rating (FRR) that was applied previously through Monitor’s Compliance
Framework. Whereas the FRR included five individual financial ratios intended to identify
breaches of trusts’ terms of authorisation on financial grounds, the continuity of services
rating uses two common ratios to indicate the financial robustness of the organisation in
order to assess the level of risk to the on-going availability of key services. These two
measures are:
•
•

liquidity: days of operating costs held in cash or cash-equivalent forms, including
wholly committed lines of credit available for drawdown
capital servicing capacity: the degree to which the organisation’s generated income
covers its financing obligations

The overall continuity of services rating is calculated by taking the average of the two
measures of financial robustness, rounded up. For example, scoring 3 for liquidity and 2 for
capital servicing capacity will result in an overall score of 3.
Governance Risk Rating
The governance rating represents an enhancement of the role previously undertaken by
Monitor under the Compliance Framework. There are three categories to the new
governance rating applicable to all foundation trusts. Where there are no grounds for
concern, Monitor will assign a green rating. Where Monitor has identified a concern but not
yet taken action, it will replace the green rating with a written description of the issue and the
action it is considering. A red rating will be assigned if Monitor is taking regulatory action.
Previously, under the Compliance Framework, the possible governance risk ratings were:
red, amber/red, amber/green or green.
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The tables below compare YDH’s 2013/14 risk ratings against the position in 2012/13.
2013/14
Annual Plan
2013/14

Q1 2013/14

Q2 2013/14

Q3 2013/14

Q4 2013/14

Under the Compliance Framework
Financial
Risk Rating
Governance
Risk Rating

3

3

3

Green

Green

Green

Under the Risk Assessment Framework
Continuity
of Service
Rating
Governance
Risk Rating

4

4

3

Green

Green

Green

2012/13
Annual Plan
2012/13

Q1 2012/13

Q2 2012/13

Q3 2012/13

Q4 2012/13

Under the Compliance Framework
Financial
Risk Rating
Governance
Risk Rating

3

4

3

3

3

Green

Green

Amber/Green

Green

Amber/Green

Financial Risk and Continuity of Service Rating
Under the Compliance Framework, YDH maintained an overall financial risk rating of 3.
Under the Risk Assessment Framework, YDH achieved an overall continuity of services
rating of 4. The Trust is planning to achieve continuity of service risk ratings of 3 in 2014/15
and 2 in 2015/16 (forecast) and has submitted plans to Monitor on this basis.
Governance Risk Rating
YDH maintained a green governance rating throughout the year. Unfortunately, however, in
Q3 YDH did not achieve the target for 2 week waits in breast screening referrals. It was the
only quarter in which YDH did not achieve the target, predominately due to patient choice.
The Trust reviewed the 14 patients who breached the target and all had been offered first
appointments within 14 days but they were unable to attend. Alternative appointments were
subsequently arranged outside 14 days.
Serious Incidents Involving Data Loss or Confidentiality Breach
There were no such incidents during 2013/14.
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7. STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
OF YEOVIL DISTRICT HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION
TRUST NHS FOUNDATION TRUST
The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive is the accounting officer of the NHS
foundation trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting officer, including their
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by Monitor.
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed YDH to prepare for each financial year a
statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The
accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of YDH and of its income and expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and
cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements
of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
•
•
•
•
•

observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis
make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis
state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material
departures in the financial statements
ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation,
delegated authorities and guidance
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS foundation trust and
to enable him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the
above mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the NHS foundation trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set
out in Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
Paul Mears

Chief Executive, 21 May 2014
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8. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Annual Governance Statement - 2013/14
Scope of Responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control
that supports the achievement of the NHS foundation trust’s policies, aims and objectives,
whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible
for ensuring that the NHS foundation trust is administered prudently and economically and
that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities
as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust (“YDH”), to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system
of internal control has been in place at YDH for the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
Capacity to Handle Risk
YDH has a comprehensive, system for managing risks associated with the achievement of
its strategic and organisational objectives and compliance with the terms of its licence with
Monitor.
Leadership
As Accounting Officer, I am ultimately responsible for the management of risk. The Board of
Directors (the “Board”), collectively and individually, ensures that appropriate structures and
robust systems of internal control and management are in place.
The Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance is the designated executive director with
Board level accountably for clinical quality, safety and risk management. The Medical
Director supports this role. YDH has a designated Risk Manager within the Clinical
Governance Department.
The Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and the Non-Clinical Risk
Assurance Committee are YDH’s strategic risk assurance committees chaired by nonexecutive directors. Independently they report to the Board with assurance on the
appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and internal control processes.
YDH has mechanisms to report serious incidents through the National Reporting and
Learning Service (NRLS) and to act on safety alerts, recommendations and guidelines made
by all relevant central bodies such as NHS England, the Medical Healthcare Regulatory
Authority (MHRA) and the National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE).
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Training
There is an in-house programme of risk management training which is designed to equip
staff with the necessary skills to enable them to manage risk effectively.
The induction programme ensures that all new staff are provided with details of YDH’s risk
management systems and processes and is augmented by local induction organised by line
managers. This includes the comprehensive induction of all junior doctors with regard to key
policies, standards and practice prior to commencement in clinical areas. Mandatory training
reflects essential training needs, and includes risk management processes such as fire,
health and safety, manual handling, resuscitation, infection control, safeguarding patients,
and information governance. E-learning and workbooks support this programme. Skills and
competencies are also assessed for medical device equipment and for blood transfusion to
ensure safety in care.
Root cause analysis training is provided to staff members who are required to complete
investigations. Incident reporting training and support is provided to managers and training
about systems for managing safety alerts is provided on a needs basis. YDH presents
learning from national and internal reports and from external and internal investigations at
the Board and at assurance committees. Learning from incidents, complaints and claims is
presented through the Clinical Governance Delivery Committee which supports the risk
management approach through identifying improvement opportunities. This learning is
cascaded out through monthly governance meetings with quarterly Trust-wide multi
professional learning events held.
Paul Mears @Pauldmears Sep 30
Met complainant last week today rec'd email "very appreciative of open & committed way u dealt with
the issues raised" why listening so important

The Risk and Control Framework
The Risk Management Strategy underpins the Quality Strategy. The risk management
approach of setting objectives and then identifying, analysing, prioritising and managing risk
is embedded throughout the organisation.
The process starts with the systematic identification of risks throughout the organisation via
structured risk assessments. Identified risks are documented on risk registers. These risks
are then analysed in order to determine their relative likelihood and consequence using a
risk matrix scoring. The responsibility for managing risks is in accordance with the
prioritisation and thresholds set out in the Risk Management Strategy. Risks scoring 6 and
under are managed by the area in which they are identified whilst strategic business unit
teams review and assess risks rated 8 and above. Managers implement action plans and
review the risks for which they are responsible in line with the review dates set in the risk
register. Achieving control of the higher scoring risks is given priority over lower scoring risks
for financial and management considerations. Risks scored at 12 and above are captured
within a corporate risk register and monitored by the assurance committees and the Board
on a quarterly basis.
The Hospital Management Team (HMT) is YDH’s operational management committee. HMT
is a sub-committee of the Board and its membership includes corporate directors and
strategic business unit management teams providing the leadership for management of risk.
Directors of the strategic business units, supported by associate medical directors and
associate directors of nursing, are responsible for managing risk which is cascaded through

51

the organisational structure. Risk registers are held for each of the strategic business units
which include all operational risks.
Risk Management Activity
In 2013/14, YDH has taken a range of actions to reduce specific risks and to provide levels
of assurance. Examples include:
•
•

•

the active management of clinical risk to oversee a reduction in pressure ulcers,
patient falls that cause harm and hospital acquired infections
management of risks to data security through the Information Governance Committee,
which reports to the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee, in accordance with the
Risk Management Strategy. The Senior Information Risk Owner is the Chief Financial
and Commercial Officer. The Information Governance Toolkit remains an essential
tool in monitoring progress against national standards and assessment of information
security is undertaken annually as part of this process
equality impact assessments that are carried out on policies and procedures, training
needs and new developments on healthcare facilities

Quality Governance
In terms of quality governance, YDH’s Quality Strategy is aimed at achieving excellence in
clinical care. Quality Accounts have been prepared which set out the progress made in
areas of patient safety, clinical outcomes and patient experience. Patient safety
improvement work is monitored through the Clinical Governance Delivery Committee which
reviews and monitors data in the form of metrics. Information on quality and patient safety
are received monthly by the Board.
Incident reporting forms part of the monitoring process to identify errors and risks which is
analysed for trends to prevent reoccurrence. Information is used across YDH from ward
level to the Board. Where investigations are triggered these are reviewed by the Clinical
Governance team. Staff are encouraged to report incidents and support is provided by
managers and through training.
To enable YDH to ensure compliance with Care Quality Commission (CQC) registration the
Board assurance committees have reviewed the Quality and Risk Profile (QRP) and the
Intelligent Monitoring Report alongside the Assurance Framework. The CQC Essential
Standards of Quality and Safety are assessed through operational leads and monitored for
assurance purposes.
YDH is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.
Corporate Governance Arrangements
YDH is subject to the recommendations of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance
(‘NHS Code’). This closely follows the UK Corporate Governance Code and encourages
Boards to conduct a formal evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and
directors.
Accordingly, during 2013/14, Ernst & Young LLP were commissioned to undertake a review
of the performance and effectiveness of the Board and its committees. The
recommendations of this review were presented to the Board in March 2014 with the overall
findings being very positive in acknowledging that the Board and its committees are functioning well,
although there are some opportunities for improvement. An action plan will be put in place to

ensure implementation of the recommendations. This will include:
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•
•
•
•

clarifying the roles, responsibilities and reporting structures of the committees of the
Boards and revising their terms of reference, including membership, quorum etc
establishing a rolling agenda programme for the Board and its committees
establishing a professional development programme and corporate development
programme for the Board
revising the arrangements for the Remuneration Committee, which will now be chaired
by the Chairman of the Audit Committee

A review has also been undertaken by the internal auditors, BDO, into YDH’s governance
arrangements. Overall, the review identified that the governance processes are essentially
robust and that the chief components of good governance (such as strong leadership,
challenge by non-executive directors and focus on risk) are in place.
However, the review also identified that YDH’s governance arrangements are in need of
updating and a more coherent structure required, particularly around quality of services.
Areas that are being addressed include:
•
•
•
•
•

redesigning the Board committee structure
enhancing the scope of the Audit Committee so that it takes an overarching view of
risk and governance
clarifying links between the Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and the NonClinical Risk Assurance Committee
establishing a Quality Committee where quality issues can be discussed as part of the
formal process in order to provide the relevant assurances to the Board and its
committees
clarifying the roles, responsibilities and reporting structures of the committees of the
Board

The review acknowledged there is evidence of improvement in Board reporting and decision
making, stating that ‘the best indicator that the Trust’s arrangements work in practice is that
it has been performing well on a range of financial, operational and quality indicators.’
Operational performance is reviewed by HMT and the Operating & Financial Performance
Overview, which has undergone significant improvement during the year, is presented to the
Board on a monthly basis for scrutiny and oversight.
Key Stakeholder Engagement – Risk Management
There are close working relationships between YDH and its key public stakeholders,
including governors, Monitor, NHS England, and the Somerset and Dorset clinical
commissioning groups. Where specific issues arise these are addressed on a partnership
basis through ongoing dialogue, consensus and mutual support. Governors are invited to
observe each meeting of the Board and its assurance committees and to participate in the
functioning of these committees.
Control Measures
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme
rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with
the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
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Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality,
diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.
YDH has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans are in place in
accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, as based on
UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this organisation’s obligations under the
Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.
Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Use of Resources
YDH’s budget for 2013/14 and three year financial plans were discussed and approved by
the Board in May 2013. Overall performance is monitored via the Operating and Financial
Performance Overview at the monthly meetings of the Board. Operational management and
the co-ordination of services are delivered by the strategic business units which comprise
executive directors, associate medical directors and associate nursing directors.
Performance is reviewed weekly by the HMT.
During the year, YDH has established a Project Management Office to lead and coordinate
change programmes to achieve improvements in quality, productivity and economic
efficiency.
The YDH Internal Audit operational Plan includes sections on financial assurance on
managing resources effectively. The findings of the internal audits are reported to the Board
via the Audit Committee.
Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each
financial year. Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and
content of annual Quality Reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The Board receives monthly reports providing an overview of the quality of care provided to
ensure the accuracy of data throughout the year. Data quality is reviewed monthly by the
Clinical Governance and Information teams through review of data recording systems and
cross checks of information through audit data. This information is also reviewed through
strategic business unit meetings on a monthly basis relevant to their specific areas. The
Clinical Governance Assurance Committee seeks assurance about the quality of care
provided and reports directly to the Board. Operational leads report to the Clinical
Governance Assurance Committee to enable the opportunity for debate and scrutiny about
quality measures and risks faced by the teams.
During 2013/14, YDH appointed an Associate Director for Patient Safety and Quality and
patient safety leads to further enhance safety and quality improvement. Quality
improvement work has taken place during 2013/14 based around the work of the South
West Patient Safety Improvement Programme. Clinical governance arrangements are in
place for monitoring the quality of care provided from a variety of sources. Audits and data
collection take place against the quality measures, NICE guidance is measured and
monitored through the strategic business units. External sources of information are used to
inform the quality reports, including inspections and peer reviews, the HSMR data from Dr
Foster Intelligence. Quality measures and CQUIN’s have been agreed with the Somerset
CCG and these have been reported in year through performance and quality monitoring
meetings. Together these arrangements provide assurance that the information provided in
the Annual Quality Report provides a balanced view.
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Data is provided to the strategic business unit management teams by staff trained and
experienced in data analysis. There are policies in place to guide management of systems,
including, but not exclusively, complaints, incident reporting, audit, infection prevention and
control and litigation claims.
External assurance is gained through the annual internal audit programme and by the work
of the external auditors.
Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed
by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical
leads within YDH who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework. I have drawn on the content of the quality report attached to this
annual report and other performance information available to me. My review is also informed
by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports.
I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the Board, the Audit Committee, Clinical Governance
Assurance Committee and the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee and a plan to
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
The process for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control
has been in accordance with the YDH’s Risk Management Strategy This provides for clear
structures and processes for risk management, and for distinct arrangements for providing
internal and external assurance on the effectiveness of this system.
The Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and Non-Clinical Risk
Assurance Committee provide the assurance element of the system of internal control. The
assurance committees jointly undertake reviews of the Assurance Framework in respect of
their assigned risk review areas, reporting directly to the Board.
The internal audit programme was agreed in 2013/14 and the programme has been adapted
in year to adjust for the risk profile. This process, in conjunction with reviews of the
Assurance Framework has put in place a robust review mechanism for setting and reviewing
principal risks. Audit reports are reported in a timely manner to their respective assurance
committees for review and monitoring of actions.
YDH received a number of internal audit reports during the year which identified issues to be
addressed. The majority of the recommendations either have been implemented or are in
progress for implementation and assurances have been received that systems are in place
to ensure these are completed.
The Clinical Governance Delivery Committee monitors clinical audit reports and data
presented through work streams to review the effectiveness of the Quality Strategy in order
to produce the quality accounts.
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Conclusion
I am satisfied that effective systems are in place to manage risk and that the culture of risk
management is embedded in YDH, at every level in the management structure. There are no
significant internal control issues which have been identified during the course of the year or
in relation to this year-end statement.
Paul Mears

Chief Executive, 21 May 2014

56

Quality
Account
2013/14

Contents
Part One: Statement on Quality from the Chief Executive of Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust on Behalf of the Board
1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5
1.6

Statement from the Chief Executive
Our Vision and values
Trust Income against Commissioning for Quality and Innovation Payment Framework.
Our Corporate Objectives
Staff Survey 2013
National Inpatients Survey 2013

Part Two: Priorities for Improvement and Statements of Assurance from the Board
2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7
2.8
2.9
2.10
2.11
2.12

Priorities for Improving Quality
Statements of Assurance from the Board
Participation in National Clinical Audit and Confidential Enquiries
NICE Quality Standards
Participation in Local Clinical Audits
Research and Development
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation
Review of Our Services
Registration and Compliance
National and Contractual Quality Standards
Data Quality
Information Governance

Part Three: Other Information
3.1
3.2.
3.2.1
3.2.2
3.2.3
3.2.4
3.2.5
3.2.6
3.3
3.3.1
3.3.2
3.3.3
3.4
3.4.1
3.4.2
3.4.3
3.4.4
3.5

Performance against Quality Priorities for 2013/14
Patient Safety
Never Events
Learning Lessons
Reducing Patient Falls
Preventing Venous Thrombo-embolism
Medication Errors
Patient Safety Thermometer
Clinical Effectiveness
HMSR and SHMI
Patient Reported Outcome Measures
Ensuring Compliance with NICE Guidance
Patient Experience
Patient Surveys
Complaints and PALS
Friends and Family Test
Dementia
Conclusion and Independent Auditor’s Report to the Governors on the Quality Report

Annexes:
A. Statements from Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group, Somerset Healthwatch and Somerset Health
and Wellbeing Board
B. Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the Quality Report

Part 1: Statement on Quality from the Chief Executive of
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on Behalf of
the Board

1.1

Statement from the Chief Executive, Paul Mears

Welcome to Yeovil District Hospital (“YDH”) NHS Foundation Trust’s Annual Quality Account
2013/14. Quality accounts are an important way for local NHS services to report on quality and show
improvements in the services they deliver to local communities. Quality of services is measured by
looking at patient safety, the effectiveness of treatments that patients receive and their experiences
and feedback about the care provided.
The provision of high quality care is at the heart of everything we do at YDH.   This means our
patients are provided with the best possible care by well trained staff and are treated with dignity
and respect. Our focus is to consistently deliver excellent outcomes of care and ensure we collect
accurate information about how patients experience our services.
The Board has continued to focus on improving the quality, safety and effectiveness of the care
provided to patients at YDH.  Over the year, YDH has undertaken significant work in line with the
priorities it set for 2013/14 and:
•

there have been reductions in HSMR and SHMI from the 2012/13 baseline and these are
now some of the lowest in the region

•

maintained active participation in the regional patient safety collaborative

•

achieved an in year  reduction of 40%  in hospital acquired pressure ulcers

•

reduced hospital acquired infection rates

•

achieved an overall reduction in the number of patients falling in hospital

•

developed a local indicator to monitor timeliness of discharge with particular focus on 		
discharging patients before midday

•

following a review of the PALS and complaints process, further developed its approach 		
to accessible and timely help for patients and visitors including the creation of a front of 		

           house team to increase the visibility of staff who can assist and answer enquiries in the
main reception areas. The launch of a new system and approach to responding to 		
concerns has been supported by our participation in a countywide peer review of complaints
and the learning from this will be used to inform further developments during 2014/15

Following the publication of the Inquiry into Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust (Francis), the
Berwick and Keogh reviews on patient safety and the Clwyd Report into complaints and patient
experience, we have reviewed our areas of focus for improvement and are developing a strategy
that incorporates the relevant recommendations, including safe staffing levels, and plans to develop
and implement models to provide enhanced seven day services which will be a key enabler to
preventing admissions at weekends and improve access to high quality end of life care out of hours
and at weekends.
This report does not include the entire work we have undertaken on improving quality but it outlines
the activities that we prioritised during 2013/14 and the progress we have made in respect of
improving the quality of care and patient safety.   We therefore trust that it provides an accurate
account of quality activity at YDH and demonstrates our commitment to putting the quality of care
for our patients at the heart of all that we do.
On behalf of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, I confirm that to the best of my knowledge
the information contained within this report is accurate.

Paul Mears, Chief Executive

1.2

Our Vision and Values

Providing high quality clinical care and excellent patient experience are among the Trust’s top
priorities. We are proud of our iCARE principles, initially developed by our nursing staff, and which
now underpin all that we do within the hospital; whether it is providing a life-saving treatment, how
staff relate to one another or a warm welcome at reception. The iCARE principles arose from a
review of complaints which identified common issues and which formed the basis of our values:

i Treating our patients and staff as individuals
C Effective Communication
A Positive Attitude
R Respect for patients, carers and staff
E Environment conducive to care and recovery

All staff are introduced to iCARE at the Trust Induction training where the expectations and standards
outlined by iCARE are shared with all staff. In addition, the iCARE principles are included in staff
appraisal and in job descriptions and are reiterated in policies, procedures and training programmes.
The main focus however, is to evidence these values in our daily work and in our care of patients,
their visitors and our staff.

1.3

Trust Income against Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN)
Payment Framework.
A proportion of Yeovil District Hospital Foundation Trust’s income in 2013/14 was conditional
on achieving quality improvement and innovation goals agreed between Somerset CCG and
Dorset CCG and any person or body they entered into contract, agreement or arrangement
with for the provision of relevant healthcare services, through the Commissioning for Quality
and Innovation payment framework.
Further details of the agreed goals for 2013/14 and for the following 12 month period are
available electronically at www.yeovilhospital.nhs.uk

1.4

Our Corporate Objectives

YDH’s strategic objectives are designed to provide focus on quality, sustainability and delivery across
all aspects of the organisation. The objectives build on those from 2012/13 and are outlined below:
•

Patient Safety, Quality and Clinical Effectiveness

•

Patient Experience

•

Delivering Value (Best Use of Resources)

•

Our People and Culture (Engaging Staff)

•

Innovation and New Models of Care

•

Partnerships and External Relationships

These six objectives will be supported by a number of key deliverables which we will commit
to in 2014/15 and further develop in 2015/16.

1

Improvement and Development Priorities
Secure continual reduction in avoidable patient harm

2

Establish a substantive Patient Experience Team and increase the range of
opportunities for patients and staff to provide feedback on their experiences
of the hospital, including further roll out of the Friends and Family Test

3

Increase opportunities for staff engagement through the delivery of a
corporate programme of work

4

Further develop and increase 7 day working across a number of aspects of
Trust services such as Pharmacy and Radiology (Xray)

5

Continue with the procurement and implementation of electronic health
records and use of IT systems to enhance care delivery for both patients
and staff

6

Further develop opportunities to integrate care between hospital, GPs and
Community services as part of the Symphony Project

1.5

Staff Survey
The 2013 Staff Survey has demonstrated that the Trust has improved in some areas, while
there is a need for further improvement in others. Our top five ranking scores where we are
rated higher than other similar Trusts relate to the availability of hand-washing materials; staff
reporting errors, near misses or incidents; low levels of staff experiencing physical violence,
experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse or feeling under pressure to attend work when
feeling unwell. We are proud that for all these indicators, our score ranks higher than the
average acute Trust.

We are aware that some indicators highlight a need for improvement. These include staff
receiving training in equality and diversity and health and safety; staff having well-structured
appraisals; staff feeling satisfied with the quality of work and patient care they are able to
deliver; and staff believing they can contribute towards improvements at work. Our staff are
important to us and we value the extra efforts many of them make to provide a safe and
high quality experience for our patients. Increasing staff engagement with the delivery of
improvement to services is a key priority for the coming year.

In response to the survey we are currently undertaking work in two key areas to improve our
engagement with staff and accordingly our Staff Survey results.

•

Each Strategic Business Unit has been provided with details of the Staff Survey results
for the departments within the Unit and they are working, with the support of the Human
Resources Team, to address areas requiring improvement.

•

A corporate staff engagement programme is being developed to enhance communication
with our staff and maintain morale. Both these interventions will be monitored on a
regular basis to ensure progress is being made with the aim of achieving an improved
score next year.

1.6

National Inpatient Survey 2013
The findings from the 2013 inpatient survey were published by the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) in March 2014. The survey asked the views of adults who had stayed at least one
night as an inpatient during July 2013. The patients were asked what they thought about
different aspects of the care and treatment they received.

A total of 850 patients were sent the questionnaire and 446 responded, giving a rate of 56%,
(49% nationally).  A total of 60 questions were comparable with the 2012 survey, of these the
scores increased in 40, decreased in 15 and stayed the same in 5 questions; however in only
six questions was the increase/decrease significant.  There were positive increases for the
following questions:
•

Were you offered a choice of food?

•

When you had important questions to ask a doctor, did you get answers you could
understand?

•

Do you feel you got enough emotional support from hospital staff during your stay?

•

Were you given enough privacy when discussing your condition or treatment?

•

Did a member of staff explain the risks and benefits of the operation/procedure?

•

During your hospital stay, were you ever asked to give your views on the quality of
care?

The overall results of this survey were positive, showing a consistent level of satisfaction
when compared with previous rounds of the survey and in line with the majority of other
participating trusts.
Improvement is required when explaining to patients how to take their medication and
improving the signage of single sex bathroom facilities to further promote privacy and dignity.
The Trust has already commenced work on these areas.

2.

Part Two: Priorities for improvement and statements of
assurance from the Board
In part two of our report we set out our quality priorities for the coming year 2014/15 and
we include statements of assurance from the Board regarding the quality of the services we
provide.

Throughout the year, the Trust has engaged with the Clinical Governance Assurance Committee
(CGAC), Council of Governors, Somerset and Dorset Clinical Commissioning Groups, the
South Somerset GP Federation, the Local Medical Committee, the Patients Association and
the Patient Engagement Group (Patient Voice) to discuss priorities for 2014/15.

The Trust has considered the Quality Strategy (2011-2014) in its deliberations, as well as
national reports including recommendations from the Report of the Mid Staffordshire NHS
Foundation Trust Public Inquiry (Francis, 2013), Review into the Quality of Care and Treatment
provided by 14 Hospital Trusts in England (Keogh, 2013), A promise to learn – a commitment
to act: Improving the Safety of Patients in England (Berwick, 2013), A Review of the NHS
Hospitals Complaints System Putting Patients Back in the Picture (Clywd, 2013) and the
Cavendish Report (Cavendish, 2013). To this end, the Board will review the Trust’s position
against these documents to inform a revised Quality Strategy for 2014 onwards.

2.1

Priorities Improving Quality
YDH prides itself on keeping the quality of care at the forefront of service delivery and will
ensure the safety, experience and effectiveness of care is of the highest possible standard.
In 2011 the Trust developed a three year Quality Strategy, in which it set out key objectives
to deliver quality improvement. Following this work the Board has reveiwed its key priorities.
(table overleaf)

Priorities for 2013/14

Priorities for 2014/15

Priority 1

Priority 1

To reduce the HSMR and SHMI from the Ensure regular review of staffing levels in
2012/13 baseline.
line with national guidance
Priority 2

Priority 2

Maintain participation in the regional patient Further develop the Trust’s Patient Safety
safety collaborative
Improvement Plan and collaboration with
other organisations to implement best
practice (SaferCare SW)
Priority 3

Priority 3

Reduce the number of hospital acquired Maintain the reduction in hospital acquired
pressure ulcers.
pressure ulcers and reduce against the
outturn of 2013/14 by a further 20%
Priority 4

Priority 4

Reduce cases of healthcare associated Maintain low rates of hospital acquired
infections including MRSA and Clostridium infections
difficile.
Priority 5

Priority 5

Reduce patients falling in hospital, including Reduce the number of patients falling in
those who fall more than once and where a hospital by 10% compared with the outturn
fall results in harm.
of 2013/14
Priority 6

Priority 6

Develop a local indicator to monitor Implement electronic discharge summaries
timeliness of discharge with particular focus to include medicines reconciliation at the
on discharging patients before midday.
point of discharge and facilitate an increase
in patients’ satisfaction with the discharge
process.
Priority 7

Priority 7

Improve the management of concerns Patients, carers and members of the public
and complaints to improve timeliness of will be treated as equal partners and have
response to patients
confidence that their feedback is being
listened to and has improved delivery of
services  
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Statements of Assurance from the Board

Progress against the 2013/14 key performance indicators was monitored via a dashboard
presented to the Board. The following section outlines the indicators, explaining the
rationale for their inclusion and year on year progress against the measures.

Priority 1 – To reduce the HSMR and SHMI from the 2012/13 baseline.
The Trust has consistently reduced its Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio from the
2011/12 position of 100.4 to an HSMR of 85.51 at the time of writing. The organisation
continues to undertake mortality reviews of all hospital deaths to identify opportunities for
learning and a sample strategy is utilised to monitor the rates of harm using the Global
Trigger Tool. A total reduction of 15% has been achieved against the 2011/12 outturn.
Priority 2 - Maintain participation in the regional patient safety collaborative
The regional Patient Safety Collaborative (previously Southwest Quality and Patient Safety
Programme) was re-launched for all participants as Safer Care South West with renewed focus
on reducing incidents of avoidable harm. The Trust has been a member of this programme
since its inception in 2009 however there has been increased focus within the organisation on
use of quality improvement methods in key areas, including: recognition and rapid treatment
of sepsis, reduction in hospital acquired pressure ulcers, reduction in inpatient falls and safer
management of medicines.  The Trust has fielded teams of staff to all regional workshops
during the year and has a number of work streams engaging members of the multi-disciplinary
team to monitor progress and drive reliable improvement.

Priority 3 - Reduce the number of hospital acquired pressure ulcers
During 2013/14 the Trust achieved a 40% reduction in hospital acquired pressure ulcers.  This
reflects the commitment of staff to reduce avoidable harm.  The Trust invested considerably
in additional pressure relieving equipment, training of staff and use of intentional rounding
to reduce the risk of pressure ulcers. On-going training and awareness with staff continues
across the Trust in order to achieve the 2014/2015 CQUIN target of a further 20% reduction,
and staff continue to participate in collaborative events across the region to learn and share
best practice. See graph overleaf.

Actual number
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Priority 4 - Reduce cases of healthcare associated infections including MRSA and
Clostridium difficile.
The Trust has made significant progress against its targets for MRSA bloodstream infections
and Clostridium difficile associated diarrhoea.   There were no cases of hospital acquired
MRSA during 2013/14 and the Trusts’ aim of zero tolerance was achieved. The national
target of no more than 9 cases of Clostridium difficile infection was achieved with only 3
assessed as attributable to hospital care.  The figures are submitted to the national Health
Care Associated Infection (HCAI) data capture system and are monitored by commissioners
and Public Health England as national contract requirements.

Priority 5- Reduce patients falling in hospital, including those who fall more than once
and where a fall results in harm.
The Trust successfully achieved a 12% improvement on the number of patients falling in
hospital compared to the previous year (2012/13). Renewed focus and increased effort
has supported early identification of patients at risk of falling and the implementation of
management plans to prevent falls. For falls resulting in the most serious harm (impact
risk score 4 and above) there has been a reduction of 60%. Whilst improvement has been
achieved, there is continued resolve to reduce the number of inpatient falls and this priority
will continue to receive Board level focus in 2014/15.

Priority 6 - Develop a local indicator to monitor timeliness of discharge with particular
focus on discharging patients before midday   

It is always preferable that patients in an acute setting are discharged before midday to ensure
all agencies can assist the patient in daylight and the patients have daylight hours to adjust
to their own or new home. There are challenges to achieving this goal and these include
timeliness of hospital transport, discharge paperwork and take home drugs preparations.
Blister packs for example take some time to complete and are completed outside of the
hospital.
The plans to improve the ‘before midday discharge’ include:

•

development of electronic discharge papers for implemetation during the first half of
2014/15

•

discharge Teams are working across 7 days and plan ahead of the discharge day to
enable a smooth, safe discharge home

•

increased use of the Discharge Lounge to allow a supported discharge by a dedicated
team

•

hospital transport planned ‘whenever possible’ in advance

•

increased discharge pharmacy service to assist in the production of discharge paperwork
and issue of take home medications

The Trust has not delivered all of the planned improvements in the timing of discharges,
although the number of patients being discharged out of hours is monitored and has reduced.
This has been due to a number of complexities around the discharge process and which
require further review.   Work has commenced to improve our systems and processes to
expedite discharge and this will continue as we strive to work more efficiently.

Priority 7 - Improve the management of concerns and complaints to improve timeliness
of response to patients    
It is important that complainants receive a response to their complaint that not only resolves
their concerns in a positive way but is also timely. A number of changes have been introduced
this year to improve the timeliness of our responses and work will continue over the next year
to attain an even greater improvement. The following improvements were made this year:
•

Our complaints process is now modelled on the standards that have been designed and
tested by the Patient Association. These standards are also recommended by the South
Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group.
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•

All complainants are telephoned by the Patient Experience Manager on receipt of their
complaint, the complaints process fully explained and deadline for the Trust’s response
discussed.

•

At this stage an early meeting is offered to clearly established all issues and ensure that
staff involved in responding to the complaint are aware and can address these.

•

new information leaflet for complainants has been produced explaining in full the complaint
process.

•

All complainants are offered a further meeting once the response letter has been sent out
and our Chief Executive Officer and Director of Nursing attend many of these meetings.

Participation in National Clinical Audits and Confidential Enquiries
During the period April 2013 to March 2014 Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
participated in the following 31 national clinical audits and 3 national confidential enquiries
(NCEPOD):

Audit Title

Participation

% cases
Submitted

National Institute for Cardiovascular Outcomes Research
(NICOR) - Acute Myocardial Ischemia National Audit
Project (MINAP)

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

National Institute for Cardiovascular Outcomes Research
(NICOR) - Heart Failure

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

National Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease Audit
Programme – Secondary Care Audit

Yes

Data being collected

Royal College of Anaesthetists – National Emergency
Laparotomy Audit (NELA)

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

Intensive Care National Audit and Research Centre
(ICNARC) – Case Mix Programme (CMP)

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

Trauma Audit and Research Network (TARN) – Severe
trauma

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

NHS IC Bowel Cancer

NHS IC Lung Cancer

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

Royal College of Surgeons – National Prostate Cancer

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion – Audit
of the use of Anti-D

Yes

100%

National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion – 2014
Survey of Red Cell Use

Yes

100%
2
data
collection periods in
March and May 2014

National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion – 2014
Audit of Patient Information and Consent for Blood
Transfusion

Yes

100% - sample of 24
transfusions

National Pregnancy in Diabetes Audit (NPID)

Yes

100%

NHS IC National Adult Diabetes Audit (NDA)

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

National Adult Diabetes Inpatient Audit (NADIA)

Yes

100%

Royal College of Child Health and Paediatrics (RCPCH)
– National Paediatric Diabetes Audit (NPDA)

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

Royal College of Child Health and Paediatrics (RCPCH)
– National Paediatric Diabetes Audit (PREM) Patient
Reported Experience Measures

Yes

100%

Royal College of Child Health and Paediatrics (RCPCH)
Epilepsy 12 (Childhood Epilepsy)

Yes

100%

Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit Programme (FFFAP)
– Pilot 2014 National Audit of Inpatient Falls

Yes

100%

Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit Programme (FFFAP)
– National Hip Fracture Database

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

National Hip Fracture Database – Anaesthetic Sprint
Audit Project (ASAP)

Yes

100% - sample of 68
patients

National Joint Registry Centre - National Joint Registry

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

Royal College of Psychiatrists – National Audit of
Dementia (NAD)

Yes

100%

Royal College of Physicians (RCP) – National Care of
the Dying Audit Hospitals (NCDAH) Round 4

Yes

100% - sample of 50
patient deaths

Royal College of Physicians (RCP) Inflammatory
Bowel Disease Programme – National Clinical Audit of
Biological Therapies

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

Royal College of Physicians (RCP) Inflammatory Bowel
Disease Programme – National Clinical Audit of Patients
Admitted with Ulcerative Colitis

Yes

100%

The British Society for Rheumatology (BSR) – National
Clinical Audit for Rheumatoid and Early Inflammatory
Arthritis

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

Royal College of Physicians (RCP) - Sentinel Stroke
National Audit Programme (SSNAP)

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

NHS IC - Patient reported outcome measures (PROMs)
for elective hernia surgery

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

NHS IC - Patient reported outcome measures (PROMs)
for elective hip replacements

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

NHS IC - Patient reported outcome measures (PROMs)
for elective knee replacements

Yes

100% Ongoing data
collection

National Confidential Enquiries (NCEPOD) Title

Participation

% cases
Submitted

Tracheostomy Care

Yes

100%

Subarachnoid Haemorrhage

Yes

100%

Alcohol Related Liver Disease

Yes

100%

The results for four of the national clinical audits have been published. These reports have
been reviewed by the clinical teams involved and the reports have been presented at Clinical
Governance Delivery Committee meetings. Only one action plan has been produced by
the IBD clinicians following participation in the ‘UK Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD) Audit
National Clinical Audit of Biological Therapies – August 2013’.This audit is ongoing and The
Trust is continuing to participate in routine assessment and complete documentation of
disease activity.
Key actions from National Audit findings include:
•

full screening and documentation before treatment commences

•

developing local guidance for the management of anaemia for identified clinical pathways

•

enhanced information for patients with Irritable Bowel Disease

•

increased patient involvement in care planning

2.4

NICE Quality Standards

23 Quality Standards have been published by NICE during the past year (61 standards have
been published in total since April 2011). All Quality Standards are reviewed at the time of
publication and this year a rolling snap shot audit programme has commenced to assess the
Trust’s current compliance with the earliest published standards. Data collection has been
completed for two audits (Stoke and Venous Thromboembolism – Prevention) and the data
is being analysed. Poor dissemination of written information to patients has already been
identified in the Venous Thromboembolism – Prevention Audit and action is being taken to
improve this.

2.5

Participation in Local Clinical Audits

A total of 129 local clinical audits were active during the year, 50 of which were completed
at the time of writing. The following provides examples of some of the changes in practice
recommended to improve the quality of healthcare provided:

Management of Pulmonary Embolism
Process mapping of management of pulmonary embolism at YDH and the identification
of potential ambulatory care patients; the aim of the audit was to assess whether hospital
inpatient stays can be reduced for patients diagnosed with acute pulmonary embolism and
treat them in ambulatory care setting. The results of the audit show that 23% of patients

reviewed would be suitable for ambulatory care and the main reasons why people were
not suitable was due to raised troponin levels and not being independent. The following
was therefore recommended: Improve the documentation of the Well’s Score in the patient’s
notes and to aim to image and start treatment for all patients within 24 hours. This audit
has informed the development of a new ambulatory care service and a pathway for the
management of pulmonary embolism in the outpatient setting.

Post-Operative Infection following Paraumbilical Hernia Repair
Audit of wound infection following elective repair of paraumbilical hernia with mesh; the aim
of the audit was to assess incidents of post-op wound infection on patients who did not
receive prophylactic antibiotics following open elective paraumbilical hernia mesh repair. The
results of the audit show that open elective parambilical hernia mesh repair without antibiotic
prophylaxis is associated with an increased rate of post-operative wound infection and results
in an increased readmission rate, prolonged morbidity and the use of extra hospital resources.
The following was therefore recommended, the use of prophylactic antibiotic in paraumblical
hernia repair using a mesh and a re-audit be undertaken using a larger controlled study to
provide a conclusive outcome.

Surgical On-call rota
Audit of the effectiveness of new surgical consultant’s on-call rota in decreasing the time to
see new referrals; In conclusion, this audit shows that some changes have been disruptive
but patients were seen in a timely manner by team members, although it took slightly longer
for patients to be assessed by the registrar. So the follow recommendations have been made,
the middle grade on call should have no other elective commitments and a re-audit of the
timings should be undertaken when the rota is established. A review of a revised rota is
planned for 2014/15.

Management of Thoracic Epidurals
Re-audit of the management of thoracic epidurals for patients undergoing gastrointestinal
surgery; As a result of the audit an updated section of the management of epidural analgesia
has also been added to the Yeovil District Hospital Acute Pain Guidelines and in addition to
this, ‘prompt’ cards have been attached to every epidural pump case with the aim of providing
guidance when ‘troubleshooting’ problems with epidurals. Also it has recommended increased
support is required for nursing staff on surgical wards and it is proposed that ‘epidural nurse
champions’ be introduced and they will be trained and supported by the acute pain team.

Maternity
Audit of women having spontaneous vaginal births who sustained blood loss of 500mls or
more; As a result of the audit it has been recommended that patients with blood loss that
is considered to be 500mls or more needs to be measured and not estimated, this can be
achieved by investing in proper scales which are located at both ends of the Labour Ward.
Staff need to be educated so that they consider the implications for ‘rounding up’ the patient’s
blood loss to 500ml and changes to post-natal treatment need to be made so that it includes
more robust observations such as MatMews and focuses on signs of anaemia and women’s
wellbeing.

Obesity in Paediatrics Audit
The results of the audit show that most patients get their weight and height documented
in notes, 20(12%) patients had a BMI>91centile and of these patients, 5 were identified as
being overweight/obese. Management of obesity was discussed with 80% of patients and
80% were referred to dietician. As a result of the audit the following recommendation have
been made: Documenting weight and height percentile in the notes for all children, discussion
about management of obesity in all patients identified as obese, offer dietician referral to all
patients with BMI >91percentile, discuss about test for comorbidities of obesity in clinic and
to educate patients about the MEND programme.

2.6

Research and Development

Commitment to research as a driver for improving the quality of care and patient
experience

The number of patients receiving NHS services provided by Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust in 2013-2014 that were recruited during that period to participate in research
approved by a research ethics committee was 644.
There are presently 113 studies open and recruiting, inclusive of randomised clinical trials,

observational studies, and one sponsored and led by the Trust . Participation in clinical research
demonstrates Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust commitment to improving the
quality of care we offer and to making our contribution to wider health improvement. Our
clinical staff stay abreast of the latest possible treatment possibilities and active participation
in research leads to the best possible patient outcomes.

35 new clinical research studies were opened across directorates during 2013-14. Research
active services include Oncology, Haematology, Cardiology, Diabetes, Stroke Services,
General Surgery, Orthopaedics, Elderly Care, Endocrinology, Gastroenterology, Dermatology,
Paediatrics, Emergency care, Radiology, Pathology and Neurology.

Yeovil District Hospital Foundation Trust continues to submit applications for prestigious
National Institute of Health Research awards. The research team encourages and supports
all staff who are interested in developing research proposals so that the Trust not only hosts
research but also sponsors research with the objective of streamlining and improving care.
The Trust sponsors one study in colorectal cancer which is being run in seven other Trusts
throughout the UK. Additionally, in the last three years, three publications have resulted from
our involvement in NIHR research, which shows our commitment to transparency and desire
to improve patient outcomes and experience across the NHS.
Our engagement with clinical research also demonstrates Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust’s commitment to testing and offering the latest medical treatments and
techniques.

2.7 Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) Objectives and
Achievements for 2013/14
A proportion of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust income in 2013/14 was conditional
upon achieving quality improvement and innovation goals through the Commissioning for
Quality and Innovation payment framework. The income that was conditional on achieving
these goals was £1,342,745 in 2011/12, £2,293,541 for 2012/13 and £2,184,385 in 2013/14.
The CQUIN framework is used by commissioners to agree core quality assurance goals as
part of a quality improvement based service contract.  The system rewards excellence by
linking a proportion of income to the achievement of specific goals.  It is vital that the Trust
delivers the required standard to improve the quality of care and patient experience and to
ensure the income opportunity is achieved. In 2013/14 the service improvement delivered
by the implementation of the CQUIN indicators included:

Dementia - The ‘Dementia team’ led by our Nurse Consultant have made good progress in
addressing how patients are identified, seen, investigated and referred for formal diagnosis
and treatment. Comprehensive training has been delivered to a variety of staff groups to
raise awareness of dementia. The team have worked with a PPI representative to construct
an audit tool allowing carers to e-mail the ‘Dementia team’ as well as using iPads in clinical
areas to allow carers of people with dementia to test whether they feel supported - results are
reported to the Board.

Picture: The Trust Board support the improvement of dementia care at YDH, which has included providing knitted
animals to help patients reminisce with staff and family.

End Of Life – identification in last year of life for patients with long term conditions – staff
are updating the End Of Life Register focussing on three conditions: Respiratory, Cardiology
and Dementia so that these patients who are approaching end of life are identified in a timely
way. This data is visible to users of the register e.g. health or social care professionals in any
setting.

Cancer - administration of antibiotics in neutropaenic patients – Emergency Department staff
have made exceptional progress in rapidly assessing and treating patients with potential
neutropaenic sepsis with now almost 90% of the patients who present receiving antibiotics
within 60 minutes of arrival at the hospital providing an excellent level of care to patients.

Communication/provision of test and diagnostic results following an outpatient
attendance - The Breast Service team implemented service changes which facilitated an
increase in patients being reviewed in their ‘one-stop’ clinics so they could be assessed,
undergo diagnostic imaging and receive their results within a week. A Telephone clinic was
established on the Trust Patient Administration System (PAS) to formalise an approach
whereby patients can be contacted by telephone with their results and an initial management
plan.

Diabetes – The Trust has employed a dedicated Podiatrist to ensure patients admitted with
diabetic foot problems have prompt access and assessment by the Multi-Disciplinary Team
within 24 hours of admission. A data collection tool is in place and monthly audit has shown
an increase in foot assessments undertaken. The ‘end of bed’ diabetes foot assessment tool
has been successfully implemented and staff awareness of the risks to diabetic patients from
foot complications has increased.

Reduction in Pressure Ulcer incidence – The Trust successfully delivered a 40% reduction
in avoidable hospital acquired pressure ulcers from the outturn of 2012/13.  A number of
interventions were implemented including the purchase and use of heel protectors to prevent
skin damage to patients’ heels, an increase in the availability of pressure relieving equipment
to all wards and departments, focused training on the risks of patients with inadequate
nutrition and hydration and improved multi-professional working to ensure that all efforts are
made consistently to consider and reduce the risks of skin damage.

Somerset Pathway for Frail Older People and FOPAS (Frail Older Patients Assessment
Service) - A pathway has been developed by the Somerset Frail Older People Programme
Board, a multi-agency group - inlcuding YDH - representing Health and Social Care providers,
the independent sector, patient groups and users. Consideration has been given to examples
of best practice, evidence based practice and policy developments.
In January 2014 YDH launched FOPAS Frail Older patients Assessment Service, providing
a designated space to look after older patients with complex medical and social needs. The
future vision is to take this service in the community with the help of GP and community
geriatricians.

2.8

Review of Our Services

During 2013/14 Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust provided 37 NHS services.
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has reviewed all of the data available to it on
the quality of care in all of these NHS services.
The income generated by direct provision of NHS services was approximately 88.6% of
total income.

2.9

Registration and Compliance

Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is registered with the Care Quality Commission.
The Commission considers that the Trust is currently meeting all the expected standards. The
Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against Yeovil District Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust during 2013/14. Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not
subject to periodic review by the Care Quality Commission. Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust has not been required to participate in any special reviews or investigations
by the CQC during the reporting period. A routine unannounced inspection visit occurred in
September 2012 and the Trust received a very positive report with no recommendations for
action. The Trust has been assessed as having an overall risk score of 5 out of a possible
best score of 6.

2.10 National Contractual Quality Standards
Domain
Domain 1

Source

Latest Date
Range

This Years
Value

SHMI

HSCIC

Jul-Jun13

95.9

94.98

100

Palliative Care Coding

HSCIC

Jul-Jun13

25.40%

20.40%

20.30%

PROMS: Inguinal Hernia - EQ VAS

HSCIC

Apr13-Sept13

13%

36%

38%

PROMS: Inguinal Hernia - EQ-5D Index

HSCIC

Apr13-Sept13

41%

49%

51%

PROMS: Hip Replacement - EQ VAS

HSCIC

Apr13-Sept13

70%

65%

66%

PROMS: Hip Replacement - EQ 5D Index

HSCIC

Apr13-Sept13

85%

92%

90%

HSCIC

Apr13-Sept13

100%

100%

97%

PROMS: Knee Replacement - EQ VAS

HSCIC

Apr13-Sept13

27%

58%

57%

PROMS: Knee Replacement - EQ 5D Index

HSCIC

Apr13-Sept13

67%

85%

83%

PROMS: Knee Replacement - Oxford Knee Score

HSCIC

Apr13-Sept13

69%

95%

94%

Readmissions in 28days: 0-15yrs

HSCIC

Apr11-12

8.10%

9.25%

10.01%

Readmissions in 28days: 16yrs+

HSCIC

Apr11-12

10.18%

9.93%

11.08%

Overall patient Experience of Hospital Care

HSCIC

Apr12-13

77.6

77.3

76.5

HSCIC

2013

68.0

-

67.1

Patient IP & AE Combined - Friends and Family Test

HSCIC

Apr13-14

18.80%

-

23.70%

VTE Risk Assessment

HSCIC

Apr13-14

96.20%

91.20%

94.20%

Rate of C.difficile infection per 100,000 beddays

HSCIC

Apr12-13

11.5

21.6

17.3

Rate per 100 admissions - Patient safety incidents

HSCIC

Apr-Sept13

7.83

6.7

-

Percentage of Patient Safety Incidents that resulted
in severe harm or death.

HSCIC

Apr13-14

0.00%

0.10%

-

Clostridium (C.) difficile – meeting the C. difficile objective

HSCIC

Apr13-14

9

10

-

Trust Board
Declaration

Apr13-14

Compliant

Compliant

-

62 day wait for first treatment from urgent GP referral:
all cancers

CWT RETURN

Apr13-14

91.6%

89.9%

-

62 day wait for first treatment from consultant screening
service referral: all cancers

CWT RETURN

Apr13-14

100.0%

86.2%

-

31 day wait from diagnosis to first treatment: all cancers

CWT RETURN

Apr13-14

98.6%

99.1%

-

31 day wait for second or subsequent treatment: surgery

CWT RETURN

Apr13-14

99.5%

98.5%

-

CWT RETURN

Apr13-14

100.0%

99.5%

-

CWT RETURN

Apr13-14

94.3%

94.1%

-

Two week wait from referrals to date first seen:
breast symptoms

CWT RETURN

Apr13-14

94.1%

94.4%

-

18 week maximum wait from point of referral to treatment
(admitted patients)

UNIFY RETURN

Apr13-14

95.9%

93.3%

-

18 week maximum wait from point of referral to treatment
(non admitted patients)

UNIFY RETURN

Apr13-14

97.8%

97.2%

-

18 week maximum wait from point of referral to treatment
(incomplete pathways)

UNIFY RETURN

Apr13-14

96.3%

96.1%

-

Maximum waiting time of 4 hours in A&E from arrival
to admission, transfer or discharge

WEEKLY SITREP

Apr13-14

96.2%

95.1%

-

Indicator

Last Years National
Value
Average

Domain 2 NO APPLICABLE INDICATORS

Domain 3 PROMS: Hip Replacement - Oxford Hip Score

Domain 4 Staff - Friends and Family Test

Domain 5

Certification against compliance with requirements regarding
access to health care for people with a learning disability

Risk
31 day wait for second or subsequent treatment:
Assessment anti cancer drug
Framework
Indicators Two week wait from referrals to date first seen:
all cancers

2.11 Data Quality
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2013/14 to the
Secondary Uses Service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in
the latest published data. The percentage of records in the published data...
•

which included the patient’s valid NHS number was 99.6% for admitted patient care;
99.9% for outpatient care and 85.0% for accident and emergency care.

•

which included the patient’s valid General Practitioner Registration Code was: 99.2%
for admitted patient care; 99.6% for outpatient care; and 97.4% for accident and
emergency care.

The underperformance in the Emergency Department patient NHS Number compliance
in 12/13 was the impact of a technical problem with the interface between the Emergency
Department system and the core Master Patient Index. This issue has now been resolved,
consequently increasing our score to 85%.   Due to the nature of A&E, NHS numbers are
not always known at registration. As the system is not spine compliant we are planning to
instigate a process to regularly do batch searches for NHS numbers against the spine for the
missing records to continue to improve on our future compliance.

The Trust has not had a Payment by Results (PbR) clinical coding audit during the period
due to the changes in the NHS framework. However we initiated our own internal audit of our
clinical coding focussing on Endoscopy and Trauma & Orthopaedics.

The audit covered the Trust’s clinical coding using the Connecting for Health (CFH) Audit
Methodology v7.0, as well as the accuracy of other data items that affect the price commissioners
pay for a spell under PbR. In the sample audited, Yeovil had 6.5 per cent of spells with a
clinical coding error that affected the price. If all the errors are added together there is a net
financial error of £6,944 in favour of the commissioner for the entire 200 consultant episode
sample.
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Coding accuracy for 2013/14 as measured by this audit meets the standards set for
Information Governance, building on improvements noted the year before. Figures for primary
and secondary diagnosis meet the recommendation for IG level 2. Primary and secondary
procedure figures almost meet the requirements for the highest IG level 3.

2.12 Information Governance
Yeovil District Hospital’s score for 2013/14 for Information Quality and Records Management
assessed using the Information Governance toolkit (Version 10) was 84%, an increase of 6%
on last year. We were assessed as not satisfactory as Level 2 has not yet been achieved
in all of the standards. Further work is planned in 2014/15 to improve this to an acceptable
standard. However, there are two remaining hurdles to achieving compliance with level 2.
These are the Trust’s inability to track and audit user access to the Patient Administration
System (PAS) and this will not be resolved until the PAS is replaced by the Electronic
Health Record (EHR), which is being procured through the SAcP (an announcement on the
preferred supplier is expected in the next week or so). The second significant hurdle is a lack
of corporate records life cycle strategy but it is anticipated that this will be addressed this year,
now that SharePoint is being rolled out across the Trust.

Photo: Clinicians, like Consultant Paedetrician Paul Heaton, will be able to use smart devices to
access the new Electronic Health Record and safely and swiftly manage patient information.
		

Part Three: Other Information
3.1

Performance against Quality Priorities for 2013/2014

The following section provides an overview of the care provided by the Trust during 2013/14
against a set of key quality indicators selected by the Board of Directors and in conjunction
with key stakeholders. The indicators show the Trust’s continued commitment to patient
safety, good clinical outcomes and a positive patient experience.
For 2013/14 the Trust agreed the following priorities for improvement:

Priority Aim
Reduce patient falls by 10% (no more than 1044)

Outcome
Achieved: 12 % reduction
Total number of inpatient falls = 915

Reduce the number of patients who fall more than Achieved: 23% reduction in year for repeat fallers.
once by 15% (no more than 170)
Total number of repeat fallers = 130
Reduce the number of hospital acquired pressure Partially achieved: 21% reduction
ulcers (grade 3 or 4) by 25% (Baseline 19)
Total number = 15
Improve available facilities for patients with dementia Refurbishment of Ward 6A and roll out of key
and learning disabilities.
improvements to other wards. This will continue
over the next 12 months in line with the Capital
Development Plan
To reduce healthcare associated infections – in line Achieved. No cases of MRSA bloodstream
with the local targets (MRSA, Clostridium difficile & infection were reported during 2013/14. 3 cases of
MSSA). Outturn from 2012/13: MRSA=1, Cdiff=11
Clostridium difficile were reported against a target
of 9.
To maintain our involvement in the programme of Achieved. Participation in all regional events and
patient safety improvement as set by NHS South representation at the Programme Board and
West
Faculty.
To ensure that 95% of complainants receive a Partially achieved. The Trust achieved 89.5%
response within the agreed timescale
compliance with agreed response rates.
Continue with the development and roll-out of care Partially achieved. Successful implementation of
bundles.
neutropaenic sepsis care bundle and continued
focus on improving antibiotic times

To improve the accessibility of information available
for patients with a learning disability. This will be
achieved by updating the internet and intranet site
and review and amend key information leaflets
such as the Patient Advice and Liaison service and
“Welcome to YDH”

Partially achieved. Intranet site has been updated
and plan for LD page on internet. LD Liaison nurse
and PALS easy read leaflet are available and work
is ongoing to develop a “Welcome to YDH” leaflet.
Also recently developed is easy read leaflet for
‘Your stay in hospital’

Ensure continued improvements in the use of the Achieved. See further details under Friends and
Friends and Family Test, achieving a quarter on Family
quarter improvement in response rates and an end
of year improvement in the percentage of patients
who would recommend the Trust

3.2

Patient Safety
The Trust has invested in additional leadership to strengthen and improve the approach to
Patient Safety by the appointment of an Associate Director of Patient Safety and Quality
and allocating dedicated time for two Consultant Patient Safety leads to drive forwards
improvements in the safety of patient care and clinical practice.

The Trust has a positive approach to incident reporting and actively encourages staff to report
near misses and patient safety incidents. During the year, the frequency of incident reporting
has increased by which has resulted in a greater ability to identify trends. All reports are
reviewed by a senior manager with comprehensive investigations conducted into the more
significant incidents.  The aim is to ensure that lessons are learned and then shared widely
to reduce the likelihood of a recurrence.

The total number of incidents and accidents reported increased by 23% compared with the
previous year (3531, compared with 2863). A measure of organisational safety is a high level
of incident reporting but  a low level of harm; this allows early identification of risk to the safety
of our patients before an adverse event occurs. It should be noted that this data is accurate
up to 10 April 2014.

The following chart shows the Patient Safety incident data for 2013/2014 and shows the
different levels of harm reported.

Actual number

Month

During 2013/2014 there were 2290 (65%) patient safety incidents which were classed as
no harm/near miss. There were 229 (6.5%) patient safety incidents which were classed as
moderate, major or catastrophic, of which eight were major and two were catastrophic. The
Trust routinely reports all patient safety incidents to National Reporting and Learning System
(NRLS).Overall the Trust has seen a rise in incident reporting, demonstrating improvement in
the patient safety culture and a reduction in incidents resulting in harm.

A total of 66 Root Cause Analysis investigations were commissioned of which 28 met the
definitions of a Serious Incident Requiring Investigation, in accordance with national definitions
and guidance, and were reported to Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group.

Actual number

Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation

Month

3.2.1 Never Events
Never Events are serious, largely preventable patient safety incidents that should not occur if
the available preventative measures have been implemented. Yeovil District Hospital adheres
to the National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) guidance on the reporting and management
of Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation, including Never Events, and the structure and
process of a full root cause analysis, as set out in the National Patient Safety Agency guidance,
is applied to each case.

The Trust reported one Never Event during 2013/14 in relation to a retained swab following
routine surgery.  The investigation identified a failure point not covered by use of the WHO
Surgical Safety Checklist and a full response was adopted across all operating theatres by
the introduction of an additional check at the end of the episode of surgical intervention and
before the patient leaves the operating theatre. The lessons from this case have been shared
with NHS England to inform learning across other organisations.

3.2.2 Learning Lessons
The Trust realises the importance of learning lessons from problems that have occurred.
Whenever an incident is reported in the hospital a thorough investigation is carried out and
reports are made outlining areas for improvement. This information is shared with all grades
of clinical staff at a quarterly Trust-wide meeting.  Changes made to services as a result of
incidents or complaints have included:

•

implementing intentional rounding to reduce the risks of falling or skin damage from
unrelieved pressure

•

purchase of additional specialist equipment to improve pressure relief to prevent skin
damage

•

purchase of additional falls alarms to support improved management of patients at risk

•

changes to our ways of working to improve communication at the point of transfer from
one clinical area to another

•

use of a safety checklist in radiology for invasive procedures

•

the addition of a ‘bin’ count in the operating theatres to minimise the risks of retained
swabs.

3.2.3 Reducing Patient Falls
Reducing falls is important to patients, relatives and staff. Some patients are at high risk of
falling, either as a result of their rehabilitation or condition, and it is recognised it is equally
accepted that this causes anxiety, loss of confidence and in some cases serious injury to
patients. The length of stay for patients who have fallen whilst in hospital is often increased
as staff attempt to improve their mobility and confidence.  The Trust achieved a 12% reduction
in falls, and a 60% increase in those falls resulting in the most serious harm. The run chart
below shows the number of patient falls and the rate of falls per 1,000 bed days for 2013/14.
This data is shared with clinical staff and the Board of Directors on a monthly basis. The
second graph shows the breakdown of patient reported falls by degree of harm.

Actual number

		
				Month

3.2.4 Preventing venous thrombo-emboli (VTEs)
There is a continued national emphasis on the assessment and prevention of venous
thrombo-emboli. During the year the Trust achieved and maintained the National CQUIN
target of 95% of patients being risk assessed within 24 hours of admission. Compliance is
monitored through the monthly mandatory return to the Department of Health. This data is
broken down by department and shared with each team on a monthly basis.

If a patient develops a pulmonary embolism or deep vein thrombosis during admission, or
within 90 days of discharge, a root cause analysis is undertaken to identify any learning
to improve the care for future patients. All incidents are subject to investigation to ensure
learning results in improved care.

3.2.5 Medication errors
Although the Trust has an established system for error reporting, YDH continues to show an
improving culture of medication incident reporting, with a 10% rise in the number of reports
received over the last 12 months.  However, the number of significant incidents resulting in
harm to patients remains low (2.6% of all medication incidents reported).

Actual number
Actual number

Month

Month

As a high risk drug, insulin is often implicated in the significant incidents reported within the
Trust. To facilitate learning from these incidents, the Inpatient Diabetic Working Group meets
regularly to review these incidents, address staff training and hence minimise risk to patients.
A new Safer Medicines Group has recently been established within the Trust, to further
promote the reporting of medication incidents, and to improve learning from these incidents.
In particular, the group aim to increase awareness of, and learning from, medication incidents
by exploring new ways to reach a wider audience within the Trust.

3.2.6 Patient Safety Thermometer
The Patient Safety Thermometer is a point prevalence survey of all inpatients undertaken
on a single day in a month, which provides a temperature check of the quality and safety
of care and determined by local systems and process in providing a care environment. All
patients are assessed for evidence of skin damage, falls, infections associated with having a
catheter and for VTE (Blood clots). The data is published nationally and used to understand
the progress the Trust is making in reducing avoidable harm to patients. The following graph
highlights the consistent level of harm free care provided by the Trust.

Senior nurses meet once a month to undertake the survey and to share learning, identify
areas for improvement and discretely respond to areas of concern. This format appears to
be unique  across the South West region and a number of Trusts have visited to observe
this particular approach and its associated benefits.  

3.3

Clinical Effectiveness
The Trust has a number of processes for understanding the effectiveness of care provided
and whether this is in line with national best practice.

3.3.1 Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR)
The HSMR for the Trust has been closely monitored throughout the year, and the Trust’s
position has improved throughout the year to 85.51 (as of January 2014) compared with an
outurn of 100.4 in 2011/12. Improvements have been maintained and this will remain a high
priority for the Trust.

The Trust’s Dr Foster and Patient Safety steering group has continued to meet and oversee
the work to improve the HSMR and SHMI, which stood at 95.9 (June 2013) compared with
98.68 (September 2012). A programme of regular notes reviews has been undertaken, with
20 sets of case notes reviewed every month. The notes are reviewed using a standard
template and the Global Trigger Tool, which is recommended by the Institute for Healthcare
Improvement. In addition to these reviews, the records of all patients who die in our care are
reviewed from a clinical care and end of life perspective and for accuracy of diagnosis and
coding.

The Trust has continued to develop and introduce care bundles for high risk conditions
including falls, diarrhoea and vomiting, neutropaenic and general sepsis, central venous
catheter insertion, dementia and non-invasive ventilation). An audit programme assesses
compliance with the care bundles.

3.3.2 Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs)
The Trust has been participating in the national PROMs programme since it started in April
2009 for inguinal hernia repair, primary total knee and total hip replacements.

The table below shows the Trust’s performance with completing the initial pre-operative
questionnaires over the last four years.  Please note that due to the nature of how the data is
collected and linked with Hospital Episode Statistics data at the Coordination Centre, there is
a considerable delay before finalised data is available.  Cancelled operations can also impact
on the number of eligible episodes compared with the completed questionnaires result in
over 100% performance

The following data has been accessed from the HES online and is correct at the time of
writing (data source: http://www.hscic.gov.uk/proms).

Finalised data

Provisional Data

National PROM
April 09 to March
10

April 10 to March
11

April 11 to March 12

April 13 to
September 2013

Inguinal hernia repair

68.4%

48.6%

47.9%

28.4%

Total hip replacement

84.5%

96.1%

87.7%

74.8%

Total knee
replacement

90.3%

No data

127.10%

112.0%

Once the pre and post-operative questionnaires have been received they are linked and
compared to establish whether there has been an improvement in quality of life following the
operation. The following information shows the Trust’s key facts (source: hscic website), in
particular the number of patients for whom the EQ-5D score increased, stayed the same or
decreased.

3.3.3 Ensuring Compliance with NICE Guidance
All new guidelines issued by the National institute for Health and Clinical Excellence are
reviewed by the Clinical Governance team before being distributed to clinicians for assessment
of our compliance. The following table shows the number of new guidelines issued and the
Trust’s position in respect of compliance with them.

Published Applicable Compliant Partially
Compliant

Noncompliant

Under
review

Te c h n o l o g y
Appraisals
26

18

16

1

0

5

Medical
Technology
Guidance

4

1

1

0

0

3

Clinical
Guidelines

17

13

9

4

0

4

Interventional
Procedures
23

20

18

0

2

3

Public Health
Guidance

7

3

2

1

0

4

Diagnostic
Guidance

4

3

2

0

1

1

3.4

Patient Experience
The Trust has a continually developing and expanding commitment to a high quality patient
experience, and in response to the demanding environment understands the benefits of
value-added patient and relative focused care. The Trust also recognises that this philosophy
should be applied throughout the hospital to ensure that we provide an exemplar service to
our patients and visitors from the moment they step inside our building.

There are a number of ways to judge whether we have provided a positive experience for our
patients; national survey results, in-house questionnaires, complaints and enquiries made of
the Patient Advice and Liaison service.

The Trust has continued to participate in the national patient survey programme and during
the year there were six active national surveys.

3.4.1 Patient Surveys
National Cancer Patients Experience Survey 2013

Facilitated by Quality Health, on behalf of the Department of Health, the Cancer Patient
Experience Survey programme is designed to monitor national progress on cancer care.

Conducted as a postal survey it was sent to all adult patients (aged 16 and over) with a
primary diagnosis of cancer, who had been admitted to an NHS hospital as an inpatient, or
day case, and discharged between 1st September 2012 and 30th November 2012. Eligible
patients were identified through the patient administration system and validated against
histology and Somerset Cancer Register entries. A total of 346 eligible patients were
identified and 227 completed questionnaires were received giving a 71% response rate
(68% nationally).

The results were notably better than the previous year with an increase in score for 42
questions, 28 of which fell within the highest-scoring 20% of trusts.  Two scores fell within
the worst-scoring 20% of trusts compared to 15 in 2011/12.

The overwhelming majority of free text comments received were positive.  When reflecting
on the positive aspects of their care patients tended more to talk about attitude citing the
helpful, friendly and supportive staff, which may suggest that this is something that is
particualrly important to them during their care and treatment. When highlighting more
negative areas, or areas for improvement, patients focussed on the environment and
communication.

As a result of the findings, and qualitative comments received, the following actions were
agreed by the Cancer Services Team:

National Chemotherapy Patient Experience Survey 2013

Designed in conjunction with the clinical advisory group on chemotherapy, the
Chemotherapy Patient Experience Survey was undertaken by Quality Health for the
Department of Health and the National Cancer Action Team between February and
June 2013.  This was the first national cancer survey targeted only at chemotherapy
patients; the aim of the survey was to obtain information about the specific treatment and

information given to chemotherapy patients, supplementing that contained in the national
Cancer Patient Experience Survey. NHS England took responsibility for the survey and
for publication of the results, the national report was published in November 2013 and
individual Trust reports received in February 2014.

Yeovil had a relatively small sample of 55 patients, 39 of which returned completed
questionnaires, giving a 80% response rate.  This is the first survey of its kind and therefore
there is no comparable local data; however the Trust’s results were very postive, scoring
above the national average for 50 questions, and 98% of respondents rating the care as
excellent or very good (78% excellent).

The Cancer Services Team are currently working through the report, along with the free text
comments received, to identify areas for improvement.
Women’s Experience of Maternity Care
Due to the size of the Trust’s maternity unit the sample included women who delivered during
January and February 2012 (282 women). The response rate was 46% (157 responses)
which was considerably lower than in previous years (66% in 2010; 72% in 2007).

The results were divided into three sections, antenatal, labour and birth and postnatal.

There were nine questions within the antenatal section that were comparable with other
participants. The Trust fell within the intermediate 60% range for eight of these and the worst
20% range for one, regarding whether women are given choices about where to have their
baby.

There were 17 questions within the labour and birth report (also covering staff and care in
hospital after birth).  14 questions fell within the intermediate 60% range and three within the
best performing 20% of trusts; in all three of these questions the Trust scored better than
most other trusts. These questions were:
•

During labour, could you move around and choose the most comfortable position?

•

If you had a partner or a companion with you during your labour and delivery, were
they able to be involved as much as they wanted?

•

Looking back, do you feel that the length of your stay in hospital after the birth was
appropriate?

The third report covered feeding (postnatal care) and care at home after the birth. In these
report there were 18 comparable questions, 17 of which fell into the intermediate 60% and
one in the best performing 20% range.

Overall the results were positive and in line with the majority of other participating maternity
units. There is a lot of work being undertaken within the Unit to improve the environment for
women accessing the service and as a result of the survey the following recommendations
were made:

•

There were a number of issues raised about quick access to an  appropriate
practitioner to assess and treat tongue tie with a frenulotomy procedure if required.
Work was already in progress to develop a Somerset wide approach in conjunction
with our partners at MPH, Somerset Partnership and the Somerset CCG. This
work was completed in June 2013 and there is now a service available in both the
hospital acute settings and on the community for babies to be assessed by a trained
practitioner and infant feeding advisor, who will perform the procedure if indicated
following a thorough assessment. For YDH, access for appointments is available
within 3-5 days of birth in the maternity unit clinic. When one of the four Somerset
practitioners are on leave their referrals are covered by one of the other practitioners
to ensure a seamless service. There is a standard referral and assessment
for across the Somerset area and data is collected and reviewed to monitor
performance and inform service development.

•

Information about choice of where to have their baby was raised. Teams do
provide leaflets to their women about this but at the time of the survey the only
choice of place of delivery available was YDH, consultant-led unit or a home birth.
Environmental improvements in maternity have resulted in two designated rooms
which lie across the corridor from the main delivery suite as a low risk birthing area.
One of the rooms has a birthing pool which has extended women’s choices for pain
relief at YDH and means that, in line with other maternity units, we can offer a low
risk birthing area.

•

There were some negative comments from women feeling pressurised to breastfeed.
The unit remains a UNICEF baby friendly fully accredited unit and has been
accredited again this year, after our original accreditation in 2010. Comments were
taken on board and the infant feeding lead included issues from this feedback
in the mandatory breastfeeding training delivered to midwives during the year.
We strive to give the best advice and support for women to feed their baby in the

way they choose and that further support for women who are breastfeeding is
tailored to individual needs and is delivered by midwives following best practice
recommendations.

Local Patient Survey Programme

The Trust has a well-established local patient survey programme with two core on-going
questionnaires run in a number of wards and departments:

•

Your Care Questionnaire; this survey is predominately facilitated by the Trust’s Patient
Voice Group (previously known as the Patient and Public Involvement Group). Within
each of the inpatient wards Patient Voice members aim to obtain a minimum of ten
completed questionnaires each month.   The Trustwide results are fed back   to the
Clinical Governance Delivery Committee and individual wards discuss their findings,
with their Patient Voice representative, at their Peer Review meetings. Due to changes
within the Patient Voice Group the focus for 2014/15 will be on the actions taken and
improvements made as a result of these surveys. There will also be an enhanced
focus on feedback received from carers and relatives.

•

iCARE if you’re smiling survey; this was introduced to all inpatient wards in October 2012
and contains the Friends and Family Test and is offered to patients on discharge. Over
the last 12 months the survey has gained momentum and is being actively used within
Day Surgery / Endoscopy Unit, and some outpatient areas. There were approximately
10,000 surveys completed over the year. Inpatient wards have been particularly
successful in maintaining excellent response rates, with an average consistently over
40%; some wards achieving 70% and above. The priorities for 2014/15 will be to
maintain the high levels of feedback from patients and to work on implementing the
Friends and Family Test within all outpatient and day case areas as per the national
CQUIN.

2014/15 National Surveys
•

Neonatal Survey 2014

•

Emergency Department Survey 2014

•

Inpatient Survey 2014

•

National Cancer Experience Survey 2014

•

Outpatient Department Survey 2015

3.4.2 Complaints and PALS
Patient Advice & Liaison Service (PALS)
The Trust has provided a Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) for the last 11 years and
it continues to be an invaluable and high profile service.  The office is easily accessible for
patients and relatives wishing to raise concerns and other queries relating to health services.
PALS saw a 24% increase in activity during 2013-14, with 907 enquiries received during
the year compared with 728 enquiries during 2012-13.  Quarter 4 saw the highest number
of enquiries this year with 317 received from January – March 2014; 86 in January, 107 in
February and 117 in March.
The following graph shows the number of PALS enquiries received since 2011.

Formal Complaints
Between 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 the Trust saw a slight increase in formal complaints
compared with last year (266 compared with 249). 89.5% of complainants received a full
response within the timescale agreed with the individual. 30 complaints were re-opened
during the year and three complainants asked the Health Ombudsman for a review of the
Trust’s handling of their concerns. Over the past year we have been redesigning our complaint
process to ensure transparency openness and complainant focus. We have reduced the
number of complaints over the last quarter and it is anticipated that this will continue into the
next year.
The following graph demonstrates the number of complaints made by month.

Actual number

Month

Themes identified from Complaints, PALS enquiries and from personal feedback have
included:
•

Complainants find it more helpful and beneficial if they can speak with
someone throughout the complaint process. Many also prefer to come in and
meet with us rather than communicate solely by letter or email;

•

A number of telephone calls into the hospital were not being answered in a
timely way and were not directed to the correct contact;

•

Hospital staff were finding it difficult to get through to switchboard in a timely
way;

•

There was often a queue at the main reception desk;

•

Visitors were often directed to locations around the hospital but still not able to
find them;

•

Letters inviting members of the public to their appointments advised a location
that was entirely different from the signage in the main entrance. (e.g. letters
say x-ray or CT scan; signs say radiology);

•

Visitors on many occasions attended the General Office after 4.30pm to find it
closed;

•

Visitors to the hospital were not greeted as the reception staff were too busy
answering the telephone and there were not always volunteers available.

Changes Resulting from Feedback
Feedback from patients, visitors and staff, formal complaints and PALs enquiries is reviewed
to provide information about the changes that are needed, with the ultimate aim of improving
patient and public experience. The Trust has made a wide range of changes to its services
as a consequence of feedback received including:
• implementing a new system Trust-wide to monitor patients who have been
designated ‘Nil by mouth’ whilst waiting for an inpatient endoscopy
• introducing the Cleveland Empathy video into many training contexts
• introducing the use of posters throughout the Trust stating that the standard you walk
past is the standard you accept and inviting people to send any comments they wish
to PALS.
• separating our Front of House Team from our telephony team to ensure improved
responses to incoming telephone calls.
• introducing intentional rounding in many clinical areas.
• improving our complaints leaflet to give a fuller explanation of the PALs and
complaints process
As a consequence of a review of the Trust approach to responding to patient concerns
or complaints, a dedicated team has been established to provide a more accessible and
responsive service. As part of this approach a Front of House pilot took place to inform
service development.

Front of House Pilot
The aim of the pilot was to test a possible approach to providing a more efficient and
welcoming service which personifies the iCARE principles and responds appropriately to
requests for assistance in a timely manner.  

The main proposals for the pilot were to combine the following six teams and functions into
a single Patient Experience Team and relocate members of the team and the services that
they provide to the main entrance provided 24 hours a day 7 days a week.
• Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)
• Complaints Team
• Bereavement Service
• Meet and Greet Team
• Volunteer Service

• General Office Team

The purpose and aspirations of the pilot were to understand, develop and test:
• separation of the roles that staff undertake on the telephone and face to face to
understand the resource requirements of both services, improve telephone answer
rate, the availability to deal one stop face to face with patients and public in the main
reception effectively;
• a service that seeks to meet and greet every patient relative and visitor to the main
entrance, and provides the right information at the first point of contact;
• working closely with volunteers to develop their role as part of the Welcome Team,
including walking visitors to their desired destination;
• reducing formal complaints by relationship building and resolving issues on the day
that they arise (whilst acknowledging this would increase PALS activity);
• the trial of an improved lost property service;
• a more streamlined flow of patients and visitors requiring assistance from the
General Office;
• a multi-skilled team across all functions;
• improvements to the physical environment at the main reception.

The feedback from patients and visitors has been positive and the following benefits have
been found:

• Patients, visitors and staff have access to lost property 24 hours per day and seven
days per week (previously 9am-5pm,Mon –Fri);
• Very positive feedback received from patients and visitors regarding the improved
meet and greet service;
• The main entrance is reported as providing a very supportive experience for patients
staff and visitors, and the team are conveying iCARE principles at all times;
• There has been an increase in the switchboard answer rate, this has risen from 74%
to 85%;
• There are no longer any queues at the main reception desk;
• All visitors to the hospital are accompanied to their destination if required;
• Identifying a number of difficulties arising in the main entrance which had previously
gone unrecognised and therefore no staff were responsibility for resolving. (E.g.

Patients waiting for transport home but with no idea when they might be collected and
patients arriving for emergency admission but not knowing where they should go.) The
staff are now aware of how to resolve these difficulties.
• Visitors requiring General Office services now receive this at the first point of contact;
• Staff have reported greater job satisfaction;
• The proposed new structure allows operational managers and colleagues from other
departments to approach a number of the team for assistance and find someone who
can help at all times; this will improve the efficiency of responding to patients and
visitors enquiries.
The Trust will focus on establishing this new approach as one of its priorities for 2014/15
and as part of our continued efforts to listen to patients to improve our services.

3.4.3

Friends and Family Test
2013/14 has seen another successful year with the implementation of Friends and Family
Test across the Trust’s inpatient wards, consistently reaching response rates over and
above 40%. Ward staff have embedded the test as a core part of their discharge process
and are engaged with the feedback received.
Difficulties have remained with increasing the response rate of patients attending the
Emergency Department, despite introducing text messaging, and this will continue to
be a key focus for 2014/15.  The four maternity FFT questions were implemented from
October 2013 and whilst the response rates require improvement for the two peripheral
touch points (antenatal and postnatal community), the surveys undertaken on the
postnatal ward have also been well embedded with some excellent response rates and
feedback from women accessing the service.
Along with increasing response rates, the priority for 2014/15 will be to ensure wards and
departments are proactively acting on the feedback they receive. Some of the changes
we have made as a result of feedback received include:
•

the establishment of a dedicated discharge team to facilitate a better experience for
patients

•

formation of a dedicated area for the assessment and management of patients who are
frail or elderly
production of Staff information Boards to increase patients understanding of who is
looking after them

•

Response rates & scores 2013

Inpatient response rate
Inpatient Net Promoter
score
Emergency Dept response
rate
Emergency Dept Net
Promoter score
Combined inpatient &
Emergency Dept response
rate
Combined inpatient &
Emergency Dept Net
Promoter score

Apr-13

May-13

Jun-13

Jul-13

Aug-13

Sep-13

Oct-13

Nov-13

Dec-13

37.1%

34.5%

39.0%

40.3%

50.6%

51.7%

49.16% 41.25%

37.8%

73

76

66

68

69

69

70

69

62

1.7%

3.0%

8.2%

4.5%

4.4%

8.4%

9.1%

5.8%

7.3%

73

70

50

52

46

65

78

81

74

14.3%

14.3%

19.3%

16.5%

19.7%

22.8%

22.9%

18.2%

17.8%

73

64

62

65

66

68

72

72

65

Response rates & scores 2014
Jan-14
Inpatient response rate
Inpatient Net Promoter
score
Emergency Dept response
rate
Emergency Dept net
promoter score
Combined inpatient &
Emergency Dept response
rate
Combined inpatient &
Emergency Dept Net
Promoter score

Feb-14

Mar-14

39.96% 43.39%

47.1%

64

61

61

8.1%

9.3%

7.1%

79

64

67

19.9%

20.7%

27.3%

68

62

63

(Please note that the data supplied for March 2014 is unconfirmed nationally and has been calculated in-house)

The Trust has also piloted the Staff Friends and Family Test. Early work has demonstrated that a
range of options for gaining feedback from staff is required and further work wil be undertaken in
2014/15 in line with national CQUIN requirements.

3.4.3 Dementia Services
YDH further strengthened its commitment to provide exceptional care for patients with
dementia during the year, with the appointment of a new specialist nurse who has been
leading the work to help make the hospital environment dementia friendly. The hospital has
been using Pets as Therapy (P.A.T) dogs to visit patients on the ward and live musicians to
perform to patients. Both of these activities are shown to enhance the patient experience,
reduce anxiety and improve emotional wellbeing.
In March 2014, Michael Eavis officially opened YDH’s dementia friendly ward which was
funded from monies awarded from the Department of Health. YDH was one of just 42 NHS
projects to be selected out of a total of 157 NHS projects considered.

3.5

Conclusion
Our focus is to consistently deliver safe and effective standards of care and excellent 		
outcomes for our patients. This is underpinned by a commitment to ensuring that the patient
experience is central to how we provide, manage and monitor care, listening to those who
use our services in order to continually improve.
In light of the Francis Report, and subsequent national reviews, a continued focus on
delivering high quality care remains paramount.

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of Governors of Yeovil District
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on the Quality Report
We have been engaged by the Council of Governors of Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust to perform an independent assurance engagement in respect of
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Report for the year ended
31 March 2014 (the “Quality Report”) and certain performance indicators contained
therein.
Scope and subject matter
The indicators for the year ended 31 March 2014 subject to limited assurance consist
of the national priority indicators as mandated by Monitor:



Clostridium Difficile – all cases of Clostridium Difficile positive diarrhoea in
patients aged two years or over that are attributed to the Trust; and
62 Day cancer waits – the percentage of patients treated within 62 days of
referral from GP.

We refer to these national priority indicators collectively as the “indicators”.
Respective responsibilities of the Directors and auditors
The Directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the Quality
Report in accordance with the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual issued by Monitor.
Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on
whether anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:
•     the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria
set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;
•     the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources       specified in the Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on Quality Reports;
and.
•     the indicators in the Quality Report identified as having been the subject of limited      
assurance in the Quality Report are not reasonably stated in all material respects
in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and the
       six dimensions of data quality set out in the Detailed Guidance for External
Assurance on Quality Reports.
We read the Quality Report and consider whether it addresses the content
requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, and consider
the implications for our report if we become aware of any material omissions.
We read the other information contained in the Quality Report and consider whether it
is materially inconsistent with:
•     Board minutes for the period April 2013 to May 2014;
•     Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2013 to
May 2014;
•     Feedback from the Commissioners dated May 2014;
•     Feedback from local Healthwatch organisations dated May 2014;

•     The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority    
Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, 2013/14;
•     The 2013/14 national patient survey;
•     The 2013/14 national staff survey;
•     Care Quality Commission intelligent monitoring reports 2013/14; and
•     The 2013/14 Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control
environment.
We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with those documents (collectively, the
“documents”). Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency
requirements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(ICAEW) Code of Ethics. Our team comprised assurance practitioners and relevant
subject matter experts.
This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Council of
Governors of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist the
Council of Governors in reporting Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s
quality agenda, performance and activities. We permit the disclosure of this report
within the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014, to enable the Council of
Governors to demonstrate they have discharged their governance responsibilities by
commissioning an independent assurance report in connection with the indicators. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Council of Governors as a body and Yeovil District Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust for our work or this report save where terms are expressly
agreed and with our prior consent in writing.
Assurance work performed
We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) – ‘Assurance Engagements
other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information’ issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (‘ISAE 3000’). Our limited
assurance procedures included:
•     Evaluating the design and implementation of the key processes and controls for
managing and reporting the indicators.
•     Making enquiries of management.
•     Testing key management controls.
•     Limited testing, on a selective basis, of the data used to calculate the indicator  
back to supporting documentation.
•     Comparing the content requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual to the categories reported in the Quality Report.
•     Reading the documents.
A limited assurance engagement is smaller in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement.  The nature, timing and extent of procedures for gathering sufficient
appropriate evidence are deliberately limited relative to a reasonable assurance
engagement.

Limitations
Non-financial performance information is subject to more inherent limitations than
financial information, given the characteristics of the subject matter and the methods
used for determining such information.
The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw allows for the
selection of different but acceptable measurement techniques which can result in
materially different measurements and can impact comparability. The precision of
different measurement techniques may also vary.  Furthermore, the nature and
methods used to determine such information, as well as the measurement criteria
and the precision thereof, may change over time. It is important to read the Quality
Report in the context of the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual.
The scope of our assurance work has not included governance over quality or nonmandated indicators which have been determined locally by Yeovil District Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust.
Conclusion
Based on the results of our procedures, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that, for the year ended 31 March 2014:
•     the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria
set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;
•     the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources
      specified above; and
•     the indicators in the Quality Report subject to limited assurance have not been
reasonably stated in all material respects in accordance with the NHS Foundation
Trust Annual Reporting Manual.

KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
100 Temple Street
Bristol
BS1 6AG

Annexes
Annex A – statements from Clinical Commissioning Group,
Local Healthwatch and Council of Governors
Statement received from Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group
As lead commissioner, Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group has monitored the safety,
effectiveness and patient experience of health services at Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust (the Trust) during 2013/14. The Trust’s engagement in the quality contract monitoring process
provides the basis for commissioners to comment on the quality account, including performance
against quality improvement priorities and the quality of the data included.
We have reviewed the achievements against the National Performance Indicators as outlined in the
account and can confirm that the reported position is accurate.
We have reviewed the identified Quality Improvement priorities for inclusion in the Quality Accounts
for 2013/14 and would comment as follows:
Quality
Yeovil District Hospital have maintained, and built upon, their commitment to achieve high quality
patient care throughout 2013/14. Underpinning the improvements have been the significant reports
published concerning quality and patient safety by Robert Francis, Don Berwick and Bruce Keogh
and Anne Clwyd into the management of complaints within the NHS.
The Trust’s vision and values are based on their iCARE strategy, developed by nursing staff following
the identification of common themes following a review of complaints.
The CCG can confirm that the Trust regularly reviews the quality and safety of its services using a
broad range of quality indicators and these are reported to the CCG at the quarterly clinical quality
review meetings. These include the priorities identified for 2013/14 as part of the Commissioning
Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) framework agreed with the Trust. The CCG acknowledges the
significant progress made in improving quality, an example of which is the achievement of a 40%
reduction in avoidable hospital acquired pressure ulcers of grade 2 and above during 2013/14.

Patient Safety
•

Incident Reporting and Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRIs)

The Trust is commended for maintaining a positive approach to incident reporting that actively
encourages staff to report near misses and patient safety incidents. This is supported by a 23%
increase in reporting of incidents with systems developed to identify vulnerable adults, individuals
with a learning disability or dementia to improve learning. Root Cause Analysis investigations
were undertaken for those incidents that met the definitions of a SIRI, in accordance with national
definitions and guidance, and were reported to Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group.
•

Never Events

The Trust reported one Never Event during 2013/14. This concerned a retained swab following a
surgical procedure. Although recognised as one of the most common reasons for Never Events,
through a comprehensive Root Cause Analysis, the Trust was able to identify a point of failure not
covered by the WHO surgical checklist. The learning from the incident has been shared nationally
to promote learning and support prevention of similar incidents.
•

Learning Lessons

The Trust is commended for the focus on learning lessons from incidents and complaints. There are
clear examples of changes in services as a result of learning, highlighting a responsiveness and
commitment as a learning organisation.
•

Reducing Falls

The Trust has recognised the importance of focusing on the prevention of falls with an overall
reduction in falls of 12% compared to the previous year when the reduction target was not achieved.
Falls resulting in significant harm have also reduced by 60%.
Prevention strategies include the introduction of intentional rounding and the purchase of additional
falls alarms. Information concerning falls is shared with the Trust board on a monthly basis,
maintaining a high level focus.
•

Venous Thrombo-embolism (VTE)

The Trust achieved and maintained the National CQUIN target of 95% of patients being risk assessed
for VTE within 24 hours of admission.
•

Medication errors

The importance of reporting and learning from medication incidents within the Trust is reflected
in the upward trend of incident reporting, with focussed work commissioned through the newly
established Safer Medicines Group.
•

Safety Thermometer

The Trust has successfully embedded the use of the Safety Thermometer to assess all in-patients
for four specific harms; pressure ulcers, falls, catheter associated urinary tract infections and Venous
Thrombo-embolisms.
The CCG commends the Trust for consistently achieving >90% harm free care for the year 2013/14.
Clinical Effectiveness
•
Hospital standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) and Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator
(SHMI)
The CCG recognises the positive outcome of a sustained focus on rates of HSMR and SHMI and
commends the Trust for achieving one of the lowest rates within the region.
•

Clinical audit programme

The Trust has participated in a broad number of national audit programmes which provide assurance
of the quality of treatment and care, and the outcomes of care for patients along with three national
confidential enquiries. The Trust also has a comprehensive programme of local audits that have
influenced improvement in patient care across services.
•

Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMS)

The CCG can confirm that the Trust participates in the collection of data to support PROMS for
elective hernia surgery, hip and knee replacements.
•

Readmissions

The Trust 28 readmissions rates within both patient age reporting categories, 0-14 and 15 and over,
are below the national average.
Patient Experience
•

Staff Survey

The Trust has responded to areas for improvement identified as a result of the staff survey by
implementing a staff engagement strategy to enhance communication and improve morale.
•

Inpatient survey

The overall results of this survey were positive, showing a consistent level of patient satisfaction
when compared with previous surveys.
The trust is focusing on areas identified for improvement; explaining to patients how to take their
medication and improving the signage of single sex bathroom facilities to further promote privacy
and dignity.
The CCG acknowledges the work that has already commenced in these areas.
•

Friends and Family – Staff

The Trust reported a Staff Friends of Family score of 68 for 2013/14, just above the national average
of 67.1.
•

Friends and Family – Patients

The CCG recognises the dedication from the Trust to implement the Friends and Family Test in
inpatient and A&E settings and for the maternity pathway from October 2013.
The Trust has incorporated the question into their iCARE patient survey and achieve a good response
rate for inpatients. As reflected nationally, achieving a good response rate in the A&E department
has proved challenging. The Trust continues to explore how response rates can be improved.
The Trust has implemented changes as a result a feedback to enhance the patient experience.
Data Quality
It is important for the Trust to demonstrate the quality of care provided and for this to be benchmarked
against other NHS providers. With increasing patient choice the provision of high quality data on the
effectiveness and safety of the care provided to patients at Yeovil District Hospital will be important
for patients who choose to have their treatment at the hospital.
The Trust has resolved a data quality issue related to NHS numbers in the A&E department and this
area is now showing an improvement.

Quality Improvement Priorities for 2014/15
Somerset CCG supports the quality improvement priorities identified by the Trust for the coming
year.
A number of these priorities have been included in the Commissioning Quality and Innovation
(CQUIN) framework that we have agreed with the Trust as set out below:
•
•
•
•

Increasing response rates and decreasing negative responses for the Friends and Family
Test
Identification and early diagnosis of dementia, support for carers and training and education
for staff
Improvements in the Frail Elderly Care Pathway
Further reduction in incidence of avoidable hospital acquired pressure ulcers

We can confirm that the Quality Account meets national requirements in respect of content, provides
a balanced view of the Trusts’ achievements and as such is an accurate reflection of the quality
of services provided. Yeovil District Hospital has made significant achievements in improving the
quality of the services provided during 2014/15.
We look forward to continuing to work with Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust during
2014/15 to improve the safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience of the services provided
by the Trust.

Statement received from Somerset Healthwatch
On behalf of Healthwatch Somerset we have welcomed the opportunity to comment on the Quality
Account for Yeovil District Hospital for 2013/2014. We have been particularly impressed with the
clarity of the layout of the document and it has been easy to follow in most sections with clear use of
line spacing and font sizing appropriate to the reader. Feedback comes across as an honest reflection
of practices and achievements or areas needing improvement throughout and it is mentioned in
the Chief Executive’s (CE) statement that the account outlines the areas of priority and that not all
quality improvement work undertaken throughout the year has been included. The CE also makes
reference to the changes made in the focus on patient safety, complaints and patient experiences
following reviews at other trusts. Relevant pictures have been used within the account enhancing
topics discussed. We have focussed our response on the issues that reflect the interest of the public.
There were no major issues of concern identified within the report. It clearly identifies and discusses
Corporate Objectives and CQUIN Objectives for the coming year. Six Corporate Objectives are
identified for development over 2014/15 and 2015/16. These are:
•
Securing a continual reduction in avoidable patient harm
•
Establish a substantive patient experience team and increase the range of opportunities for
patients and staff to provide feedback on their experiences of the hospital, including further roll out
of the Friends and Family Test.
•
Increase opportunities for staff engagement through the delivery of a corporate programme
of work.
•
Further develop and increase 7 day working across a number of aspects of Trust services
such as Pharmacy and Radiology
•
Continue with the procurement and implementation of electronic health records and use of IT
systems to enhance care delivery for both patients and staff.
•
Further develop opportunities to integrate care between hospital, GP’s and Community
Services as part of the Symphony Project.
The Corporate Objectives clearly show that the Trust is looking to put patient safety and feedback
at the forefront and allow for staff to become fully engaged in changes being made. It highlights
the importance of the Symphony Project and integration of services which, in conjunction with the
proposed use of electronic records, will aid information transfer both within and externally to the
hospital. Feedback has been discussed from the National Inpatient Survey and Staff Survey which
describes clearly the areas that the Trust is achieving in and those needing action. The iCARE
programme is introduced at induction stage and is clear evidence of staff involvement in development
of patient care and experience. A pilot of an enhanced patient experience team has been successful.
Over the coming 12 months the Board has listed seven areas for improvement all of which Healthwatch
fully supports. The data provided within the report shows progress in some of these over the past
year. Not all areas have targets set to review progress against in the coming year. Our comments on

these seven areas are as below: 1.
To reduce the HSMR and SHMI from the 2012/2013 baseline
Continued reduction of these figures is an important indicator linked to care provision. Clarification
on this section is needed as although there is information to suggest that figures are decreasing it
is unclear what is being discussed to a lay person. It would be beneficial to add in a diagrammatic
representation of the priority.
2.
Maintain participation in the regional patient safety collaborative
Continued participation within the patient safety collaborative ensures awareness of high priority
areas for quality improvement (some of which are listed in these 7 areas). We agree that it is
important for cross functional working between different trust members throughout the South West
and although this cannot be quantified per se, continued improvement in patient safety standards
can be used as an indicator of success.
3.
Reduce the number of Hospital acquired pressure ulcers
A 40% reduction in pressure ulcers was achieved in 2013/14 and the trust are looking to achieve a
further 20% reduction in 2014/15. Further clarification of ulcer grading (1-4) would provide greater
detail in the feedback of progress in this area.
4.
Reduce cases of healthcare associated infections (HAI) including MRSA and Clostridium
difficile.
Information provided shows that the Trust has met and exceeded levels for HAI over the past 12
months with zero MRSA and meeting the nationwide target for C. diff. which is a good achievement.
There is no Trust set target specified for 2014/15 which needs addressing.
5.
Reduce patients falling in hospital, including those that fall more than once and where a fall
results in harm.
Although numbers remain relatively high, the levels of falls have decreased over the past few years
and the use of focus to identify patients likely to fall appears to have contributed to this. There is
clear data to state that serious falls have declined significantly however targets for the coming year
have not been specified. It is not clear what the grading risk is as it mentions a risk score of 3 and
above and this needs clarification.
6.
Develop a local indicator to monitor timelines of discharge with particular focus on discharging
patients before midday.
Discharge teams work over a 7 day rota and plan discharges in advance and this will be supplemented
by the use of electronic discharge information by mid 2014/15. The hospital is aware that further
improvements in this area are needed and work has begun on these. Targets have not been specified.
7.
Improve the management of concerns and complaints to improve timeliness of response to
patients.
The introduction of an information leaflet is a good idea and work is taking place to improve

feedback and response times (the timescales are not specified). Reference is made to changes
made throughout 2013/14 but there is no detail provided on further work in this area.
YDH participates in a large number of national and local clinical audits and these are described. It
makes mention of participation in research and development in a number of studies. Within section
three of the report there is detailed feedback on performance against a number of criteria and it
is pleasing to note that staff reporting of incidents is encouraged and is increasing. Root Cause
Analysis is routinely used when deemed relevant.
The report is lengthy and detailed however the layout makes it user friendly. A small number of
suggestions on presentation in the draft report have been suggested including the need for page
numbers, a glossary, acronym and medical terminology definition and clearer graphs (in some
cases) which YDH have received separately to this feedback.

Statement received from the Council of Governors
The Council of Governors receives regular reports on all aspects of quality, including patient safety,
clinical outcome and patient experience. In addition, the Clinical Governance Assurance Committee
has invited two Governors to be observers of its meetings and actively encouraged them to participate
and contribute their views; these Governors report back to the Council of Governors. Governors
have a Patient Experience Group which looks at ways both to assess patient experience and to
improve it.  The Governors have been reassured that the provision of high quality care is a core aim
of Yeovil District Hospital and that appro-priate measures are in place to monitor standards.
The improvement in the measures of safety as recorded by HSMR and SHMI are really pleasing as is
the continued strong performance in infection control. Governors were happy to see improvements
in other safety measures including falls and pressure ulcers and support the aim to continue efforts
for further reductions. We received regular reports on the new approach to complaints handling,
including phoning complainants and dealing with issues quickly and less formally if this is the patient’s
wish.   We believe this will bring benefits as will coordinated reporting on all patient measures,
enabling the trust and Governors to ensure patients’ views are sought and actions taken to make
improvements where necessary.
Governors took ‘Timeliness of Discharge’ as their Local Indicator for the year as this is known to
be of importance to patients.  The measure of ‘discharge before noon’ proved not to be sufficiently
robust to be auditable, but it has been reported on the Governor dashboard. It is disappointing
that, despite the work done, the hospital has not been able to bring about any significant change in
numbers discharged before noon. There have been some improvements in the discharge process
but we welcome the further plans to improve timeliness of discharge and also to work on providing
a better experience and more information to patients on discharge from hospital. We see this as a
vital aspect of patient care and hope to see significant im-provements by the end of the year. The
Governors plan to keep this as our key quality priority for 2014-15.
We are keen to see the trust pursue clear and focussed lines of improvement for next year according
to the priorities set out in the report, taking into account learning from the Francis Report, Keogh,
Clywd and other national reviews. We believe these improvements will be achieved via a structured
approach and active learning from comments from patients.
The Governors fully support the iCARE philosophy and the principles of good care which continue
to underpin all that the hospital does.

Annex B - Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the quality report
In preparing this annual quality account the Trust’s Board of Directors has satisfied itself that the content
meets the requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Reporting Manual 2013/14.
The content of the report is consistent with internal and external sources of information, including:
•
Board minutes and papers between April 2013 and March 2014
•
Papers relating to quality reported to the Board between April 2013 and March 2014
•
Feedback from the Commissioners
•
Feedback from the Governors
•
Feedback from HealthWatch
•
The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social Services and
NHS Complaints Regulation 2009
•
The latest national patient surveys
•
The latest national staff survey
•
The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment
•
CQC quality and risk profiles
The quality report presents a balanced picture of the Foundation Trust’s performance over 2014/14.  The
performance information is reliable and accurate, and there are proper internal controls over the collection
and reporting of the performance measure included in the Quality Report. These controls are subject
to review to confirm that they are working effectively in practice. The data underpinning the measure of
performance reported in the Quality Report is robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards
and prescribed definitions, is subject to scrutiny and review; and the Quality Report has been prepared in
accordance with Monitor’s annual reporting guidance (which incorporated the Quality Account regulations) as
well as the standards to support data quality for the preparation of the Quality Report.
The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the Quality Report.
By order of the Board

Chairman

Chief Executive
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Statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities as the Accounting Officer of
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS Foundation Trust.
The relevant responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, including their responsibility for the propriety and
regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by the Independent Regulator of
NHS Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to prepare
for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts
Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, total
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
•

Observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

•

Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

•

State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the
financial statements;

•

Ensure that the use of public finds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated authorities and
guidance; and

•

Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
and to enable him to ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements outlined in the above
mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking any reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in Monitor’s
NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officers’ Memorandum.
Signed

Paul Mears– Chief Executive
Date:
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Accounts
The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each
financial year. The Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, Monitor, with the approval of the
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the Foundation Trust’s gains and losses,
cash flows and financial state at the end of the financial year.
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant information of which the Trust’s auditors are
unaware. The directors have taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant information and to establish that the Trust’s auditors are aware of that
information.

Signed on behalf of the board:

Paul Mears– Chief Executive
Date:
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Annual Governance Statement
Scope of Responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that
supports the achievement of the NHS foundation trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding
the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the
responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS foundation trust is
administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (“YDH”), to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place at YDH for the year ended 31 March 2014
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
Capacity to Handle Risk
YDH has a comprehensive, system for managing risks associated with the achievement of its strategic
and organisational objectives and compliance with the terms of its licence with Monitor.
Leadership
As Accounting Officer, I am ultimately responsible for the management of risk. The Board of Directors (the
“Board”), collectively and individually, ensures that appropriate structures and robust systems of internal
control and management are in place.
The Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance is the designated executive director with Board level
accountably for clinical quality, safety and risk management. The Medical Director supports this role. YDH
has a designated Risk Manager within the Clinical Governance Department.
The Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance
Committee are YDH’s strategic risk assurance committees chaired by non-executive directors.
Independently they report to the Board with assurance on the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk
management and internal control processes.
YDH has mechanisms to report serious incidents through the National Reporting and Learning Service
(NRLS) and to act on safety alerts, recommendations and guidelines made by all relevant central bodies
such as NHS England, the Medical Healthcare Regulatory Authority (MHRA) and the National Institute for
Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE).

Training
There is an in-house programme of risk management training which is designed to equip staff with the
necessary skills to enable them to manage risk effectively.
The induction programme ensures that all new staff are provided with details of YDH’s risk management
systems and processes and is augmented by local induction organised by line managers. This includes
the comprehensive induction of all junior doctors with regard to key policies, standards and practice prior
to commencement in clinical areas. Mandatory training reflects essential training needs, and includes risk
management processes such as fire, health and safety, manual handling, resuscitation, infection control,
safeguarding patients, and information governance. E-learning and workbooks support this programme.
Skills and competencies are also assessed for medical device equipment and for blood transfusion to
ensure safety in care.
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Root cause analysis training is provided to staff members who are required to complete investigations.
Incident reporting training and support is provided to managers and training about systems for managing
safety alerts is provided on a needs basis. YDH presents learning from national and internal reports and
from external and internal investigations at the Board and at assurance committees. Learning from
incidents, complaints and claims is presented through the Clinical Governance Delivery Committee which
supports the risk management approach through identifying improvement opportunities. This learning is
cascaded out through monthly governance meetings with quarterly Trust-wide multi professional learning
events held.
The Risk and Control Framework
The Risk Management Strategy underpins the Quality Strategy. The risk management approach of
setting objectives and then identifying, analysing, prioritising and managing risk is embedded throughout
the organisation.
The process starts with the systematic identification of risks throughout the organisation via structured risk
assessments. Identified risks are documented on risk registers. These risks are then analysed in order to
determine their relative likelihood and consequence using a risk matrix scoring. The responsibility for
managing risks is in accordance with the prioritisation and thresholds set out in the Risk Management
Strategy. Risks scoring 6 and under are managed by the area in which they are identified whilst strategic
business unit teams review and assess risks rated 8 and above. Managers implement action plans and
review the risks for which they are responsible in line with the review dates set in the risk register.
Achieving control of the higher scoring risks is given priority over lower scoring risks for financial and
management considerations. Risks scored at 12 and above are captured within a corporate risk register
and monitored by the assurance committees and the Board on a quarterly basis.
The Hospital Management Team (HMT) is YDH’s operational management committee. HMT is a subcommittee of the Board and its membership includes corporate directors and strategic business unit
management teams providing the leadership for management of risk. Directors of the strategic business
units, supported by associate medical directors and associate directors of nursing, are responsible for
managing risk which is cascaded through the organisational structure. Risk registers are held for each of
the strategic business units which include all operational risks.
Risk Management Activity
In 2013/14, YDH has taken a range of actions to reduce specific risks and to provide levels of assurance.
Examples include:
•
•

•

the active management of clinical risk to oversee a reduction in pressure ulcers, patient falls that
cause harm and hospital acquired infections
management of risks to data security through the Information Governance Committee, which
reports to the Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee, in accordance with the Risk Management
Strategy. The Senior Information Risk Owner is the Chief Financial and Commercial Officer. The
Information Governance Toolkit remains an essential tool in monitoring progress against national
standards and assessment of information security is undertaken annually as part of this process
equality impact assessments that are carried out on policies and procedures, training needs and
new developments on healthcare facilities

Quality Governance
In terms of quality governance, YDH’s Quality Strategy is aimed at achieving excellence in clinical care.
Quality Accounts have been prepared which set out the progress made in areas of patient safety, clinical
outcomes and patient experience. Patient safety improvement work is monitored through the Clinical
Governance Delivery Committee which reviews and monitors data in the form of metrics. Information on
quality and patient safety are received monthly by the Board.
Incident reporting forms part of the monitoring process to identify errors and risks which is analysed for
trends to prevent reoccurrence. Information is used across YDH from ward level to the Board. Where
investigations are triggered these are reviewed by the Clinical Governance team. Staff are encouraged to
report incidents and support is provided by managers and through training.
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To enable YDH to ensure compliance with Care Quality Commission (CQC) registration the Board
assurance committees have reviewed the Quality and Risk Profile (QRP) and the Intelligent Monitoring
Report alongside the Assurance Framework. The CQC Essential Standards of Quality and Safety are
assessed through operational leads and monitored for assurance purposes.
YDH is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.
Corporate Governance Arrangements
YDH is subject to the recommendations of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance (‘NHS Code’).
This closely follows the UK Corporate Governance Code and encourages Boards to conduct a formal
evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and directors.
Accordingly, during 2013/14, Ernst & Young LLP were commissioned to undertake a review of the
performance and effectiveness of the Board and its committees. The recommendations of this review
were presented to the Board in March 2014 with the overall findings being very positive in acknowledging
that the Board and its committees are functioning well, although there are some opportunities for
improvement. An action plan will be put in place to ensure implementation of the recommendations. This
will include:
•
•
•
•

clarifying the roles, responsibilities and reporting structures of the committees of the Boards and
revising their terms of reference, including membership, quorum etc
establishing a rolling agenda programme for the Board and its committees
establishing a professional development programme and corporate development programme for the
Board
revising the arrangements for the Remuneration Committee, which will now be chaired by the
Chairman of the Audit Committee

A review has also been undertaken by the internal auditors, BDO, into YDH’s governance arrangements.
Overall, the review identified that the governance processes are essentially robust and that the chief
components of good governance (such as strong leadership, challenge by non-executive directors and
focus on risk) are in place.
However, the review also identified that YDH’s governance arrangements are in need of updating and a
more coherent structure required, particularly around quality of services.
Areas that are being addressed include:
•
•
•
•
•

redesigning the Board committee structure
enhancing the scope of the Audit Committee so that it takes an overarching view of risk and
governance
clarifying links between the Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and the Non-Clinical Risk
Assurance Committee
establishing a Quality Committee where quality issues can be discussed as part of the formal
process in order to provide the relevant assurances to the Board and its committees
clarifying the roles, responsibilities and reporting structures of the committees of the Board

The review acknowledged there is evidence of improvement in Board reporting and decision making,
stating that ‘the best indicator that the Trust’s arrangements work in practice is that it has been performing
well on a range of financial, operational and quality indicators’. Operational performance is reviewed by
HMT and the Operating & Financial Performance Overview, which has undergone significant improvement
during the year, is presented to the Board on a monthly basis for scrutiny and oversight.
Key Stakeholder Engagement – Risk Management
There are close working relationships between YDH and its key public stakeholders, including governors,
Monitor, NHS England, and the Somerset and Dorset clinical commissioning groups. Where specific
issues arise these are addressed on a partnership basis through ongoing dialogue, consensus and mutual
support. Governors are invited to observe each meeting of the Board and its assurance committees and to
participate in the functioning of these committees.
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Control Measures
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in
place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This
includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme
are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately
updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity and
human rights legislation are complied with.
YDH has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans are in place in accordance
with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather
projects, to ensure that this organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation
Reporting requirements are complied with.
Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Use of Resources
YDH’s budget for 2013/14 and three year financial plans were discussed and approved by the Board in
May 2013. Overall performance is monitored via the Operating and Financial Performance Overview at
the monthly meetings of the Board. Operational management and the co-ordination of services are
delivered by the strategic business units which comprise executive directors, associate medical directors
and associate nursing directors. Performance is reviewed weekly by the HMT.
During the year, YDH has established a Project Management Office to lead and coordinate change
programmes to achieve improvements in quality, productivity and economic efficiency.
The YDH Internal Audit operational Plan includes sections on financial assurance on managing resources
effectively. The findings of the internal audits are reported to the Board via the Audit Committee.
Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts)
Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. Monitor has issued
guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of annual Quality Reports which
incorporate the above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The Board receives monthly reports providing an overview of the quality of care provided to ensure the
accuracy of data throughout the year. Data quality is reviewed monthly by the Clinical Governance and
Information teams through review of data recording systems and cross checks of information through audit
data. This information is also reviewed through strategic business unit meetings on a monthly basis
relevant to their specific areas. The Clinical Governance Assurance Committee seeks assurance about
the quality of care provided and reports directly to the Board. Operational leads report to the Clinical
Governance Assurance Committee to enable the opportunity for debate and scrutiny about quality
measures and risks faced by the teams.
During 2013/14, YDH appointed an Associate Director for Patient Safety and Quality and patient safety
leads to further enhance safety and quality improvement. Quality improvement work has taken place
during 2013/14 based around the work of the South West Patient Safety Improvement Programme.
Clinical governance arrangements are in place for monitoring the quality of care provided from a variety of
sources. Audits and data collection take place against the quality measures, NICE guidance is measured
and monitored through the strategic business units. External sources of information are used to inform the
quality reports, including inspections and peer reviews, the Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR)
data from Dr Foster Intelligence. Quality measures and CQUIN’s have been agreed with the Somerset
CCG and these have been reported in year through performance and quality monitoring meetings.
Together these arrangements provide assurance that the information provided in the Annual Quality
Report provides a balanced view.
Data is provided to the strategic business unit management teams by staff trained and experienced in
data analysis. There are policies in place to guide management of systems, including, but not exclusively,
complaints, incident reporting, audit, infection prevention and control and litigation claims.
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External assurance is gained through the annual internal audit programme and by the work of the external
auditors.
Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the
internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical leads within YDH who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on the
content of the quality report attached to this annual report and other performance information available to
me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter
and other reports.
I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control by the Board, the Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and the
Non-Clinical Risk Assurance Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.
The process for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control has been in
accordance with the YDH’s Risk Management Strategy This provides for clear structures and processes
for risk management, and for distinct arrangements for providing internal and external assurance on the
effectiveness of this system.
The Audit Committee, Clinical Governance Assurance Committee and Non-Clinical Risk Assurance
Committee provide the assurance element of the system of internal control. The assurance committees
jointly undertake reviews of the Assurance Framework in respect of their assigned risk review areas,
reporting directly to the Board.
The internal audit programme was agreed in 2013/14 and the programme has been adapted in year to
adjust for the risk profile. This process, in conjunction with reviews of the Assurance Framework has put in
place a robust review mechanism for setting and reviewing principal risks. Audit reports are reported in a
timely manner to their respective assurance committees for review and monitoring of actions.
YDH received a number of internal audit reports during the year which identified issues to be addressed.
The majority of the recommendations either have been implemented or are in progress for implementation
and assurances have been received that systems are in place to ensure these are completed.
The Clinical Governance Delivery Committee monitors clinical audit reports and data presented through
work streams to review the effectiveness of the Quality Strategy in order to produce the quality accounts.
Conclusion
I am satisfied that effective systems are in place to manage risk and that the culture of risk management is
embedded in YDH, at every level in the management structure. There are no significant internal control
issues which have been identified during the course of the year or in relation to this year-end statement.

Signed………………..
Paul Mears - Chief Executive Date:

May 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE
YEOVIL DISTRICT HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST
We have audited the financial statements of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the year
ended 31 March 2014 on pages 12 to 49. These financial statements have been prepared under
applicable law and the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2013/14.
This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in
accordance with Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of
Governors of the Trust, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the accounting officer and the auditor
As described more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities on page 2 the accounting
officer is responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practice’s Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Trust’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the accounting officer and the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
In addition we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
-

Give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2014
and of the Group’s and the Trust’s income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

-

Have been properly prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
Manual 2013/14.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report where under the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion, the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect the disclosure
requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2013/14, is misleading or is
not consistent with our knowledge of the Trust and other information of which we are aware from our audit
of the financial statements.
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We are not required to assess, nor have we assessed, whether all risks and controls have been
addressed by the Annual Governance Statement or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal
controls.

Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006
and the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts issued by Monitor.

Jonathan Brown, for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
100 Temple Street
Bristol
BS1 6AG

Page 10

FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS
These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014 have been prepared by Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service
Act 2006 in the form in which Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, with the
approval of the Treasury, has directed.
Signed:

Paul Mears – Chief Executive
Date
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2014
Note

Group
2012/13
2013/14

Trust
2012/13
2013/14

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Operating Income from continuing operations

3

117,922

116,735

117,558

116,369

Operating Expenses of continuing operations

6.1

(116,789)

(114,964)

(116,327)

(114,452)

1,133

1,771

1,231

1,917

OPERATING SURPLUS
FINANCE COSTS
Finance income

10

30

76

26

69

Finance expense - unwinding of discount on
provisions

20

(14)

(17)

(14)

(17)

PDC Dividends payable

(1,584)

(1,597)

(1,584)

(1,597)

NET FINANCE COSTS

(1,568)

(1,538)

(1,572)

(1,545)

(435)

233

(341)

372

2,120

(1,242)

2,120

(1,242)

1,685

(1,009)

1,779

(870)

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gains and impairment losses property, plant and equipment
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR

15.1
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Trust

Group
Note

31-Mar-2014

31-Mar-2013

31-Mar-2014

31-Mar-2013

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Non current assets
Intangible Assets

14.1

1,401

Property, plant and equipment

15.1

53,828

50,569

53,828

50,569

Trade and other receivables

18.1

455

450

455

450

55,684

51,591

55,684

51,591

17

1,931

1,813

1,931

1,813

18.1

3,580

3,797

3,574

3,788

0

0

0

0

8,778

10,683

8,000

9,872

14,289

16,293

13,505

15,473

Total non current assets

572

1,401

572

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Non current assets held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents

24

Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

19

(9,627)

(10,568)

(9,560)

(10,559)

Borrowings

21

(107)

(128)

(107)

(128)

Provisions

20

(94)

(330)

(94)

(330)

0

0

0

0

(9,828)

(11,026)

(9,761)

(11,017)

60,145

56,858

59,428

56,047

Other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities
Non current liabilities
Borrowings

21

(849)

(63)

(849)

(63)

Provisions

20

(959)

(819)

(959)

(819)

(1,808)

(882)

(1,808)

(882)

58,337

55,976

57,620

55,165

41,501

40,825

41,501

40,825

10,221

8,113

10,221

8,113

5,898

6,227

5,898

6,227

717

811

0

0

58,337

55,976

57,620

55,165

Total non current liabilities
Total assets employed
Financed by
Taxpayers' equity
Public Dividend Capital

28

Revaluation reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
Others' equity
Charitable fund reserves
Total taxpayers' equity

The Annual Accounts were formally approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf by:

Paul Mears – Chief Executive
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY 2013/2014
Total

Charitable
Funds

Public
Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

£'000
55,976

£'000
811

£'000
40,825

£'000
8,113

£'000
6,227

Deficit for the year

(435)

(80)

0

0

(355)

Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment
losses property, plant and equipment

2,120

0

0

2,120

0

Transfer to the income and expenditure
account in respect of assets disposed of

0

0

0

(12)

12

Increase in the donated asset reserve due
to receipt of donated assets

0

0

0

0

0

676

0

676

0

0

Other transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

0

Movements on other reserves

0

(14)

0

0

14

2,361

(94)

676

2,108

(329)

58,337

717

41,501

10,221

5,898

Group
Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2013

Public Dividend Capital received

Total Comprehensive income for the year

Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2014
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY 2012/2013

Total

Charitable
Funds

Public
Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

£'000
55,835

£'000
0

£'000
40,625

£'000
9,371

£'000
5,839

950

950

0

0

0

56,785

950

40,625

9,371

5,839

233

(136)

0

0

369

(1,242)

0

0

(1,242)

0

Transfer to the income and expenditure account in respect
of assets disposed of

0

0

0

(16)

16

Increase in the donated asset reserve due to receipt of
donated assets

0

0

0

0

0

200

0

200

0

0

Other transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

0

Movements on other reserves

0

(3)

0

0

3

(809)

(139)

200

(1,258)

388

55,976

811

40,825

8,113

6,227

Group

Note

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2012
Prior period adjustment
Taxpayers ' Equity at 1 April 2012 Restated
Surplus for the year

Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment losses
property, plant and equipment

Public Dividend Capital received

Total Comprehensive income for the year
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2013

1.2
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2014
Group
2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

Trust
2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations

23

3,723

8,415

3,760

8,611

10

26

69

26

69

Payments to acquire intangible assets

14.1

(952)

(334)

(952)

(334)

Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets

15.1

(3,790)

(3,395)

(3,790)

(3,395)

0

378

0

378

4

6

0

0

(4,712)

(3,276)

(4,716)

(3,282)

676

200

676

200

0

0

0

0

(128)

(128)

(128)

(128)

(1,464)

(1,647)

(1,464)

(1,647)

(916)

(1,575)

(916)

(1,575)

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(1,905)

3,564

(1,872)

3,754

Cash and Cash equivalents at 1 April

10,683

7,119

9,872

6,118

8,778

10,683

8,000

9,872

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Sales of Property, Plant & Equipment
Charitable fund investing activities

10

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Public Dividend Capital received

28

Interest element of finance lease
Loans repaid

21

PDC Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activies

Cash and Cash equivalents at 31 March
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1

Accounting policies and other information
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS foundation trusts shall meet the
accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT ARM)
which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the 2013/14 NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual to the
extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to
the accounts.

1.1

Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account
for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain
financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.2

Consolidation
Joint Ventures
Joint Ventures are separate entities over which the Trust has joint control with one or more other
parties. The meaning of control is where the Trust has the power to exercise control or a
dominant influence so as to gain economic or other benefits.
Consolidation of Charity
The NHS foundation trust is the corporate trustee to Yeovil NHS charitable fund. The foundation
trust has assessed its relationship to the charitable fund and determined it to be a subsidiary
because the foundation trust has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the
charitable fund so as to obtain benefits from its activities for itself, its patients or its staff.
Prior to 2013/14, the FT ARM permitted the NHS foundation trust not to consolidate the
charitable fund. From 2013/14, the foundation trust has consolidated the charitable fund and has
applied this as a change in accounting policy.
The charitable fund’s statutory accounts are prepared to 31 March in accordance with the UK
Charities Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) which is based on UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP). On consolidation, necessary adjustments are made
to the charity’s assets, liabilities and transactions to:
• recognise and measure them in accordance with the foundation trust’s accounting policies;
and
• eliminate intra-group transactions, balances, gains and losses.

1.3

Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance
occurs and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of
income for the trust is contracts with commissioners in respect of healthcare services.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial
year, that income is deferred.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of
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sale have been met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.
1.4

Expenditure on Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the
service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken
by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.
Pension costs
NHS Pension Scheme
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices
and other bodies, allowed under the direction of Secretary of State, in England and Wales. It is
not possible for the NHS foundation trust to identify its share of the underlying scheme liabilities.
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.
Employer’s pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they
become due.
Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except
where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is
charged to the operating expenses at the time the trust commits itself to the retirement,
regardless of the method of payment.

1.5

Expenditure on other goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been
received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is
recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a non-current asset
such as property, plant and equipment.

1.6

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where:
•

it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

•

it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided
to, the Trust;

•

it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

•

the cost of the item can be measured reliably;

•

the cost of the individual asset is at least £5,000;

•

the items form a group of assets which individually have a cost of at least £250,
collectively have a cost of at least £5,000, where the assets are functionally
interdependent, they broadly have simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to
have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; and

•

the items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building or
refurbishment of a ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly
different asset lives e.g. plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate
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assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.
Measurement
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs
directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
Land and property assets are valued 5 yearly with a 3 yearly interim valuation also carried out.
Annual impairment reviews are carried out in other years. The 5 yearly and 3 yearly interim
revaluations are carried out by a professionally qualified valuer in accordance with the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The valuations are
carried out on the basis of a Modern Equivalent Asset as required by HM Treasury. The annual
reviews are conducted using the most appropriate information available at the date of the
review. A desktop revaluation was carried out as at 31 March 2014 and a full revaluation was
st
carried out at 31 March 2013.
Equipment assets values are reviewed annually by internal experts to determine the remaining
life based on past and forecasted consumption of the economic useful life of the asset.
Assets in the course of construction are valued at current cost. They are valued by professional
valuers when they are first brought into use and are subsequently valued as part of the five or
three yearly valuations.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an
increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic
benefits or service potential deriving from the cost incurred to replace a component of such item
will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably.
Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets
the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised.
Other expenditure that does not generate additional future economic benefits or service
potential, such as repairs and maintenance is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the period in which it is incurred.
Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic
lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.
Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated.
Equipment is depreciated evenly over the estimated life of the asset.

Medical equipment
Engineering plant and equipment
Furniture
Office and information technology equipment
Mainframe information technology installations
Set up costs in new buildings
Soft furnishings

Years
5 to 15
5 to 15
10
5
8
5
7

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ ceases to be
depreciated upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated
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until the asset is brought into use.
Revaluation gains and losses
Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent
that, they reverse a revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating
expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income.
Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available
balance for the asset concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’.
Impairments
In accordance with the FT ARM, impairments that are due to a loss of economic benefits or
service potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is
made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve of an equal amount to
the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance in the
revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before impairment.
An impairment from a loss of economic benefit or service potential is reversed when, and to the
extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in
operating income to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have
had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the
revaluation reserve. Where at the time of the original impairment, a transfer was made from the
revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to the
revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are
treated as revaluation gains.
De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ once all of the following criteria
are met:
•

the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
which are usual and customary for such sales;

•

the sale must be highly probable i.e.:
o

management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;

o

an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;

o

the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;

o

the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of
classification as ‘Held for Sale’; and

o

the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will
be dropped or significant changes made to it.

Following the reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying
amount and their ‘fair value less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are
de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been met.
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for
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recognition as ‘Held for Sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s
economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.
Donated, government granted and other grant funded assets
Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair
value on receipt. The donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor
has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be
consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is deferred
within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has
not yet been met.
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as
other items of property, plant and equipment.
1.7

Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of
being sold separately from the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or
other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and where the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.
Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is capitalised
as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to
the operation of hardware e.g. application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.
Measurement
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed
to create, produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.
Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value. Revaluation gains and losses and
impairments are treated in the same manner as for Property, Plant and Equipment.
Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value
less costs to sell’.
Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner
consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.

Intangible Assets – purchased software

Years
5

Assets under construction relate to a new system that will provide real time patient centred
digital records, Smartcare. The benefits of this system include improved coordination of
information for both data recording, information governance and decision making. Furthermore
it will enable better management of operational and financial risk as well as delivering
productivity efficiencies and increased administrative capacity.
Capitalised costs associated with this development are recognised within the accounts as an
internally generated intangible asset. Principally staff costs, these are made up of new staff
recruited specifically for the project, as well as current staff with specialist knowledge providing
expertise whose day to day role is backfilled whilst they support the development of the new
system.
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1.8

Research and Development
Expenditure on research is not capitalised and is therefore charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.

1.9

Revenue Government Grants
Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from Clinical
Commissioning Groups or NHS trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is used to
fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match that
expenditure.

1.10

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. This is considered to be a
reasonable approximation to current cost due to the high turnover of inventories.
Inventories are reviewed to enable identification of slow moving and obsolete items and for
condemnation, disposal and replacement of all unserviceable articles. Obsolete goods are
disposed of in line with the Standing Financial Instructions guidance on Disposals and
Condemnations, Insurance, Losses and Special Payments.

1.11

Financial instruments and financial liabilities
Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of
non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the
Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent
which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.
Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through
finance leases are recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for
leases described below.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets
have expired or the Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and Measurement
Financial assets are categorised as ‘Fair Value through Income and Expenditure’, Loans and
receivables.
Financial liabilities are classified as ‘Fair value through Income and Expenditure’ or as ‘Other
Financial liabilities’.
Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘Fair Value through Income and Expenditure’
Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’ are
financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Derivatives which are embedded in other contracts but which are not ‘closely-related’ to those
contracts are separated-out from those contracts and measured in this category. Assets and
liabilities in this category are classified as current assets and current liabilities.
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These financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, with
transaction costs expensed in the income and expenditure account. Subsequent movements in
the fair value are recognised as gains or losses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
which are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets.
The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS debtors, accrued
income and ‘other debtors’.
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Other financial liabilities
All other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount of the financial liability.
They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the
Statement of Financial Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.
Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest
method and charged to Finance Costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets.
Determination of fair value
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are
determined from discounted cash flow analysis.
Impairment of financial assets
At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets,
other than those held at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’ are impaired. Financial
assets are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
asset.
1.12

Leases
Finance leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the NHS
foundation trust, the asset is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment and a corresponding
liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of the
asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that which produces a constant periodic rate of
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interest on the outstanding liability.
The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is
accounted for as an item of property, plant and equipment.
The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to
achieve a constant rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged
to Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease liability is derecognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Operating leases
Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating
expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received
are added to the lease rentals and charged to operating expenses over the life of the lease.
Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building
component and the classification for each is assessed separately.
1.13

Provisions
The NHS foundation trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive
obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for which it is probable that there will be a future outflow
of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The amount
included in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources required to
settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated
risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using the discount rates published and mandated by HM
Treasury.
Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the NHS
foundation trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical
negligence claims. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence
cases, the legal liability remains with the NHS foundation trust. The total value of clinical
negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the NHS foundation trust is disclosed
at note 20 but is not recognised in the NHS foundation trust’s accounts.
Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS foundation trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to
Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the trust pays an annual
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and in return receives assistance with the costs of
claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of
particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.
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1.14

Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be
confirmed by one or more future events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised
as assets, but are disclosed in note 27 where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
•

1.15

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 27, unless the
probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are defined
as:
o

possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the entity’s control; or

o

present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that
a transfer of economic benefits will arise or for which the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of
assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS trust. HM Treasury
has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.
A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the NHS foundation trust, is payable as public
dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently
3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the NHS foundation trust during the financial year.
Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities,
except for (i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets) (ii) net cash balances held with the
Government Banking Services (GBS), excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate
to a short-term working capital facility, and (iii) any PDC Dividend balance receivable or payable.
In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as issuer of PDC),
the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the
‘pre-audit’ version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should
any adjustment to net assets occur as a result of the audit of the annual accounts.

1.16

Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the NHS foundation trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general,
output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is
charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of
fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated
net of VAT.

1.17

Corporation Tax
The NHS Foundation Trust does not have a corporation tax liability for the year 2013/14. Tax
may be payable on activities as described below:
•

the activity is not related to the provision of core healthcare as defined under Section
14(1) of the HSCA. Private healthcare falls under this legislation and is not therefore
taxable;

•

the activity is commercial in nature and competes with the private sector. In house
trading activities are normally ancillary to the core healthcare objectives and are
therefore not subject to tax;

•

the activity must have annual profits of over £50,000.
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1.18

Foreign exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of the Trust are sterling.
A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional
currency at the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

1.19

Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised
in the accounts since the NHS foundation trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they
are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the requirements of HM
Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual.

1.20

Losses and special payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it
agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that
ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with
the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way
that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant
functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have
been made good through insurance cover had NHS Trusts not been bearing their own risks
(with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).
However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and
compensations register which reports on an accruals basis with the exception of provisions for
future losses.

1.21

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
International accounting standard IAS1 requires estimates, assumptions and judgements to be
continually evaluated and to be based on historical experience and other factors including
expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The purpose of evaluation is to consider whether there
may be a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying value of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, compared to the carrying value in these accounts. The
following significant assumptions and areas of estimation and judgement have been considered
in preparing these financial statements.
Value of land, buildings and dwellings £45.2 million: This is the most significant estimate in the
accounts and is based on the professional judgement of the Trust’s independent valuer with
extensive knowledge of the physical estate and market factors. The value does not take into
account potential future changes in market value which cannot be predicted with any certainty.
Income from patient care activities: Income for an inpatient stay can start to be recognised from
the day of admission, but cannot be precisely calculated until after the patient is discharged. For
patients occupying a bed at the 2013/14 financial year end, the estimated value of partially
completed spells is £533,277 (2012/13 £522,337).
Untaken annual leave: salary costs include a £263,895 estimate for the annual leave earned but
not taken by employees at 31 March 2014, to the extent that staff are permitted to carry leave
forward to the next financial year. (2012/13 £265,906)
Provisions: Assumptions around the timing of the cash flows relating to provisions are based
upon information from the NHS Pensions Agency and expert opinion within the Trust and from
the external advisors regarding when legal issues may be settled.
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1.22

Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued by the
IASB and IFRIC but are not yet required to be adopted:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
−

Financial Assets

−

Financial Liabilities

Uncertain. Not likely to be
adopted by the EU until the
IASB has finished the rest of
its financial instruments
project.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Effective date of 2014/15.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

Effective date of 2014/15.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Effective date of 2014/15.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Effective date of 2013/14 but
not yet adopted by HM
Treasury.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

Effective date of 2014/15.

IAS 28 Associates and joint ventures

Effective date of 2014/15.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments

Effective date of 2014/15

The Trust has considered the above new standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards that are not yet effective and concluded that they are either not relevant to
the Trust or that they would not have a significant impact on the Trust’s financial statements,
apart from some additional disclosures.
1.23

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations issued that have been adopted
early
The Trust has not early adopted any new accounting standards, amendments or interpretations.
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2.

Segmental Analysis
At the current time the Trust is managing and reporting its performance internally on the
segments shown below and is not fully recharging overhead and indirect costs. The assets of
the Trust are not reported on a segmental basis.
The net surplus shown in the segmental analysis reconciles to the surplus for the year in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
In the year the Board of Directors requested a change to the way in which Segmental
reporting is analysed. The reason for this was to reflect the nature of corporate costs.
Corporate costs are areas of the business that are not directly influenced by other divisions,
such as Finance and Access. Separating out the corporate costs gives us the Trust a clearer
indication as to the overall contribution of the clinical services it provides.

Trust

Elective Care
£000's

Urgent Care
£000's

Corporate
£000's

Total
£000's

51,511

50,063

2,001

103,575

Direct Costs
Indirect Costs

(23,280)
(17,976)

(33,156)
(9,390)

0
0

(56,436)
(27,366)

Gross Contribution
Central Costs

10,255
(2,089)

7,517
(1,930)

2,001
(16,095)

19,773
(20,114)

8,166

5,587

(14,094)

(341)

Revenue

Net Contribution
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Segmental Analysis for the year ending 31 March 2013
Medicine

Trust
Income
NHS clinical income
Non NHS clinical income
Total other income
Total Income
Expenses
Pay expenditure
Non pay expenditure
Total Expenditure
Loss on disposal of asset
Total depreciation
PDC dividend
Total interest receivable
Impairment
Finance expense - unwinding of
discount on provisions
Net surplus / (Deficit)

Surgical Family Health
& Clinical
Support

Corporate

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

35,455
31
2,610
38,096

37,441
10
634
38,085

25,038
2,649
1,439
29,126

170
463
10,427
11,060

98,104
3,153
15,110
116,367

(19,649)
(6,550)
(26,199)

(24,952)
(7,394)
(32,346)

(15,981)
(10,551)
(26,532)

(12,512)
(13,377)
(25,889)

(73,094)
(37,872)
(110,966)

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

33
(3,398)
(1,597)
69
(119)

33
(3,398)
(1,597)
69
(119)

0

0

0

(17)

(17)

11,897

5,739

2,594

(19,858)

372
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3

Operating Income from continuing operations
Group
2013/14

2012/13

Clinical Income
A & E income
Elective income
Non-elective income
Other non protected clinical income
Other NHS Clinical income
Outpatient income
Private patient income
Clinical income from activities
Other operating income
Education & training
Non patient care services to other bodies
Other contributions to expenditure
Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Received from NHS Charities
Research & development
Resources from NHS Charities excluding investment income
Reversal of impairments on property, plant & equipment
Staff costs accounted for on a gross basis
Other Income
Total other operating income

£'000
4,669
18,704
27,344
610
34,398
16,574
2,238
104,537

£'000
4,616
19,585
34,427
574
23,309
16,167
2,634
101,312

3,735
3,600
0
0
242
907
378
298
1,051
3,174
13,385

3,467
3,993
500
56
255
956
369
22
738
5,067
15,423

Total operating income

117,922

116,735

NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 15.8% to reflect
expected rates of collection.
The Terms of Authorisation set out the mandatory goods and services that the Trust is required
to provide (protected services).

Income from Commissioner Requested Services
Income from Non Commisioner Requested Services

4

2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

102,299
2,238
104,537

98,678
2,634
101,312

Private Patient Income
The statutory limitation on private patient income in section 44 of the 2006 Act was repealed
with effect from 1 October 2012 by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The financial
statements disclosures that were provided previously are therefore no longer required.

5

Analysis of Other Operating Income: Other Income
Included within other income is income relating to, catering, staff recharges, car parking,
estates recharges and additional other income.
During 2012/13 the Trust hosted a budget of £1.88 million on behalf of the South West
Strategic Health Authority and the income in respect of this is included in other income.
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6

Operating Expenses of continuing operations

6.1

Operating expenses comprise:

Group
2013/14

2012/13

£'000
2,356
777
3,440
10,137
1,859

£'000
2,377
343
3,399
9,323
1,834

52
10
5
25

50
10
5
20

Increase in bad debt provision
Legal Fees
Losses, ex gratia & special payments
Loss on disposal of property plant & equipment
NHS Charities expenditure
Premises
Property, plant & equipment impairments
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Rentals under operating leases

143
136
16
144
457
4,624
653
901
48

119
73
15
23
507
3,911
141
23
26

Services from:
- CCGS and NHS England
- NHS Foundation Trusts
- NHS Trusts
- Other NHS bodies
- PCTs

51
2,877
59
0
0

0
3,584
175
582
42

Staff costs:
- Executive Directors'
- Other Staff costs
- Redundancy costs
- Non-Executive Directors' costs

1,006
71,954
386
108

1,007
70,254
615
121

Supplies and services (excluding drug costs)
- Clinical
- General

11,578
1,657

11,347
1,933

332
397
601
116,789

317
443
2,345
114,964

Clinical negligence insurance
Consultancy costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Drug costs
Establishment
Fees for Audit
- Statutory audit
- Audit related assurance services
- Charitable funds
- Other auditor services

Training
Transport
Other

The total employer’s pension contributions are disclosed in note 9.1.
NHS blood and transport, and NHS Shared Business services have been re-categorised in
2013/14 as purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies. In 2012/13 this was categorised as
services from other NHS bodies.
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6.2

Operating leases

6.2.1

Operating lease expenses include:

Other operating lease rentals

7

2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

48

26

48

26

Arrangements containing an operating lease:
Other
leases

Other
leases

2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

48
101
5

26
16
0

154

42

Future minimum lease payments due

Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years
After 5 years

8

Limitation on auditor’s liability
The limitation on the auditor’s liability is £1,000,000.

9

Staff Costs and Numbers

9.1

Staff Costs

Salaries and Wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to NHSPA
Termination benefits
Agency and contract staff
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2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

57,803
4,369
6,863
386
3,925

57,841
4,378
6,598
615
2,444

73,346

71,876

9.2

Average number of persons employed

2012/13

2013/14
Permanently
Employed
Number

Other
Number

Total
Number

Total
Number

208
417

7
23

215
440

218
421

342

18

360

380

518

15

533

538

175
0

5
0

180
0

171
0

1,660

68

1,728

1,728

Medical and Dental
Administration and Estates
Healthcare Assistants & other
support staff
Nursing, midwifery & health
visiting staff
Scientific, theraputic and
technical staff
Other

9.3

Employee benefits
Benefits in kind relating to lease cars totalled £66,504 in the year (2012/13 £36,132). The Trust
has introduced a Salary Sacrifice Green Car scheme for employees, these cars are classified
as being a Benefit in Kind, the associated costs are covered by the Salary Sacrifice.

9.4

NHS Pension Scheme
The NHS Pensions Scheme is subject to a full valuation every four years by the Government
Actuary. The latest published valuation relates to the period 1 April 1999 to 31 March 2004
which was published in December 2007 and is available on the NHS Pensions Agency
website.
Employer contribution rates are reviewed every four years following the scheme valuation, on
advice from the actuary. At the last valuation it was recommended that employer contributions
rates should continue at 14% of pensionable pay. Employees’ pay contributions will be on a
tiered scale from 5% to 8.5% of their pensionable pay.

9.5

Retirements due to ill-health
During 2013/14 there were 4 early retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of illhealth. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be
£243,055. These costs will be borne by the NHS Pensions Agency. In 2012/13 there were 2
early retirements on the grounds of ill-health, amounting to estimated £23,362 additional
pension liabilities.
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9.6

Staff Exit Packages
Exit package cost
band

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Total number
of exit
packages by
cost band
4
3
3
3

Total number of
exit packages for
12/13

<£10,000
£10,001 - £25,000
£25,001 - £50,000
£50,001 - £100,000
Total number of exit
packages by type

0
0
0
0

Number of
other
departures
agreed
4
3
3
3

0

13

13

26

Total Resouces cost

£0

£386,000

£386,000

£490,000

14
4
5
3

During 2013/14 the Trust offered a Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme as part of its
workforce planning strategy. There was also 4 voluntary redundancies in 2013/2014.

10

Finance Income
2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

26
4

69
7

30

76

Trust interest received
Charity interest received

11

Better Payment Policy Code

11.1

Better Payment Practice Code – measure of compliance

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in
year
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid
within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices
paid within target

Total NHS trade invoices paid in year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within
target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid
within target

2013/14
Number

2013/14
£'000

2012/13
Number

2012/13
£'000

38,213

38,425

38,321

33,044

37,020

36,901

35,186

30,262

97%

96%

92%

92%

1,591

11,935

1,598

10,998

1,565

11,819

1,536

10,792

98%

99%

96%

98%
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11.2

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
There were no amounts included within interest payable arising from claims made by
businesses under this legislation.

12

Profit / (Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Profit / (Loss) on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Profit / (Loss) on disposal of fixed assets

2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

(144)
(144)

(33)
(33)

The disposals in 2013/14 and 2012/13 were in respect of non protected assets.

13

Losses and Special Payments

Losses of Cash:
Due to overpayment of salary
Bad Debts
Private Patients
Overseas Visitors
Other
Damage to building:
Not theft or fraud
Ex Gratia payments:
Loss of personal effects
Other
Total losses and special payments

2013/14
Number

2013/14
Value
£'000

2012/13
Number

2012/13
Value
£'000

1

0.4

2

0.1

12
3
395

3.8
2.8
4.6

41
2
423

-0.3
3.5
7.1

2

1.3

0

0.0

15
3

2.4
0.4

10
6

1.3
2.8

431

15.7

484

14.5

There were no case payments that exceeded £100,000.
These amounts are reported on an accruals basis, excluding provisions for future losses.
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14

Intangible assets

2013/14

Group
Cost or valuation at 1 April
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Reclassifications
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March
Depreciation at 1 April
Provided during the year
Revaluation
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March
Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April
- Donated at 1 April

- Purchased at 31 March
- Donated at 31 March
Total at 31 March

2012/13

Software Assets under
licence construction

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

518
573
0
66
0
0
1,157

142
371
0
(66)
0
0
447

660
944
0
0
0
0
1,604

242
192
0
84
0
0
518

70
142
0
(70)
0
0
142

312
334
0
14
0
0
660

88
115
0
0
203

0
0
0
0
0

88
115
0
0
203

26
62
0
0
88

0
0
0
0
0

26
62
0
0
88

399
31
430

142
0
142

541
31
572

182
34
216

70
0
70

252
0
252

954
0
954

447
0
447

1,401
0
1,401

399
31
430

142
0
142

541
31
572
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Software Assets under
licence construction

Total

15

Property, plant and equipment

15.1

Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2014 comprise the following elements:
Freehold Land

Freehold Assets under
dwellings construction &
payments on
account
£'000
£'000

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Freehold
buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2013
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated

7,130
0
0

39,925
1,308
892

1,406
23
0

567
1,263
0

15,686
1,233
0

21
0
0

2,047
162
0

484
81
0

67,266
4,070
892

Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale
Impairments charged to revaluation reserve
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March 2014

0
0
0
0
0
7,130

43
0
(397)
1,243
0
43,014

0
0
(97)
18
0
1,350

(43)
0
0
0
0
1,787

0
0
0
0
(629)
16,290

0
0
0
0
0
21

0
0
0
0
(44)
2,165

0
0
0
0
(23)
542

0
0
(494)
1,261
(696)
72,299

Depreciation at 1 April 2013
Provided during the year
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale
Revaluation
Disposals

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5,349
1,730
180
(298)
0
0
(1,340)
0

87
91
473
0
0
0
(13)
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

9,697
1,238
0
0
0
0
0
(486)

21
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,336
222
0
0
0
0
0
(44)

207
44
0
0
0
0
0
(23)

16,697
3,325
653
(298)
0
0
(1,353)
(553)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2014

0

5,621

638

0

10,449

21

1,514

228

18,471

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2013
- Finance Leases at 1 April 2013
- Donated at 1 April 2013
Total at 1 April 2013

7,130
0
0
7,130

32,969
0
1,607
34,576

1,319
0
0
1,319

457
0
110
567

5,548
0
441
5,989

0
0
0
0

711
0
0
711

235
0
42
277

48,369
0
2,200
50,569

- Purchased at 31 March 2014
- Finance Leases at 31 March 2014
- Donated at 31 March 2014
Total at 31 March 2014

7,130
0
0
7,130

35,607
0
1,786
37,393

712
0
0
712

1,787
0
0
1,787

5,449
0
392
5,841

0
0
0
0

651
0
0
651

280
0
34
314

51,616
0
2,212
53,828

Group and Trust
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15.2

Impairment of assets – Property, Plant and Equipment
A full revaluation of the Trusts land, buildings and dwellings was carried out as at 31 March 2014. An impairment of £653,000 was charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive income with the remainder of the impairment being charged to the revaluation reserve.
The revaluation also resulted in a reversal of a previous impairment totalling £298,000 and this was credited to the Statement of Comprehensive income.
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15.3

Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2013 comprise the following elements:
Freehold Land

Freehold
buildings
excluding
dwellings

Freehold Assets under
dwellings construction &
payments on
account

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

7,246
0
0
0
0
(116)
0
0
7,130

39,078
1,129
196
735
0
(1,136)
(77)
0
39,925

1,258
202
0
0
0
(62)
8
0
1,406

1,277
185
0
(895)
0
0
0
0
567

15,717
1,450
59
146
0
0
0
(1,686)
15,686

21
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
21

2,037
30
0
0
0
0
0
(20)
2,047

440
49
0
0
0
0
0
(5)
484

67,074
3,045
255
(14)
0
(1,314)
(69)
(1,711)
67,266

Depreciation at 1 April 2012
Provided during the year
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale
Revaluation surpluses
Disposals

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

3,578
1,739
141
0
0
0
(109)
0

68
73
0
(22)
0
0
(32)
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

9,965
1,259
0
0
0
0
0
(1,527)

20
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,129
227
0
0
0
0
0
(20)

173
38
0
0
0
0
0
(4)

14,933
3,337
141
(22)
0
0
(141)
(1,551)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2013

0

5,349

87

0

9,697

21

1,336

207

16,697

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2012
- Finance Leases at 1 April 2012
- Donated at 1 April 2012
Total at 1 April 2012

7,246
0
0
7,246

33,893
0
1,607
35,500

1,190
0
0
1,190

1,167
0
110
1,277

5,311
0
441
5,752

1
0
0
1

908
0
0
908

225
0
42
267

49,941
0
2,200
52,141

- Purchased at 31 March 2013
- Finance Leases at 31 March 2013
- Donated at 31 March 2013
Total at 31 March 2013

7,130
0
0
7,130

32,790
0
1,786
34,576

1,319
0
0
1,319

567
0
0
567

5,597
0
392
5,989

0
0
0
0

711
0
0
711

243
0
34
277

48,357
0
2,212
50,569

Group and Trust
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2012
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale
Impairments charged to revaluation reserve
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March 2013
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16

Assets held under finance leases
Group and Trust

2013/14

2012/13

Building

Total

Building

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

0
892
0
0
0
0
892

0
892
0
0
0
0
892

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Depreciation at 1 April
Provided during the year
Revaluation
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March

0
7
0
0
7

0
7
0
0
7

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April
- Finance Leases at 1 April
- Donated at 1 April
Total at 1 April

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

885
0
0
885

885
0
0
885

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Cost or valuation at 1 April
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Reclassifications
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March

- Purchased at 31 March
- Finance Leases at 31 March
- Donated at 31 March
Total at 31 March
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17

Inventories
Group
31 Mar 2014
31 Mar 2013
£'000
£'000
Materials and consumables

18

Trade and other receivables

18.1

Trade and other receivables:

Trust
31 Mar 2014
31 Mar 2013
£'000
£'000

1,931

1,813

1,931

1,813

1,931

1,813

1,931

1,813

Group
31 Mar 2014
31 Mar 2013
Amounts falling due within one year:
NHS receivables
Provision for impaired receivables
Prepayments
Accrued income
PDC dividend receivable
Other receivables

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Provision for impaired receivables
Accrued income
Other receivables

Total receivables

18.2

Trust
31 Mar 2014

31 Mar 2013

£'000
1,018
(53)
599
1,006
0
1,010
3,580

£'000
797
(56)
504
427
73
2,052
3,797

£'000
1,018
(53)
599
1,006
0
1,004
3,574

£'000
797
(56)
504
1,234
73
1,236
3,788

(138)
0
593
455

(134)
0
573
439

(138)
0
593
455

(134)
0
573
439

4,035

4,236

4,029

4,227

Provision for the impairment of receivables

At 1 April
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 March

Group
31 Mar 2014
31 Mar 2013
£'000
£'000
179
188
191
190
(131)
(117)
(48)
(71)
191
190

Page 41

Trust
31 Mar 2014
31 Mar 2013
£'000
£'000
179
188
191
190
(131)
(117)
(48)
(71)
191
190

18.3

Analysis of impaired receivables
Group
31 Mar 2014
31 Mar 2013
£'000
£'000
Ageing of impaired receivables
0 - 30 days
30 - 60 days
60 - 90 days
90 - 180 days
over 180 days

Trust
31 Mar 2013
31 Mar 2014
£'000
£'000

0
0
0
157
34
191

0
0
0
21
158
179

0
0
0
157
34
191

0
0
0
21
158
179

Ageing of non-impaired receivables past their due date
594
0 - 30 days
30 - 60 days
228
60 - 90 days
12
90 - 180 days
90
over 180 days
76
1,000

874
251
53
25
7
1,210

594
228
12
90
76
1,000

874
251
53
25
7
1,210

19

Trade and other payables

19.1

Trade and other payables
Group
31 Mar 2014
31 Mar 2013
£'000
£'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Receipts on account
NHS payables
Trade payables - capital
Other trade payables
Other payables
Accruals
PDC Dividend
NHS Charitable funds payables
Total payables

44
180
883
1,501
2,566
4,339
47
67
9,627

3
2,494
583
2,771
2,301
2,416
0
0
10,568

Trust
31 Mar 2014
31 Mar 2013
£'000
£'000
44
180
883
1,501
2,566
4,339
47
0
9,560

3
2,494
583
2,762
2,301
2,416
0
0
10,559

Other payables include £956,000 in respect of outstanding pensions contributions as at 31
March 2014 (2012/13 £879,000).
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20

Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

Group and Trust

Pensions
relating to
other staff
£'000

Legal
Claims

Other

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

260
29
0
(27)
0
3
265

644
155
42
(62)
0
11
790

245
0
0
(102)
(143)
0
0

1,149
184
42
(191)
(143)
14
1,055

27
107
131
265

67
216
507
790

0
0
0
0

94
323
638
1,055

At 1 April 2013
Arising during the year
Change in discount rate
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
At 31 March 2014
Expected timing of cashflows:
Within 1 year
1 - 5 years
over 5 years

£25,518,882 is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31 March 2014 in
respect of clinical negligence liabilities of the Trust, (£25,136,159 for 2012/13).
20.1

Pensions relating to other staff
The cost of pensions relating to early retirements is calculated using The NHS Pension Agency
capitalisation tables for the NHS Pension Scheme to determine the full liability for each
employee.

20.2

Legal Claims
The provision is based on information provided by the NHS Litigation Authority and refers to
non clinical claims against the Trust.

20.3

Estimation uncertainty
Amounts recorded under provisions for Pensions relating to other staff and Legal Claims
include an element of uncertainty as the provision has been calculated using the English Life
Expectancy statistics to estimate the length of time the liability can reasonably be expected to
remain.
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21

Borrowings
Group and Trust

22

31 Mar 2014
£'000

31 Mar 2013
£'000

Current
Other loans
Total current borrowings

107
107

128
128

Non-current
Other loans
Total non-current borrowings

849
849

63
63

Prudential Borrowing Limit
The prudential borrowing code requirements in section 41 of the NHS Act 2006 have been
st
repealed with effect from the 1 April 2013 by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The
financial statements disclosures that were provided previously are no longer required.

23

Reconciliation of Operating Surplus to Net Cashflow from Operating Activities

Group
2012/13
2013/14
£'000
£'000
Total operating surplus
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment impairments
Reversal of impairments
(Gain) / Loss on disposal
Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in payables
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions
Charitable funds net adjustments
Net cash inflow from operating activities

24

1,133
3,440
653
(298)
144
(118)
136
(1,318)
(110)
61
3,723

1,771
3,399
141
(22)
(33)
(184)
100
3,013
280
(50)
8,415

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

(1,905)

3,564

Opening net funds

10,683

7,119

Closing net funds

8,778

10,683

(Decrease) / Increase in cash in the year
Change in funds resulting from cashflows
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25

Analysis of Changes in net funds

Group and Trust

Cash at Bank and in hand
Government Banking Service cash at bank

26

At 1 Apr
2013
£'000

Cash
Changes
in year
£'000

At 31 Mar
2014
£'000

447
10,236

232
(2,137)

679
8,099

10,683

(1,905)

8,778

Capital Commitments
There was £1,592,000 of Capital Commitments at the Balance Sheet date (2012/13 £103,000).
Cheverton Demolition £702,000
Works to undertake the demolition of Cheverton site and create a temporary car park.

MRI Symphony Upgrade £456,000
Commitment relates to the upgrade of the MRI Symphony equipment through a Finance Lease
agreement.
Other Major Capital Projects of £434,000 include:
Refurbishment of the Canteen Servery, Project and design fees for the redevelopment of the
Special Care Baby Unit and the completion of the Business Intelligence System project.

27

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
There were no contingent assets and no contingent liabilities for the year ended 31 March
2014 or for the year ended 31 March 2013.

28

Movements in Public Dividend Capital
Group and Trust

Public dividend capital at 1 April
New public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital at 31 March
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2013/14
£'000

2012/13
£'000

40,825
676
41,501

40,625
200
40,825

29

Related party transactions
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a body corporate established by the issue of a
licence of authorisation from Monitor.
The Trust is under the common control of the Board of Directors. During the year none of the
Board members or members of the key management staff or parties related to them, has
undertaken any material transactions with Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has had
a significant number of material transactions with other entities for which the Department of
Health is regarded as the parent department as well as transactions through a joint venture.
These entities are listed below:

Dorset County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Dorset University Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Taunton and Somerset NHS Foundation Trust
University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust
Health Education England
Dorset CCG
Somerset CCG
Wiltshire CCG
Public Health England
NHS England
NHS Litigation Authority
Southwest Pathology Services (Joint Venture)
Integrated Pathology Services

Income
£000

Expenditure
£'000

Receivables
£'000

Payables
£'000

120
1,442
2,368
502
702
3,447
13,234
78,313
253
1,388
7,975
0
0
360

361
198
282
2,601
110
0
0
26
0
0
0
2,406
3,094
0

10
195
251
95
0
0
94
82
80
0
0
0
0
0

32
3
233
133
43
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

In addition the Trust has entered into transactions with other Government Departments and
other central and local Government bodies.
The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds.
Some of the Trustees of these charitable funds are also members of the Board of the NHS
Foundation Trust. Full audited accounts are prepared for the Funds held on Trust.

30

Joint Venture
The joint venture is Southwest Pathology Services LLP incorporated in the United Kingdom
with its principle place of business being Somerset.
Southwest Pathology Service LLP provides pathology testing for the Trust and other clients
and is expected to continue to do so for the long term.
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust owns 15.3% of the equity of Southwest
Pathology Services LLP and holds 20% of the voting rights on matters not requiring unanimous
consent of members as identified within the contractual arrangements.
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31

Director’s remuneration
A full remuneration report can be found in the Annual Report.

£'000
1,114
102

Director's remuneration
Employers contributions to the pension scheme

1,216
Total number of directors to whom benefits are accruing under:
- Money purchase schemes
- Defined benefit schemes

32

Director and Governor Expenses

Expenses:
Executive Directors
Non - Executive Directors
Govenors

33

0
6

2013/14
Number of
claiments

2013/14
Value
£'000s

6
7
21
34

16
10
2
28

Public Private Partnership Transactions
The Trust had no Public Private Partnership transactions in the year ended 31 March 2014 (or
in the year ended 31 March 2013).

34

Financial Instruments
IAS 32 (Financial Instruments, Presentation), IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement) and IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments, Disclosure) require disclosure of the role
that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity
faces in undertaking its activities. The main source of income for the Trust is under contracts
from commissioners in respect of healthcare services. Due to the way that the Commissioners
are financed, the Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by
business entities.
Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would
be typical of the listed companies to which IFRS 7 mainly applies. Financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held to change
the risks facing the NHS Foundation Trust in undertaking its activities.
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35

Financial Risk Management
The Trust’s financial risk management operations are carried out by the Trust’s Treasury
Function, within the parameters formally defined within the Treasury Management Guidance,
agreed by the Trust Audit Committee. Trust treasury activity is routinely reported and is subject
to review by internal and external auditors.
The Trust’s financial instruments comprise of cash and liquid resources and various items such
as trade debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations. The Trust does not
undertake speculative treasury transactions.

35.1

Liquidity Risk
The NHS Foundation Trust’s net operating costs are incurred under contracts with
commissioners, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. Yeovil
District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risk.

35.2

Interest Rate Risk
100% of the Trust’s financial assets and 100% of its financial liabilities carry nil or fixed rates of
interest. The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant interest rate risk.

35.3

Foreign Currency Risk
The Trust has negligible foreign currency income or expenditure.

35.4

Credit Risk
The majority of the Trust’s income comes from Government bodies or other NHS organisation
under contractual arrangements meaning that the Trust is not exposed to high levels of credit
risk.
Other income is subject to credit control procedures which are regularly reviewed by
management. Outstanding debtors are referred to a credit collection agency once the Trust
has exhausted all other methods of collection.

35.5

Price Risk
The Trust invests its surplus cash in Government Banking Services Accounts (GBS) therefore
it is not subject to market price risk.

35.6

Cashflow Risk
Cash is invested in accordance with approved procedures. Cashflows are monitored and
monthly forecasts are produced to ensure commitments are met.

Page 48

35.7

Financial Assets

Carrying Amount
31 Mar 2014

Fair Value
31 Mar
2014

Carrying Amount
31 Mar 2013

Fair Value
31 Mar 2013

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

1,018
1,006
1,412

1,018
1,006
1,412

797
427
2,544

797
427
2,544

8,784
12,220

8,784
12,220

9,872
13,640

9,872
13,640

Group and Trust

NHS Debtors (net of provisions for
irrecoverable debts)
Accrued income
Other debtors
Cash at bank including Charitable funds

35.8

Financial Liabilities

Group and Trust

Borrowings
Finance Lease
NHS Creditors
Other creditors
Accruals
Provisions

Carrying
Amount
31 Mar 2014

Fair Value
31 Mar 2014

Carrying Amount
31 Mar 2013

Fair Value
31 Mar 2013

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

64
892
228
5,059
4,339
1,055
11,637

64
892
228
5,059
4,339
1,055
11,637

191

191

2,494
5,646
2,416
1,149
11,896

2,494
5,646
2,416
1,149
11,896

Fair value is not significantly different from book value since, in the calculation of book value,
the expected cashflows have been discounted by the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% in real
terms.

36

Third Party Assets
The Trust did not have any cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2014 (£0 at 31 March 2013)
in relation to monies held by the Foundation Trust on behalf of patients.
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